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v~ OF 
]ERSEY CITY, N.]. 

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-012 · 

ORDINANCE DEDICATING THAT ASTOR PLACE BETWEEN 
. TITLE= crzescenr AVENUE AND sunrrvrrr AVENUE ro ALSO ee KNOWN AS 

?iB2¤mn Carlbert Zfazarh, $1*. iIBrfhrz 

WHEREAS, Carlbert "CarI” Heard was born to the late Lola Hunt Heard and Henry Luther Heard in Hart County, Georgia. After 
graduating from Flat Rock High School, he entered the U.S. Army in May of 1944 and sen/ed through August of 1946. While 
stationed overseas, attached to the 3**1 Army, he served as a Military Police Officer; and 

WHEREAS, Carl Heard, Sr. moved to Jersey City, NJ in 1947. He met the late Willie Mae Powell in 1948. The loving couple 
was married on March 4, 1950. They were blessed with two sons, Carlbert H. Jr. and Daniel Heard'; and 

WHEREAS, Carl Heard, Sr. was employed by American Radiator Foundry in Bayonne, NJ for twelve years. Carl Heard, Sr. 
began employment with the Jersey City Housing Authority in 1959. He also served as Assistant Director of Hudson County 
Institutional Police. This position held responsibility for the Pollack Hospital, Margaret Hague and Meadow View Hospitals. In 
September 1970, Carl began employment as a New Jersey State Corrections Ofhcer. He was employed for twenty years in this 
position and retired with honors as a Senior Correction Officer from East Jersey State Prison; and 

WHEREAS, significantly, just as employment was important to Carl, so was the exercising of his right to vote. Upon arriving in 
Jersey City, at his first opportunity, Carl registered to vote and consequently voted in every election. He was very active in the 
Democratic organization and worked closely with the then county leader, John V. Kenney who later became mayor of Jersey 
City. Carl was a member, Trustee and Deacon of Friendship Baptist Church in Bayonne, NJ, for more than 57 years. He joined 
the Samuel R. Shelton Post #2294 Veterans of Foreign Wars of the United States of America in 1961 and served as post 
commander. Carl also senred as a delegate to the country, state and national convention for 50 years. He diligently served his 
community as a committeeman for 58 years; and 

- WHEREAS, Deacon Carlbert Heard Sr. departed this life on October 13, 2007. Surviving to cherish his memory and celebrate 
_ 

his life are his adored sister, Beulah H. McNair; two loving sons, Carl H. Jr. and Daniel heard; two honored daughters-in-law, 
Sherry Basden-Heard and Robin A. Surratt; two sisters—in-law, Lillian Powell and Mary Bickers, three adopted grandchildren 
Ronnie D. Surratt Zamirr Surratt, Zamirrah Surratt, Qayshana Basden, William E. Basden and Shakeem O. Basden alongwitha 
host of nieces, nephews, cousins, other loving relatives, friends and the Friendship Baptist Church Family. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, that the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City deems it fitting and proper to 
commemorate the name of Deacon Carlbert Heard Sr. for his many accomplishments and for serving as an honored role model 
and inspiration to all. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that Astor Place between Crescent Avenue and Summit Avenue to also be knownas Deacon 
Carlbert Heard, Sr. Drive. 

A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.
` 

B. This ordinance shall be a pan of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth therein. The City shall have 
this ordinance codiued and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code. » 

C. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and inthe manner as provided by law. 
D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter 

numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a 
conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repeaters of 
existing provisions. - 
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yy OF a,,ORma 

]ERSEY CITY, N.]. 
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: -· 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-013 

TITLE: 

ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER A351 (EXECUTIVE ORDERS AND 
- ORDINANCES)-OF THE JERSEY CITY CODE · 

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: 

A. The following supplements to Chapter A351 (Executive Orders and Ordinances) ofthe 
Jersey City Code are adopted: 

Labor Grade Title 

* Special Law Enforcement Officer 

B. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

C. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set 
forth therein. The City shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official 
copies of the Jersey City Code. 

D. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law. 
`

I 

E. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and 
directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event 
that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers 
and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of 
existing provisions. 

NOTE: All new material is underlined; words in [brackets] are omitted. 
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by boldface and 
repealed matter by italic. 

*Pursuant to NJSA. 40:69A-43a. 

JIM/he 

1/29/13
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Ordinance/Resolution Fact Sheet 

This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any ordinance, resolution, cooperation ~ A 

agreement, or contract that is submitted for Council consideration. Incomplete or sketch 

summary sheets will be returned with the resolution or ordinance. The Department, Division, or 
Agency responsible for the overall implementation of the proposed project or program should 
provide a concise and accurate state of facts.

_ 

FullATitle of Ordinance/Resolution/Cooperation Agreement: 

Special Law Enforcement Officer 

Name & Title of Person Initiating Ordinance/Resolution, Etc.: 
John Kelly, Business Administrator 

Concise Description ofthe Program, Project, or Plan Proposed in the Ordinance: - 

To establish a new title in accord with New Jersey Department of Personnel Rules and 
Regulations. 

Reasons for the Proposed Program, Project, Etc.:
U 

To operate as armed securig officers for the Municipal Court- No Benefits - Retired 
Police Officers 

Anticipated Benefits to the Community: . 

Cost of Program, Proj ect, Etc.: (Indicate the dollar amotmt of City, State, Federal funds to 
be used as well as match and in—kind contributions.) 

Date Proposed Program or Project will Commence: 
H

l 

Anticipated Completion Date: 

Person Responsible for Coordinating Proposed Program, Project Etc.: 

Additional Comments: 
Seasonal Labor Grade FX 
I Certify That All Facts Present Herein Are Accurate. 

Date Department Director ‘
`

I 

Date Submitted to Business Administrator ~
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OQ P O p|g Office of the Corporation Counsel 

280 Grove Street 
_| _; 

‘ 

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 
2;%- Telephone: (201) 547-4667 

Fax: (201) 547-5230 

Jerramiah Healy, Mayor Bill Matsikoudis, Corporation Counsel 

February 6, 2013 

President and Members of the City Council 
CITY HALL 
280 Grove Street 

Jersey City, NJ 07302 

Re: Ordinance Supplementing Chapter A351 
(Executive Orders and Ordinances of the Jersey City Code) 

Dear President and Members of the City Council: 

The attached Ordinance was written in response to a demand by the Jersey City
O 

Municipal Court to have armed security guards in the court rooms while court is in session. 

Pursuant to State Statute, Council must authorize the hiring of such positions. 

‘ 

The most cost effective way to provide such security is to hire retired police officers at an 
hourly rate, without any other benefits. 

Employees of the municipal court interviewed a number of retired Jersey City Police 
Officers, and the list of selected candidates was submitted to Persormel. The Civil Service Title 
shall be "Special Law Enforcement Officer." The officers shall be paid only for hours worked. 
The rate of pay shall be $22.50 per hour. »

l 

Very truly yours, 

William ésikoudis, 
Corporation Counsel 

TK/WM/kn 
Enclosures per above



City of
_ 

JERSEY CITY
_ 

_ 

T. HEALY, Mayor
H 

280 Grove Street
l 

A A 

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 (201) 547-5000 

Fax (201) 547-4288 

E.O. 
, 2013 - 

EXECUTIVE ORDER OF THE MAYOR 
OF THE 

· CITY OF JERSEY CITY 

CLASSIFIED POSITIONS FOR CITY EMPLOYEES
l 

Pursuant to the Faulkner Act, N.J.S.A. 40:69A-48, as amended by L. 1985, c.374, the Mayor 
is now authorized to set the salaries, wages or other compensation of all employees of administrative 
departments except department directors and employees whose salaries are required to be set by 
ordinance. 

Pursuant to this authorization, I issue the following Executive Order establishing guidelines 
for salaries and wages of those employees whose salaries are set by the Mayor: 

Labor Grade Title 

. § Special Law Enforcement Officer 

This order shall take effect immediately;

I

` 

Very truly yours, 

. JERRAMIAH T. HEALY, MAYOR
l 

JTH/he 

cc: John Kelly, Business Administrator 
William T. Matsikoudis, Corporation Counsel 
Robert Byrne, City Clerk 

Donna Mauer, Chief Financial Officer 
Darlene Pharmes, Personnel Director
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ORDINANCE *1 

OF 
]ERSEY CITY, N.], - 

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-014 
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 175 (FOOD HANDLING ESTABLISHMENTS) 

TITLEARTICLE II (ITINERANT EATING AND DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS) SECTION 8 
(ITINERANT ESTABLISHMENTS) AND CHAPTER 160 (FEES AND CHARGES) OF THE 
JERSEY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE · 

— ·

I 

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:
I 

A. The following amendments to Chapter 1.75 (Food Handling.Estab1ishments), Article Il (ltinerant 
Eating and Drinking Establishments) of the Jersey City Code are hereby adopted: 

ARTICLE II 

MOBILE FOOD VENDORS 

§ 175-8 Mobile Food Vendors; categories of mobile 
food vendors. [Amended 5-10-2006 by Ord. No. 06-064] 

A. Itinerant eating and drinking establishments are mobile trucks, vans, pushcarts or other 
vehicles iwhere food is prepared for sale from such vehicle. The term 1nobiIe food 
vendor or mobile food-vendor establishment shall include catering itinerant eating and 
drinking establishments 

B. The term Eitinerant catering establishmentsu shall mean any establishment which 
prepares food and drink at one licensed-and approved location to be transported by

‘ 

motorized vehicles to gother locations where the food and drink is sold from such 
motorized vehicles. The term mobile food vendor or mobile food-vendor establishment 

~= shall include itinerant catering establishments. 

§ 175-9 License required; renewal; number of licenses limited; restrictions. 

A. No person shall conduct, operate or maintain 

mobile food-vendor establishment without first obtaining a license to do so issued by the 
Division of Health upon payment of the sum as provided in Chapter i60, Fees and 
Charges Such license 
revoked shall be for a year and must be renewed by January 31 each year after 20 I3, 

Mobile food 
vendor licenses shall be issued to individuals only. No license shall be issued to a 
corporation, partnership or business entig; of any kind. 

‘ 

B. The Health Officer is authorized to renew the license of` a deceased licensee in the name 
ofthe deceased licensee’s surviving spouse upon production of an original death 
certificate within 90 days ofthe licensee’s death. 

¢. 2 ti r
7



Continuation of City Ordinance 13;O14 
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C. The number of licenses which may be issued to mobile food 
vendors shall not exceed -160 licenses. In the event that a license is revoked or if 
it is not renewed, |n any such license may be issued to 
an applicant for such license on a first—come-first—served basis. The Director of the 
Division of Health shall maintain a waiting list for such revoked or unrenewed licenses 
and shall notify the person at the top of the list that such a license is available. 

D. Each mobile food vendor licensee shall 

display the license and affix the same to the outside ofthe pushcart, vehicle or mobile 
food vendor establishment together with the certificate of registration issued by the New 
Jersey Division of Taxation. 

E. No person shall hold more than one license nor have any interest directly or indirectly in 
any other license. 

§175—9.1. Application. 

g Application Process. 

All current licensees shall be reguired to submit a completed new application, within sixg (60) 
- days of the date his or her license expires, to fulfill license reguirements for the remainder of 

2013 . The license of any current licensee who fails to file a completed application for renewal 
shall be null and void. All applications that are not approved 60 days from this date, with: l ) 

proof of existing license; 2) propane license from the Jersey Cig Fire Department; 3) Business 
Registration with the State of New Jersey; 4) proof of ownership or rental of the mobile food 
vendor’s vehicle, pushcart or other mobile food-vendor establishment; 5) Certification from the 
City Health Department that the mobile food-vendor establishment has been successfully 
inspected, and 6) proof of liabilig; insurance, will result in the prior license being declared null 
and void. 

B. Applicants for a license shall be filed with the Health Officer a sworn application in 

V 

writing and pay an application fee of $75 .00. The application shall contain all 
information considered relevant to determine whether a license may be issued, including 
but not limited to: address and phone number of applicant and two full-face passport 
sized photographs. 

fl) Name; 

_ Q) A description ofthe food product to be sold;
_ 

Q) A list of all employees, if any;
_ 

(5) If a motor vehicle is to be used, a description of the motor vehicle, license and 
registration number; 

Q) The location where food will be prepared prior to sale; 

(Q) A Background Criminal Investigation (BC!) check. Upon successful completion 
of the background check, a Department of Health and Human Services ID card 
shall be issued, which should be visibly displayed on the person and his 
employees, if any, at all times when operating a mobile food-vendor 
establishment; 

Q) A statement as to whether or not the applicant has been convicted of any crime. 
If there are any outstanding Jersey Cig municipal violations, the applicant shall 
present proof that any outstanding fines have been paid in full or that a payment 
schedule has been established. Moreover, the applicant should also submit a 
detailed explanation of any mitigating factors that should be considered in the 
Police Director’s evaluation of any prior crimes in the applicant’s background. 
This 1nay include statements of rehabilitation, reference letters, and any other 
information the applicant deems relevant;

i 

(§) A copy of any person with disabilities identification, if applicable; 

(2) Location ofthe mobil food-vendor vehicle when it is not in service.
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§175—9.2. Education/Training Requirement/Pre-Operation Inspection. 
_

y 

Ay All approved applicants shall attend a Food Handlers’ course as directed by the Jersey 
City Division of Health prior to commencing business. 

Q Upon initial approval ofthe application, completion of the mandatog course, and 
‘ ‘ 

payment to the Division of Health of the reguired licensing fee, the applicant shall ‘ 

schedule his or her pre-operation inspection by the Health Officer. 

§175-9.3. Operation Requirements for Mobile Food Vendors. ‘ 

Ay Trash and recycling receptacles are reguired at the mobile food vendor’s site and all 
trash and debris accumulating within 25 feet ofthe mobile food vendor’s site shall be 
collected and deposited in a fresh container. 

g Hours of Operation: 6:00 A.M. until 9:00 P.M. No mobile food vendor vehicle is 
permitted to stay parked on Cig streets past 10:00 P.M. 

Q No mobile food vendors shall occupy the street and the sidewalk at the same time. 

Q New or replacement mobile food vendor trucks, vans or other vehicles trucks shall be 
inspected before operating. No changes can be made to approved mobile food vendor 
trucks, vans , pushcarts or vehicles without re—inspection by the Division of Health. 

Q No mobile food vendor shall serve food or drink to a motorist whose vehicle is blocking 
the passage of traffic. 

L No mobile food vendor shall serve customers on private propeg without permission of 
. _ the owner. 

H; No mobile food vendors shall be permitted to occupy street space. 

L Mobile food vendors must be self-contained; no coolers are permitted to be placed on 
streets or sidewalks. . 

_ L No in-truck dining services or sidewalk tables and chairs are allowed.
V 

§175-10. License Transfer Procedure . 

A" No license ma be transferred from erson to erson unless said license is in good Y P P 
standing. The transfer procedure shall be as follows: . 

D 

(1) An application by the licensee to transfer the license to another person shall be 
submitted to the Director of the Division of Health. Said application shall set 
forth the name of the licensee, the number of the license, the name of the 
transferee and a consent signed bythe licensee to the transfer. 

- 
(2) The transferee shall submit an application to said Director requesting a transfer 

of said license to hi1n. Said application shall contain all the requirements for the 
issuance of an original license and shall contain a consent in writing ofthe 
transferor of the license. 

B. Whenever any licensee shall apply for a person-to-person transfer of his or her license, 
said license shall not be available to anyone on the waiting list unless the licensee 
consents to the transfer of said license to some person who happens to be on the waiting 
list. No other person on that waiting list shall have any claim to any such license to be 

» 
transferred. 

§ 175-11. Use of streets by mobile food vendors; physically 
handicapped persons amended 5-l0—2006 by Ord. No. 06-064
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No person conducting, operating or maintaining a mobile 
food-vendor· establishment shall be permitted to sell food or drink 

No 
_ _ 

person conducting, operating or maintaining
_ 

mobile food vendor establishment, shall be permitted to sell food or drink within three 
hundred (300) feet of any of any licensed eating and drinking establishment, nor shall he 
or she be permitted to remain in any location for a period exceeding|g 
hundred tweng; ( l20) minutes drrring a four—hour period. At the conclusion of 29 

i 

minutes, mobile food vendors shall move at least one hundred EQ ( 150) feet. The sole 
exception to this restriction is in the area along Kennedy Boulevard in front of New 
Jersey City University and across from A. Harry Moore School. 

B' 
Physically handicapped persons. 

fil The one hundred tweng 
( l20) minute 

requirement shall not apply to physically handicapped persons who have been issued a 
specific vehicle identification card by the Division of Health, nor to any person operating

V 

the mobile food—vendor establishment| |orr behalf 
of the handicapped person. |he one hundred 
twenty ( 120) minute restriction shall only apply to one vehicle or establishment operated 
by the handicapped person personally. 

(D Certification is required by a physically handicapped person in order to qrralify for the 
exemption to the twenty one hundred tweng minute regulation restriction which shall 
contain the precise nature of the disability and shall not be in general terms. lt shall also 
contain a prognosis by the doctor as to the length of time that such disability will exist. A ’ 

new doctor's certification obtained pursuant to a current or recent examination shall be 
presented annually with the application for any renewal of a license to a physicallyV 

handicapped person. 

Q) "Physical handicap" means a physical impairment which confines a person to a 
» wheelchair; causes a person to walk with difficulty or insecurity; affects the sight or 

hearing to the extent that a person functioning in public areas is insecure or exposed to 
danger; causes faulty coordination; or reduces mobility, flexibility, coordination and 
perceptiveness. "Physical handicap" shall include coronary conditions. Any such

` 

physically handicapped person shall submit a certificate from a physician certifying that 
said handicap does exist and the physically disabled person shall then have issued a 
specific identification card by the Division of Health. In addition the physically disabled 
applicant shall furnish a verification card hom the New Jersey Motor Vehicle 

_ 
commission. A copy of this certification shall be filed with the Gi·ty·€lerk Health Officer 

. at the time of application. 

C' The provisions of the twenty one hundred tweng; ( 120) minute regulation restriction in 
this section shall be enforced by the Police Department and the Divisi_on of Health. 

D` No mobile food—vendor establishment shall operate upon 
private property, without the owner’s permission.| 

E' No mobile food-vendor establishment shall be operated in any area _ 

where parking of motor vehicles is prohibited, restricted or regulated. Such areas shall 
include, but not be limited to, sidewalks, bus stops, taxi stands, fire hydrants, parking 
metered areas, loading zones, areas where parking is prohibited, such as from the corner 
of an intersection as indicated by curb markings, areas reserved for physically 
handicapped motor vehicle operators, crosswalks, driveways and any other areas so 
restricted, prohibited or regulated for the parking of motor vehicles. 

Q Zones Where Operation is Prohibited: Journal Sguare and Newport Redevelopment Plan
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Area, which includes: ‘ 

Q) Thomas Gangemi Drive: Luis Munoz Marin Blvd. To Washington Blvd. 
Q) Washington Boulevard.: Thomas Gangemi Dr. To l8"‘ St. 
Q) l8"‘ Street: Washirwt p on Blvd. To Luis Munoz Marin Blvd. 
fg) Town Sguare Place: Wasliing on Blvd. To River Drive South 

. . Q) , River Drive South: Town Sguare Place to Newport Parkway . 

(Q) Newport Parkway: ll"` Street Viaduct to River Drive South 
Q_) l4"‘ Street: Luis Munoz Marin Blvd. To Washing on Blvd 
Q) North Garage. 

Q Mobile Food Vendors Operating Trucks: Trucks shall not exceed 37 feet long by 8 feet 
wide.

. 

_ Q All mobile food vendor trucks shall have displayed prominently a metal placard with the
‘ 

name and address of the owner, lessee and/or lessor of the vehicle. Said 
information shall be in letters and numbers no less than three inches in height in 
accordance with N.J.S.A. 39:4-46. · 

79; 
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§175—14. Violations and penalties. 

A' 
Anyone violating any of the provisions of this Article shall be punishable as provided in 
Chapter 1, General Provisions, § 1-25. ln the event that an offence is a continuing one, 
then each day such offense continues shall be deemed a separate and distinct offense and 
shall be punishable as such as provided herein and by the provisions of Chapter 24 of the 

V _ 
State Sanitary Code. Where the offense is a continual one, only one summons and 
complaint need be issued, provided that there is stated on such documents the charge that 
each day the violation continues shall be a separate and distinct offense. 

B. In addition to the penalties set forth herein, 

a mobile food vendor who 
violates any provisions of this Article, the vehicle, cart or establishment of which is being 
operated as such a mobile food vendor shall be impounded by either the police or the 
Division of Health as the case may be. In the event that any such establishment is 
impounded, the vehicle, cart or establishment may be redeemed by the person upon 
payment of the cost of impounding and the storage charges established by the Department 
of Police. Said storage charge and cost of impounding shall be the same as are 
established for the impounding of motor vehicles.

` 

§175—15 License revocation or suspension. . 

g The license of a person who violates any provision of this Article may be revoked or 
suspended, or they may be fined for violation of this Article or the applicable provisions 
of Chapter 24 ofthe State Sanitary Code, after hearing upon 10 days’ notice served upon 
the licensee. Said notice shall contain the specific provision of this Article or of the State 
Sanitary Code, which has been violated and the specifications which shall constitute the . 

violation. The Health Officer and the Chief Registered 
Environmental Health Specialist| 
designeeyshall conduct the hearings upon noticed offenses. Licenses may be revoked or 
suspended for any violation ofthe Article or the State Sanitary Code or for any repeated 
violations thereof. 

Any licensee o| a mobile 
food vendor whose license has been revoked shall not be qualified to receive a new 
license or have said license restored to said person, . 

B. Any licensee who is charged with a violation shall have the right to be represented by an 
attorney and said facts shall be stated on the notice served rrpon him. 

. C. Any licensee whose license has been revoked or suspended shall have a right to 
appeal such revocation or suspension to a court of competentjurisdiction in accordance 

· with the rules of the Courts of the State of New Jersey. . 

The following amendments to Chapter 160 (Fees and Charges; of the Jersey City Municipal Code 
are adopted: 

Fees and Charges

V 

§160-1. Fee Schedule Established, 

_ A. Through O. No Change, 

REPEALED 
160-1 (Q) 

P. chapter- 175, Food-Handling Establishments. . 

(1) No Change, 

(2) Article 

|y 6 x|g 2|] m|u}|; mgm| 

Q) For 2013: $200;
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fb) For 2014: $500; 

fg) For 20l5;and 

thereafter: $600
i 

(3) No Change. 
` 

i l 

(4) No Change; 
l 

g

l 

Q. Through UU. No Change; 

- D. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

E. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies ofthe 
Jersey City Code. 

F. This Ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law. 

G. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel may change any chapter numbers, article numbers 
and section numbers if codification ofthe ordinance reveals a conflict between those numbers and 
the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing 
provisions. 

Note: All new material is underlined; words in [brackets] are omitted. 
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is bolclface and 
repealed by italics. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: 

APPROVED; 
Corporation Counsel 

Certification Required U 
Not Required D
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February 6, 2013 i
. 

Council President and Members of the Municipal Council 
City of Jersey City — City Hall t_

_ 

280 Grove Street · 

» 4 ~

_ i 

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 ·
-

A

_
4 

RE: Amendments to Chapter 175 of the Jersey City Municipal Code — "Itinerant 
Catering Ordinance" 

._
_ 

Dear City Council Members: . 

_ 

~ 

_

"
‘ 

_ 
Presented for your review and consideration are amendments to Chapter 175-8 gt guy of the 

Jersey City Municipal Code, which is known as the “ltinerant Catering Ordinance?
A 

. 

` 

- First the Department of Health and Human Services and its HealthiDivision (the 
i 5 

"Department"), in day-to-day operation, treat the two categories addressed by the existing 
Ordinance ("ltinerant Eating and Drinking Establishments" and "ltinerant Catering 
Estab1is1nnents") as if they were one category. In other words, the Department gives identical 

_ 
treatment of applicants and license holders even though they are, by existing Ordinance, separate_ 1 

classes of vendors. Therefore, with the amendments to the Ordinance, these two categories are now ’ 

combined under a -newly entitled class "mobile food vendors.” The requirements, operational 
conditions and provisions formerly addressed by separate requirements are in a new category and 

. the presently existing separate provisions are, therefore, combined and clarified.
i 

· Other proposed provisions include_changing the fees ($200 for the remainder of 2013, $500
1

- 

for 2014 and $600 for 2014 and beyond), number of mobile food vendor licenses changed (and left 
· for the Council to determine), and mobile food—vendor license application procedtues made more 

_ 

stream—lined and centered in the Department (rather than with the City Clerk). Education and · 

` 

Training, at a "Food Handler’s" course is required of approved mobile food vendors. Hours of
i 

· 

operation and location time limits are established. In addition, in truck and sidewalk table dining is 
prohibited.

i 

. 

_ 

· T

J

. 

, The vendors may continue to use their licenses they expire and then make application 
through the Department rather than the -City Clerk. Thank you for your consideration of these '

i 

amendments.
‘ 

_' 
,

1 

_

‘

E 

J 

" 

Very 
éiuly 

yours,
‘ 

. 

`

J 

` Y MELEN
1 

Encl. - Director, Health & Hrunan Services
W
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]ERSEY CITY, N.]. 
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

1 

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13..015 

TITLEORDINANCE APPROVING A 10 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MARKET RATE 
MIXED USE RENTAL PROJECT T0 BE CONSTRUCTED BY 70 COLUMBUS URBAN 
RENEWAL, L.L.C., AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG 
TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.J.S.A. 40A:20—l Q SEQ Q. 
THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: 

WHEREAS, 70 Columbus Urban Renewal, L.L.C., an urban renewal entity, formed and qualified 
to do business under the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and 

K supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20—l Q gl. [Entity]; and 

WHEREAS, the Entity owns certain property known as Condo Unit 3A within a portion of Block 
13003, Lot 1, on the City’s Official Tax map, consisting of approximately 3.47 acres, and more 
commonly known by the street address of 70 Columbus Drive, and more specifically described by 
metes and bounds, inthe application [Property]; and 

_ WHEREAS, the Property is located within the Exchange Place North Redevelopment Plan Area as 
required by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-4 and N.J.S.A. 40A: l2A—5(g).; and 

WHEREAS, the Entity has applied for a 20 year 10% Annual Gross Revenue long term tax 
exemption for a multiple dwelling, market rate residential rental project, to consist of a fifty (50) 

, story building with approximately five hundred fifty-three (553) residential rental units, 
approximately seventeen thousand one hundred thirty-five (17,135) square feet of ground floor retail 
space and approximately two hundred sixty-three (263) on site parking spaces located in Condo Unit 
3A within a portion of Block 13003, Lot 1, on the City’s Tax Map and more commonly known as 
70 Columbus Drive, Jersey City [Project]; and

S 

WHEREAS, the Project received a site plan approval from the Planning Board on July 24, 2012; 
and 

WHEREAS, as the result of negotiations before the Tax Abatement Committee, the Entity agreed 
to accept a shorter term and an incrementally higher service charge; and 

WHEREAS, 70 Columbus Urban Renewal, L.L.C., has agreed to: 

1. pay the greater of (i) the Minimum Amiual Service Charge or (ii)10% of the Annual Gross 
Revenue for years 1 through 4; 12% ofthe Annual Gross Revenue for years 5 through 8; and 
14% of the Annual Gross Revenue for the final years, 9 and 10, which initial sum is 
estimated to be $1,571,461; all of which shall be subject to statutory staged increases over 
the term of the tax exemption; and 

2. pay an annual sum equal to 2% of each prior year’s Armual Service Charge as an 
Administrative Fee; and 

3. provide employment and other economic opportunities for City residents and businesses; and 

<>21i>;so2»;
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4. pay to the City, for remittance to Hudson County, an amount equal to 5% of the Annual 
Service Charge upon receipt of that charge; and 

5. pay the sum of $855,203 to the City’s Affordable Housing Trust Fund; and
i 

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the relative benefits ofthe project outweigh the cost 
of the tax exemption, for the following reasons: 

1. the current real estate taxes generate revenue of only approximately $52,000 whereas, the 
_ 

· Annual Service Charge as estimated, will initially generate revenue of more than $1,571,461 
to the City and an additional sum of approximately $78,573 to Hudson County; 

2. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 350 jobs during construction and 30 
new permanent jobs; 

3. the Project will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of businesses in the 
surrounding area; 

4. the Project will further the overall redevelopment objectives of the Exchange Place North 
Redevelopment Plan; 

5. the City’s Impact Analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, indicates that the 
benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the tax exemption is important in obtaining 
development of the proj ect and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants for the 
following reasons: 

1. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will make the Project 
more attractive to investors needed to finance the Project; 

2. the relative stability and predictability ofthe Annual Service Charges will allow the owner 
to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance to the building over 
the life of the Project, which will attract tenants to the Project and insure the likelihood of 
the success of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, 70 Columbus Urban Renewal, L.L.C., has initially complied with Executive Order 
. 2002-005 concerning "Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status" by filing an appropriate letter 

in the Office of the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, 70 Columbus Urban Renewal, L.L.C., has agreed to comply with the City of Jersey 
City’s Ordinance 07-123, Requiring Apprenticeships and Project Labor Agreements; and 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2013, the Tax Exemption Committee recommended the approval of 
the tax exemption to the Mayor by a unanimous vote. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council ofthe City of Jersey City 
that: 

A. The application of 70 Columbus Urban Renewal, L.L.C., an urban renewal company, formed 
and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, » 

_ 
as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 Qt gt. 21 copy of which is on file in the office of . 

the City Clerk, for Condo Unit 3A within a portion of Block 13003, Lot l, more commonly known 
by the street address of 70 Columbus Drive, more specifically described by metes and bounds in the 
application is hereby approved. 

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax exemption 
Financial Agreement and a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement. The Financial 
Agreement shall include at a minimum the following terms and conditions:
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1. Term: the earlier of 13 years from the adoption ofthe within Ordinance or 10 years from the 
date the project is Substantially Complete; 

2. Annual Service Charge: each year the greater ofi
' 

. . (a) the Minimum Annual Service Charge equal to $1,571,461 upon Project Completion, » 

whether or not the Project is occupied; or 

(b) 10% ofthe Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 4; 12% of the Annual Gross 
Revenue for years 5 through 8; and 14% ofthe Annual Gross Revenue for the final 
years 9 and 10, which initial sum is estimated to be $1,571,461, and which shall be 
subject to statutory increases during the term of the tax exemption. 

3. Administrative Fee: 2% of the prior year’s Annual Service Charge; 

_ 
4. County Payment: 5% of the Annual Service Charge to the City for remittance by the City 

to Hudson County; 

5. Project: A new multiple dwelling, market rate residential rental proj ect, which will consist 
of a fifty (50) story building with approximately five hundred fifty—three (553) market rate 
residential rental units, approximately seventeen thousand one hundred thirty-five (17,135) 
square feet of ground floor retail space and approximately two hundred sixty-three (263) on 
site parking spaces; 

6. Affordable Housing Trust Fund: $1,500 per unit or $829,500 and $1.50 per square foot x 
17,135 square feet or $25,703, for a total of $855,203; 

7. An obligation to execute a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement to insure 
employment and other economic benefits to City residents and businesses; 

8. This Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption will terminate unless construction ofthe 
Project begins within two (2) years of the adoption of the within Ordinance. 

C. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Financial Agreement to 
the Tax Assessor and Director of the Division of Local Government Services. 

. D. The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial Agreement and 
Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially the form on file in the 
Office ofthe City Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business Administrator or Corporation 

_ Counsel deems appropriate or necessary. 

E. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

F. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth 
therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of 
the Jersey City Code. 

G. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by law. 

H. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to 
change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section nmnbers in the event that the codification 
of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in 
order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions. 

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted. For purposes of 
advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face and repealed matter by italic. 

APPROVEDMJO LEGAL FORM APPRQVED; |r=PRo\/eo; 
Corporation Counsel 

Bus ess Administrator 

Certification Required Ei
r 

Not Required I]



Rev. 2-06-13 

Long Term Tax_Exemption 
40A:20—1, Q gg, 

» (New Market Rate Res Rental FA) · · · 

Re: 70 Columbus Drive
` 

Approximately 3.47 acres 

Condo Unit 3A within a portion of Block 13003, Lot 1 

Exchange Place North Redevelopment Plan 

PREAMBLE 

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] is made the __day of` __, 2013 by 
and between 70 COLUMBUS URBAN RENEWAL, L.L.C., an urban renewal entity formed and 
qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as 

amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20—1 gt gl., having its principal office at Harborside 

Financial Center, Plaza 10, Suite 1203, 3 Second Street, Jersey City, NJ 07311 [Entity], and the 

CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Mtmicipal Corporation ofthe State of New Jersey, having its principal 
office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 073 02 [City]. 

` 

RECITALS . 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
WHEREAS, the Entity is the Owner pursuant to Master Deed dated November 5, 2005, of 

certain property designated as Condo Unit 3A within a portion of Block 13003, Lot 1, more 

commonly known by the street address of 70 Columbus Drive, Jersey City, and more particularly 
' 

described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, this property is located within the boundaries of the Exchange Place North ’ 

Redevelopment Plan Area; and 
li 

. WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct a fifty (50) story building with approximately five 
hundred fifty-three (553) market rate residential rental units, approximately seventeen thousand one 

hundred thirty—five (17,135) square feet of ground floor retail space and approximately two hundred r 

sixty-three (263) on site parking spaces [Project]; and
C 

WHEREAS, on July 24, 2012, the Project received site plan approval from the Planning 
Board; and

1
.



WHEREAS, on January 7, 2013, the Entity filed an Application with the City for a long 
tenn tax exemption for the Proj ect; and

" 
‘

A 

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance
` 

on
i 

, 2013, the Municipal
A 

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a 

Financial Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings:
_ 

A. Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs: 

1. the current real estate lag tax generates revenue of only approximately 
$52,000 (underlying land assessment for adjacent project as well), whereas, 
the Annual Service charge as estimated, will generate revenue to the City of

" 

an initial amount of approximately $1,571,461; 

2. the Entity has paid the City the sum of $855,203, as an affordable housing 
contribution pursuant to Ordinance 03-112; 

3. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 350 new construction 
jobs and 30 new permanent full time jobs; 

4. the Proj ect should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of existing 
local business and to the creation of new businesses, which cater to the new 
occupants; 

. 5. the Project will further the redevelopment objectives of the Exchange Place 
North Redevelopment Plan, which include [remediation or development of

X 
vacant property] ;

` 

6. the City’s Impact Analysis, on file with the Office ofthe City Clerk, indicates 
that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and 

B. Assessment ofthe Importance ofthe Tax Exemption in obtaining development of the 

project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants: 
_

. 

1. the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will 
make the Proj ect more attractive to investors and lenders needed to finance 
the Project; and 

2. the relative stability and predictability of the service charges will allow the 
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance Y 

to the building over the life ofthe Project, which will attract occupants to the 
` 

Project, insure the likelihood of stabilized rents to tenants and the success of 

2
i

.



the Project; and
i 

3. have a positive impact on the surrounding area. 
W j 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and for 
other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows: 

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
Section 1.1 Governing Law 

This Agreement shall be govemed by the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law, 

as amended and supplemented, 40A:20-1 gt gl., Executive Order of the Mayor, 02-003, 

Disclosure of Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance __ , which authorized the 
execution of this Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies 

upon the facts, data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, 

in granting this tax exemption.
i 

Section 1.2 General Definitions 

. Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in this 

Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

i. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable Profit Rate 

to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c). 

ii. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at 

by adding 1.25% to the amrual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity’s initial permanent 

mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a governmental 

agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per annum basis, shall 

be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage financing, or if the
A 

financing is internal or undertaken by a. related party, the Allowable Profit Rate shall be the greater 

of 12% or the percentage per amium arrived at by adding 1.25% per annum to the interest rate per 
annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate on mortgage financing on 

comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of 40A:20—3 (b) are 
· 

incorporated herein by reference. 

iii. Annual Gross Revenue Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the Proj ect

I

3



of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from third 

parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as user fees or 

for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance costs, including, 

but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal and insurance 

charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party. 

iv. Amrual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each year 

for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the Improve- 

ments, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20—l2. It shall include a payment for all annual excess profit. 

v. Auditor's Report — A complete annual financial statement outlining the financial status 
of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear computation 

ofthe annual Net Profit. The contents ofthe Auditor’s Report shall have been prepared in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the following: a 

balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in stocl<holders’ 

equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial statements 

and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash flows and any other 

items required by Law. The Auditor’s Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such 

principles by a certified public accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State of 

New Jersey. 
_ A 

vi. Certificate of Occupancy — A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued by 
the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-l 33. 

vii. Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of principal and 

interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other 

financing including returns on institutional equity financing and market rate related party debt for 

the proj ect for a period equal to the term of this agreement. 

viii. D| - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation 
imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any applicable 

grace or cure periods. 

ix. |y - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean 70 Columbus Urban 
Renewal, L.L.C., which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.J.S.A. 4OA:20-5. It shall also

4



include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest ofthe Proj ect, provided they are formed 

and operate under the Law. 
‘ 

x. Improvements or Project - Any building, structure or fixture permanently affixed to 

the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement. 

xi. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which the 
City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-129 gt 

$29.- ‘ 

xii. Land Taxes — The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the proj ect 

is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not exempt; 

however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge. ‘ 

xiii. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including approved 

grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax Collector.
Q 

xiv. - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and 

supplemented, 40A:20-1, Q sgi.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003, relating to long
_ 

term tax exemption, as it may be and supplemented; Ordinance 02-075 requiring Disclosure of 

Lobbyist Status and Ordinance 
, which authorized the execution of this Agreement and all 

other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations. ‘ 

xv. Lease Up Period - Shall begin on the first day of the month following the issuance 
of the first Certificate of Occupancy (whether permanent or temporary) for the Project (Lease Up

q 

Date). During the Lease Up Period, the Entity shall pay the sum equal to the estimated Annual 
Service Charge divided by the number of units divided by 12 for each month at the rate of 26 units 

per month for the first month and an additional 31 units each month thereafter through the 18"‘ 

month after Lease Up Date, whether or·not the units are actually occupied or generate revenue. The 
Lease Up Period for the Project expires 18 calendar months after the Lease Up Date. 

xvi. Minimtun Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall be 

the higher of (a) the total taxes levied against all real property in the area covered by the Project in 

the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, which amount the parties agree is 

_ 
approximately $52,000; or (b) following the substantial completion of the Project, the sum of 

$1,571,461 per year, which sum will be prorated only during Lease Up Period and in the years in



` 

which Substantial Completion occurs and this Agreement terminates. 

Following Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annual Service Charge set forth in
‘ 

subsection (b) shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated pursuant
‘ 

to N.J.S.A. 4OA:20—l2 or this Agreement, would be less than the Minimum Annual Service Charge. 

xvii. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues ofthe Entity less all annual operating and 

non-operating expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepted 
» 

_ accounting principles, but:
I 

_ 

(_l) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Amaual Service charges paid pursuant to 

N.J.S.A. 4OA:20-12; (b) all annual payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to N.J.S.A. t 

4OA:20— l 5 or N.J.S.A. 4OA:20-16; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the straight 

line method—equal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs determined in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity whose revenue is 

included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable 

annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is included in the 

computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees, brokerage commissions, 

insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional service 

fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office supplies and payments into repair or 

maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent including but not limited to ground rent by 

the Entity; (f) all debt service; and 

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on 

debt, except interest which is part of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other 

compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or 

officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity. 

xviii. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the singular, 
as well as the plural, as context requires. 

xix. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole or 

in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the Proj ect 

receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether temporary or permanent for 

any portion of the Project.

6
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xx. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation ofthe terms of this Financial 

Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.
i

‘ 

xxi. Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a
l 

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth in 

40A:20-3 (h). There shall be included from Total Proj ect Cost the actual costs incurred by 

the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which are associated 

with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials_ or contaminants in 

accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred including the cost of 

demolishing structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of relocating displaced residents ~ 

or buildings and the clearing of title. The Entity agrees that final Total Project Cost shall not be less 

than its estimated Total Proj ect Cost. 

ARTICLE II - APPROVAL 
Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption 

The City hereby grants its approval for 
a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be 

constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the 

provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known on the 

Official Tax Assessor’s Map ofthe City as: Condo Unit 3A within a portion of Block 13003, Lot 

1, more commonly known by the street address 70 Columbus Drive, Jersey City, and described by 

metes and bounds in Exhibit 1 attached hereto.
P

I 

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity 

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as Exhibit 

4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law; has been ` 

reviewed and approved by the Commissioner ofthe Department of Community Affairs; and has been 

filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson County Clerk, 

all in accordance with 40A:20-5. 

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed 

Entity represents that it will construct a fifty (50) story building with approximately five 

hundred fifty—three (553) market rate residential rental units, approximately seventeen thousand one 

hundred thirty—five (17,13 5) square feet of ground floor retail space and approximately two hundred



‘ 

sixty—three (263) on site parking spaces; all of which is specifically described in the Application 

attached hereto as Exhibit 3. 

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule 
I l 

_

A 

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the Project 

in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5, and in 

compliance with any Redevelopment Agreement.
I 

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control ‘ 

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the property upon which the Proj ect is to be con- 

structed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements will be used, managed and 

controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement and any Redevelopment Agreement. 

Section 2.6 Financial Plan 

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the 

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total 

Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest rates 

to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the terms of any 

mortgage amortization. 

Section 2.- 7 Good Faith Estimate of Initial Sale Prices or Rents 

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rents and other revenue to
p 

the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7. 

‘ ARTICLE III - DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
Section 3.1 Term

l 

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and agreed 

by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of l3 years from the 

date ofthe adoption of Ordinance __ on , 2013, which approved the tax exemption 

or 10 years from the original date of Substantial Completion of the Project or _20_. The 
tax exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulness of the Project and shall 

continue in force only while the Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and 

operating under the Law. 

ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE ,

‘



Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge 

In consideration ofthe tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual payments 
‘ 

to the City for services provided to the Project: 
I ` 

i. City Service Charge: an amountequal to the greater of: the Minimum Amiual Service 

Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 10% ofthe Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 

4; 12% ofthe Annual Gross Revenue for years 5 through 8; and 14% of the Annual Gross Revenue 

for the final years 9 and 10. The Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the 

Entity’s estimates of Annual Gross Revenue, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual
I 

Service Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this Agreement. 

ii. County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the Municipal Annual Service
h 

Charge shall be paid to the City and remitted by the City to the County. 

iii. A Minimum Annual Service Charge shall be due beginning on the effective date of 
this Agreement. The City Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the month following the

I 

Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum 

Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate 

of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until paid. 

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments
_ 

The Amiual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax exemption 

in accordance with 40A:20-l2(b) as follows:

I

`

p 

i.— Stage One: From the lst day ofthe month following Substantial Completion until the 

last day of the 6th year, the Annual Service Charge shall be 10% of Annual Gross Revenue; 

ii. Stage Two: Beginning on the ls‘ day ofthe 7th year following Substantial Completion 

until the last day ofthe 7th year, an amount equal to the greater ofthe Annual Service Charge or 20% 
of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and Improvements; 

g 

iii. Stage Three: Begirming on the lst day of the 8th year following the Substantial 

Completion until the last day of the 8th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service 

Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and 
Improvements; 

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the lst day of the 9th year following Substantial

1
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Completion until the last day of the 9th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service 

Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and
_ 

` 

Improvements. 

v. Final Stage: Begirming on the lst day of the 10th year following Substantial 

Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal_to the greater of the 

Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of 

the land and Improvements.
_

‘ 

Section 4.3 Land Tax 

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax Payments. 

The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the pre—existing 

improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual Service Charge for the 

subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit approximately equal to 1/3 ofthe existing land 

tax (upon filing of the Master Deed). This amount is approximately l/3 of the amount, without 

interest, ofthe Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly installments against the 

Annual Service Charge. Upon filing the Master Deed to create the Condominium Unit for the 

Project, the Entity shall be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual Service Charge for Land 

Tax payment made for the new Condominium Unit for the Project. In any quarter that the Entity 

fails to make any Land Tax Payments when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity 

ineligible for any Land Tax Payment credit against the Annual Service Charge. No credit will be
j 

applied against the Annual Service Charge for a partial payment of Land Taxes. In addition, the

i 

City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the property 

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, 54:5-1, gt gl. and/or declare a Default and
_ 

terminate this Agreement. 

Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments / Interest ’ 

, 
The Entity expressly agrees that the Armual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly

A 

installments on those dates when real estate tax payments
` 

are due; subject, nevertheless, to 
` 

adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year. 

In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under this
t 

agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid



taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full. 

Section 4.5 Administrative Fee 
` 

The Entity shall also pay anannual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the Annual
i 

Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two (2%) percent 

of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on or before 

December 31st of each year, and collected in the same mamier as the Annual Service Charge. 
.

I 

Section 4.6 Affordable Housing Contribution and Remedies 

A. Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sum of $855,203 or $1,500 per unit 

plus $1.50 per square foot of retail space as a contribution. The sum shall be due and payable as 

follows: 

i. 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the ordinance approving the tax exemption; 

ii. 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit for the Project, but no
_ 

later than six months after the date of the Financial Agreement; and 

iii. 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the Project, 

_ 
but no later than twenty—four (24) months after the date of the Financial Agreement. 

Section 4.7 
· 

Material Conditions 

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum
A

, 

Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto, Administrative 

Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this
_ 

Agreement. 

ARTICLE V — PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT 
Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contracting Agreement 

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other 

economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project 

Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8. 

Section 5.2 Project Labor Agreement 

The Entity shall execute a Project Labor Agreement as required by Ordinance 07-123 as it 

exists or as it may be amended from time to time. 

ARTICLE VI — CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY
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Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy
A 

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all 
` 

Certificates of Occupancyin a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with the
l 

‘ 

proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the Certificates 

of Occupancy shall subject the Property to full taxation for the period between the date of Substantial 

Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained. 

Section 6.2 Filing of Certificate of Occupancy 

lt shall be the primary responsibility ofthe Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax Assessor 

and the Tax Collector ai copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.
_ 

Failure ofthe Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the preceding 

paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non—action, taken by the City, including, if 

appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in the absence of 

such filing by the Entity.
` 

ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS 
Section 7.1 Accounting System 

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established and 

administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
9 

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports
I 

A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar year, 

depending on the Entity’s accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the Entity 

shall submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local Govermnent Services
l 

in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor’s Report for the preceding fiscal or calendar 

year. The Auditor’s Report shall include, but not be limited to gross revenue, and the terms and 

interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or construction ofthe Project and such 

details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and to its operation and performance 

_ hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report shall clearly, identify and calculate 
the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year, the excess of which shall be paid to the City 

each year an excess profit is generated.
U 

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the

l2



Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City 

Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Proj ect 
` 

Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project
` 

architect.
.

E 

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and 

each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the 

Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials 

required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the _r;| having an ownership interest in 
the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional information as the 

City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership interests of the
i 

individual persons owning any corporate interest in the Entity. 

Section 7.3 Inspection/Audit 

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other 

facilities of the Proj ect and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by 

representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Government Services in the 

Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit of its 

books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made during 

the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated by the 

Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was in full force and effect.
I 

All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review ofthe Entity’s audits, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part ofthe Entity’s 

Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a 

delinquent service charge. 

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES 
Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves 

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a 

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of| 4OA:20—l5.
_ 

. The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals, and 

reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent ofthe Gross Revenue ofthe Entity
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for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess Net Profits as 

is necessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in 40A:20—15. The reserve 
1 

is to be non¥cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto shall be permitted after the
i 

reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of the preceding year's Gross 

Revenue. Pursuant to 40A:20—14(b) there is expressly excluded from the calculation of 

Gross Revenue and Net Profit in the determination of Excess Profit, any gain realized by the Entity 

on the sale of any condominium unit, whether or not taxable under federal or state law. 

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit 

In the event the Net Profits ofthe Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits for 

such year, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end ofthe year, shall 

pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional annual service charge; provided, however, 

that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The 

calculation of the Entity’s Excess Net Profits shall include those proj ect costs directly attributable 

to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other costs excluded in the definition of Total 

Proj ect Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this Agreement even though those costs may have been deducted
l 

from the project costs for purposes of calculating the annual service charge. 

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve! Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale 

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal
I 

year ofthe Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the amount 

of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the Excess Net
A 

Profit, if any.
A

— 

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION 
Section 9.1 Approval of Sale 

Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance 

of the Municipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the 

Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this 

Agreement provided 1) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject to long term tax 

exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the Law; 
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3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations under 

this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; 5) the Entity is comprised of principals
A 

possessing substantially the same or better business reputation, financial qualifications and credit
P 

worthiness of the Entity; and 6) the Entity pays in full the maximum transfer fee, 2% of the Annual
j 

Service Charge, as permitted by 40A:20-l0(d).

I 

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself 

provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure 

statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure 

statement. 

Section 9.2 Transfer Application Fee 

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in ownership 

or sale or transfer ofthe Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new tax exemption 

application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to the review, 

preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate action on the 

requested assigmnent. The fee shall be non-refundable. 

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE 
Section 10.1 Operation

I 

During the term of this Agreement, the Proj ect shall be maintained and operated in 

accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Proj_ect under this Agreement shall not 

only be terminable as provided by 40A:20-l, g gg., as amended and supplemented, but 
also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall constitute 
a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to 

terminate the tax exemption.
_ 

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative
n 

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-005, 

and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status. The Entity’s 

failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a Default under this 

Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax
l 

exemption.
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ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT 

Section 11.1 Default 

‘ 

Default shall be failure ofthe Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or failure
‘ 

of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable notice, cure or 

grace period. 

Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default 

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the Default 

[Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the alleged 

Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to cure any 

Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However, if, in the 

reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days using reasonable 

diligence, the City will extend the time to cure. · 

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the right 

to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1. 

Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material 

Conditions in Section 4.7, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as 

provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as 

provided in Article XII herein.
I 

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default 
_ V 

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property 

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, 54:5-1, g yl. In order to secure the full and 

timely payment ofthe Annual Service Charge, the City on its own behalf or on behalf ofthe Trustee, 

reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Project Area in 
accordance with Applicable Law, as more fully set forth in this Financial Agreement. 

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising 

out ofthe Entity's failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Administrative 

Fees, Affordable Housing Contribution, or the Annual Service Charges shall not be subject to the 

default procedural remedies as provided in Article Xl herein, but shall allow the City to proceed 

immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided in Article XII. All of the remedies provided 
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in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be 

cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City 

of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the 

Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution or 

Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and owing at the time or which, 

· under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there had been no termination. Further, 

the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service
H 

Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution, Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the 

resort to any other remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as 

a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure 

action or any other specified remedy. r 

. In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article IV, 

the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and 

property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or 

amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to mean 

taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is pertinent to this 

Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land. _

` 

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION 
g _ 

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity
q 

‘ 

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided in 

Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the
4 

Entity [Notice of Termination]. 

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity 

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project, after 
the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project , as of the January ls‘ of 

the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluntary Termination must be received by the City no later 
_

S 

than October ls‘ ofthe tax year preceding the calendar year in which the termination is to occur. As 

of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and dividend 

restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be entitled to any - 

l 7 
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refund, in whole or in part, of any funds paid to the City to obtain the tax exemption, including but 

not limited to the Affordable Housing Contribution. In addition, the due date for all Affordable 

Housing Contribution and any other fees that the Entity agreed to pay under this Agreement, shall 

be accelerated so that all fees to be paid shall be due on January ls‘ as a condition precedent of the 

voluntary termination. 

Section 12.3 Final Accounting 

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the 

Entity or by virtue ofthe provisions ofthe Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Entity 

shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the provisions of 

4OA:20-13 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For purposes of rendering 

a final accounting the termination ofthe Agreement shall be deemed to be the end ofthe fiscal year 

for the Entity. 

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes 

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project shall 

expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and conventionally 

taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable property in the City.
I 

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
Section 13.1 Arbitration

n 

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a dispute 

arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein, either party 

may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to settle and resolve 
the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law. In the event the

I

A 

Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the dispute to the 

American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance with its rules and 
regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law. The 
cost for the arbitration shall be borne by the Entity. The parties agree that the Entity may not file an 

» action in Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association_ unless the Entity has first paid in full 

all charges defined in Section 4.8 as Material Conditions. 

Section 13.2 Appeal of Assessment

I
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In calculating the amount of “staged" tax adjustments that is, taxes otherwise due, pursuant 

to Section 4.2 and 40A:20—l2, either party may file an appeal of the conventional
` 

assessment to determine the value of land and improvements.
A 

‘
A 

ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER 
Section 14.1 Waiver 

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or 

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to 

terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided herein. 

Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City’s right to audit or recover any amount which the 

City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION 
Section 15.1 Defined

U 

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in any 

action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this 

Agreement and/or the provisions of 4OA:20-l g @1,, the Entity shall indemnify and hold 
the City harmless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable attorneys’ ‘

i 

fees and costs, through trial and all stages of any appeal, including the cost of enforcing this 

indemnity) arising out of Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives all statutory or 

common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this indenrmitication. 

The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City maintains the right 

to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the expense thereof to be 

borne by the City. 

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE 
Section 16.1 Certified Mail 

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by certified 

or registered mail, return receipt requested.
I 

Section 16.2 Sent by City 

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:
I 

70 Columbus Urban Renewal, L.L.C.
A
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Harborside Financial Center ‘ 

Plaza 10 — Suite 1203 ‘ ’ 

3 Second Street 
‘ ` 

Jersey City, NJ 07311
`

` 

andi 

Connell Foley, LLP 
Harborside Financial Center 

2510 Plaza Five · 

» Jersey City, NJ 07311 
Attn: Charles J. Harrington, III, Esq. 

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise. 

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this 

Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such 

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity. 

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity 

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to: 

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk c 

City Hall 

280 Grove Street ‘ `

‘ 

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302, 

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector ‘ 

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice to 

the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the 

Property’s Block and Lot number). 

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY 

Section 17.1 Severability
` 

lf any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a Material 

Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 

Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or circumstances other 

than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each . 

term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent 

permitted by law.
L
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lf a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and 

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each other 

to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated by the 

parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re—execution of 

this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the parties and the 

Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would modify a Material 

Condition, the amount ofthe periodic adjustments or any other term of this Agreement which would 

result in any economic reduction or loss to the City. ` 

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS 
Section 18.1 Construction

. 

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws ofthe State of 

New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring construction 
against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for both the Entity 

and the City have combined in their review and approval of same. 

Section 18.2 Conflicts
i 

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language 

contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict 

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail. · 

Section 18.3 Oral Representations 

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are not 

contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement, and the 

Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and there shall be no modifications 

thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties and delivered to 

each party. 

Section 18.4 Entire Document 

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance ofthe Municipal Council approving this 

Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof 

Section 18.5 Good Faith 

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the City.
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. ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS 

Section 19 Exhibits 

J 

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at length » 

J 

herein:· 

l. Metes and Bounds description of the Project; 

2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement; 
` 

3. The Application with Exhibits;
I 

4. Certificate of the Entity; 

5. Estimated Construction Schedule; 

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Proj ect;
I 

7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents; 

8. ~ Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;
' 

9. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs. 

10. Entity’s Deed 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day 
and year first above written. 

WITNESS: . 70 COLUMBUS URBAN RENEWAL, L.L.C. 

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY 

ROBERT BYRNE JOHN KELLY 
CITY CLERK BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR 

` 
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2-06-13 

PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT 

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made as of the day of___, 
20l3,between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] and 70 COLUMBUS URBAN RENEWAL, 
L.L.C., having its principal office at Harborside Financial Center, Plaza 10, Suite 1203, 3 Second 
Street, Jersey City, NJ 07311. Recipient agrees as follows: 

I. Definitions:
_ 

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have the following 
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

. 

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee, 
including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in 
whole or in part, this agreement. 

2. "Contractor" means any party performing or offering to perform a prime contract on behalf 
of the Recipient. 

3. "DEO" means the Division of Economic Opportunity under the Department of 
Administration, located at 280 Grove Street, lS‘ Floor, Jersey City, NJ 07302, Telephone 
#(201) 547-561 1. DEO is in charge of Proj ect Employment & Contracting coordination and · 

monitoring on projects receiving abatements. 

4. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project which 
requires approval of the Municipal Council and which reduces the annual amount of taxes 
otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate; 

5. "Employment" means any job or position during the construction and operational phase of 
y

j 

the project. It includes positions created as a result of internal promotions, terminations, or 
expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by new employees. 
However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's existing work force 
are not covered positions under this agreement. 

6. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City. 

7. Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program means the group within DEO 
under the Department of Administration responsible for collecting local and minority 
business contracts and capability information. This group operates the Supplier Alert service 
which is to be used by the Recipient to meet their good faith business contracting and 
construction subcontracting goals. 

8. "Minority" means a person who is African, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian defined as
J 

follows:
_
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a) "African-American" means a person having origins in any ofthe black racial groups 
of Africa. 

b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South 
A l 

American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding, however,
` 

persons of European origin. 

c) "Asian" means a person having origins in any ofthe original people of the Far East, 
Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands. 

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of 
North America who maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or 
community recognition. 

9. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey 
City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a Minority or 
woman. 

10. "Non—Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent 
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of LaborMarket, and 
Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City Clerk. 

11. "Permanent J obs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent, 
temporary, part time or seasonal. 

12. "Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified inthe 
contract. 

13. The "Proj ect Employment & Contracting Coordinator" is a member ofthe DEO staff under 
the Department of Administration who is in charge of coordinating Project Employment& 
Contracting projects. Contractors and developers engaged in projects covered by Project 
Employment & Contracting Agreements will direct inquiries to the Project Employment& 
Contracting Coordinator. 

14. The "Project Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor" is a member of the DEO 
staff under the Department of Administration directly under the command of the Project 
Employment & Contracting Coordinator, who is in charge of monitoring the site, collecting 
the reports and documentation, and other day—to—day Project Employment & Contracting 
housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement. 

15. The "Proj ect Employment & Contracting Of`ficer" or "Officer" is an employee of the 
Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in compliance 
with the Recipient’s Project Employment & Contracting agreement. 

1 6. "Recipient" means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or other 
entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which receives

V
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an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent of the 
Recipient. 

17. "The Registry” or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the City
F 

or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses, including
i 

Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts. 

18. "Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that 
is part of a prime contract. 

19. 
" Subcontractor" means a third party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform under 
a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract. 

20. "Substantial Completion" means the determination by the City that the Project, in whole or 
in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the 
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion ofthe 
Proj ect.

_

l 

II. Purpose: 

_ 

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunities for City residents, 
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses, especially 
Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or relocating to the City 
who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined to accomplish that goal 
by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good Faith, as defined herein, and 

· discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent mandated by State and Federal law and 
so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City 
acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. 

III. Good Faith Goals:
S 

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the goals 
set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the Recipient will not 
be required to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set forth in Section VI, 2., A—J 
(Permanent Jobs). 

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a work 
force representing fifty—one (51%) percent City residents, iifty—one (51%) percent of whom are 
residents who are Minorities and, in Non-Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of whom 
are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more than one 
category, 

2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal 
of awarding twenty (20%) percent ofthe dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fifty—one 
(51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. If fifty—one (51%) 
percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses cannot be obtained, that percentage of
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contracts must still be applied to local vendors. 

IV. Recipient Designee: ·

l 

The Recipient shall designate a principal officer of its firm to be responsible for 
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to 
discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be designated 
as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer. 

The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the “Project Employment& 
Contracting Compliance Officer" to the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to any 
preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This principle 
officer should also be present for all preconstruction meetings. 

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the "Proj ect Employment & Contracting Compliance 
Officer" to the employees of the Recipient’s company. An example of this letter can be found in 
Appendix AZ 

V_. Term: - 

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-terminus with the effective period ofthe tax 
exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council adopted 
Ordinance . 

, approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of 13 years from the date 
ofthe adoption of that Ordinance or l0 years from the date of Substantial Completion ofthe Proj ect. 

VI. Good Faith Defined: 

1. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions: 

A. Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of a Recipient’s 
permanent workforce, the Proj ect Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient will sit down 
with the head of the Registry to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent workforce. 
The following issues should be covered in this meeting: 

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiring process. 
ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled. 
iii) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs. 
iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer. 
v) the Recipient’s goals and how it plans to meet these goals. 
vi) any other issues which need to be addressed by the Registry. 

1. Subcontractor Notification —- If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of its 
permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the 
subcontracting party that it will abide by the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Agreement before 
said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The Recipient must forward a copy ofthe 
signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An example of this
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signed acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E. t

V

\ 

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting —-_ Each subcontractor hired to staff 
permanent job positions must appoint a Proj ect Employment & Contracting Officer to meet with the 
head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2.A(I-vi).

‘ 

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the same 
requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A. 

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan——Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken place, 
the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future permanent employment 
needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the Pre-Hiring Awareness Meeting, list 
estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment goals commensurate with 
the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the Recipient plans to meet these 
goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix J. ‘ 

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any
' 

employees, the Recipient or the Recipient’s subcontractor shall provide the Registry with a written 
notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum qualifications, rate of pay, hours 
of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective terms which 
will enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient. 

D. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified 
applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs in a 
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must fumish the Project 
Employment & Contracting Coordinator in DEO under the Department of Administration with a 
copy of this advertisement.

J 

E. Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it 
from the Registry, to be maintained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is — 

required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the advertisement. 

F. Semi-Armual Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-annual 
employment reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be provided 
by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident, minority 
resident or woman resident. The report will explain in writing the reasons why any qualified 

‘ 

applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertisement is required, any qualified person 
responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example of this report is found in Appendix K. 

G. The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files and 
records including payroll and persomrel information reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy 
of the information set forth in the semi-armual reports. 

H. The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the site 
to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi- 
annual reports.

p
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I. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such 
reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to implement the 
purposes of this agreement. 

A 

J. Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this
` 

Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service, maintenance, 
security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whosepersormel will be 
assigned to the Recipient project. 

2. Business Contracting 

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions: 

l) Solicitation of Businesses: 

a) One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must forward 
a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Acting Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's 
Business Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any

“ 

construction or building operating goods, services and subcontracting opportunities. 
An example of this letter can be found in Appendix D. 

b) After submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether the bid was accepted 
or rejected, and state the reason why. An example of this documentation can be found , 

in Appendix D2. 

i) Semi—Annual Purchasing Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi- 
annual purchasing reports which will include a list of all contracts awarded 
over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these contracts. The 
reports will specify the number and dollar amount of contracts awarded to

_ 

Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. An 
example of these reports can be found in Appendix L. 

. ii) No Utilization of Local and Local Minority Vendors As Conduits For 
Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned: 

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors that 
are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by DEO under the Department of Administration 
of a Recipient, either knowingly or unknowingly, using the masthead of a local or minority owned 
business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it should not, will 
immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section VIII (d) below. 

‘ 

3. Summation of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement 

1. Letter Designating Proj ect Employment & Contracting Officer (Appendix A) 
2. Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Officer to Recipient’s Employees 

(App-) AZ

I
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3. Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and 
Residential Vendors from Acting Mayor J erramiah T. Healy’s Business Cooperative Program 

(Appendix D) ‘ 

4. Documentation of Bid Submission (Appendix D2) - 

5. 
L 

Letter Expressing Proj ect Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors/ 

Subcontractors (Appendix E) 
6. Example of Bi-Weekly Site Visit Report (Appendix I) 
7. Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix J) 
8. Example of Semi—Annual Employment Report (Appendix K) 
9. Example of Semi—Annual Purchasing Report (Appendix L) 

VII. Notices of Violation: 

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there is 
non—compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The Advisory 
Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis ofthe alleged violation. The Recipient shall 
have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an Advisory Notice can 
be found in Appendix M. 

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been 

corrected to the satisfaction ofthe City within four (4) working days, the City shall then issue 

a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient detail 
the basis ofthe alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3) working days 
to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in Appendix N. 

3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may 
- be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and so 

advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City. » 

4. 
I 

Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may 
° 

be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into 
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to 
achieve compliance. If` Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the violation 
will be considered not corrected. 

5. Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportunity for a meeting with 
the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance; or may 

- respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the-Recipient has made timely submission 
of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be requested no later than 
two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written explanation. 

6. 
‘ 

Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request 
additional infomation from appropriate parties as is considered necessary to determine 
whether the alleged violation has occurred. 

7. Determination of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient
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is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirty days after the 

delivery of the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determines that the Recipient 

is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided below.

l 

VIII. Liquidated Damages: 
A ` ‘ 

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material breach 
of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of this agreement 

by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical certainty. 

Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a material breach of any ofthe above terms 

and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation, the City will be 

entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts: 

a) failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement 

(Construction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): an amount equal to Three 

(3%) percent increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes; 

b) failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports (all 
categories): an amount equal to Two (2%) percent increase in the estimated annual 
payment in lieu of taxes. 

c) the use of the local or local minority business’ masthead for labor or work supplied 

by a non local or local minority vendor: An amount equal to Five (5%) percent 
increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes. 

IX. Commercial Tenants at the Project Site: 

l. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a 
letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as Appendix 
O. 

j

I 

2. The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about the 
composition of the work force of each tenant. The information solicited will be 
submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall provide 
the Recipient with a questionnaire in the form attached as Appendix P. 

3. The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment& 
‘ 

Contracting Monitor no later than October 3l of each year. 

_ 

4. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Proj ect Site a 

_ 

Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q. 
X. Notices 

Any notice required hereunder tolbe sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

j
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1. When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to: 

70 Columbus Urban Renewal, L.L.C. r 

Harborside Financial Center 1 

A 

Plaza 10, Suite 1203 
A A l 

3 Second Street
l

_ 

Jersey City, NJ 07311 
and 

Connell Foley, LLP · 

- Harborside Financial Center 

2510 Plaza Five 

Jersey City, N.J. 07311-4029 

Att: Charles J. Harrington, III, Esq. 

2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:
` 

Project Employment & Contracting Monitor 
Department of Administration 

Division of Economic Opportunity 
280 Grove Street- 1s' Floor 
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; unless prior to 
giving of such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in 
writing. — 

XI. Adoption, Approval, Modification: 

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by thel 

Municipal Council. 

XII. Controlling Regulations and Laws: 

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good 
Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the Recipient and its 
contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts with any collective 
bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as the Recipient provides 
the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective bargaining agreement. 

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if the Recipient has entered into 
a Proj ect Labor Agreement with a Labor Organization, then any and all sections of this Agreement 
pertaining to construction jobs and the construction portion of any Project, are null and void and may 
be disregarded by the Recipient. In the event the Recipient has entered into a Project Labor 
Agreement, then this Agreement shall become effective upon Substantial Completion ofthe Proj ect. 
In the event there are any conflicts between this Agreement and any Proj ect Labor Agreement, then

n
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the Project Labor Agreement shall govern. Wherever possible, this Agreement shall be interpreted
V 

consistently with the Proj ect Labor Agreement.
` 

ATTEST: 
, CITY OF JERSEY CITY 

Robert Byrne John Kelly
_ 

City Clerk Business Administrator 

WITNESS: ·

A 

70 COLUMBUS URBAN RENEWAL, L.L.C. 

Secretary President

L
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]E,RSEY CITY, N.], 

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-015 

ORDINANCE APPROVING A 10 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MARKET RATE 
TITLEMIXED USE RENTAL PROJECT TO BE coNsTRUcTEB BY MARBELLA TOWER 

URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES SOUTH, L.L.C., AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, 
PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 E SEQ. 
THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: 

WHEREAS, Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., an urban renewal entity, 
formed and qualified to do business under the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 
1992, as amended and supplemented, N..I.S.A. 40A:20-1 gt gg. [Entity]; and 

WHEREAS, the Entity owns certain property known as Block 11603, Lot 45.01, on the City’s 
Official Tax map, consisting of approximately .435 acres, and more commonly known by the street 
address of 401 Washington Boulevard, and more specifically described by metes and bounds, in the

` 

application [Property]; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the Harsimus Cove Station Redevelopment Plan 
formerly known as Hudson Exchange Redevelopment Plan Area as required by N.J.S.A. 40A:20—4 
and N.J.S.A. 40A:l2A—5(g); and 

WHEREAS, the Entity has applied for a 20 year 10% Amtual Gross Revenue long term tax 
exemption for a multiple dwelling, market rate residential rental project, to consist of a thirty-nine 

(3 9) story building with approximately three hundred eleven (311) residential rental units, 

approximately six hundred forty one (641) square feet of ground floor retail space and will own by 
a perpetual easement to utilize approximately one hundred sixty-three (163) parking spaces in an 

existing parking garage located in Block 11603, Lot 45.01, on the City’s Tax Map and more 
commonly known as 401 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, N.J. [Project]; and 

WHEREAS, the Project received a site plan approval from the Planning Board on May 15, 2012; 
and 

WHEREAS, as the result of negotiations before the Tax Abatement Committee, the Entity agreed 
to accept a shorter term and an incrementally higher service charge; and 

WHEREAS, Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., has agreed to: 

1. pay the greater of (i) the Minimum Annual Service Charge or (ii)10% of the Annual Gross 
Revenue for years 1 through 4; 12% ofthe Annual Gross Revenue for years 5 through 8; and 
14% of the Annual Gross Revenue for the years 9 and 10, which initial sum is estimated to 
be $1,146,187; all of which shall be subject to statutory staged increases over the term ofthe 
tax exemption; and

` 

2. pay an annual sum equal to 2% of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge as an 
Administrative Fee; and

l 

3. provide employment and other economic opportunities for City residents and businesses; and|.
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4. pay to the City, for remittance to Hudson County, an amount equal to 5% of the Annual 
Service Charge upon receipt of that charge; and 

5. pay the sum of $467,462 to the City’s Affordable Housing Trust Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the relative benefits of the project outweigh the cost 
of the tax exemption, for the following reasons:

L 

1. the current real estate taxes generate revenue of only approximately $15,744 whereas, the 
Annual Service Charge as estimated, will initially generate revenue of more than $1,146,1 87 
to the City and an additional sum of approximately $57,309 to Hudson County; 

2. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 400 jobs during construction and 18 
new permanent jobs; 

3. the Proj ect will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of businesses in the 
surrounding area; 

4. the Project will further the overall redevelopment objectives of the Harsimus Cove Station 
Redevelopment Plan formerly known as Hudson Exchange Redevelopment Plan; 

5. the City’s Impact Analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, indicates that the 

benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the tax exemption is important in obtaining · 

development of the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants for the 
following reasons: 

1. the relative stability and predictability ofthe Amrual Service Charges will make the Project 
more attractive to investors needed to finance the Project; 

2. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will allow the owner 
to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance to the building over 
the life of the Project, which will attract tenants to the Project and insure the likelihood of 

. the success ofthe Project; and 

WHEREAS, Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., has initially complied with 
Executive Order 2002-005 concerning "Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status" by filing an 
appropriate letter in the Office of the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., has agreed to comply with 
the City of Jersey City’s Ordinance 07-123, Requiring Apprenticeships and Project Labor 
Agreements; and 

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2013, the Tax Exemption Committee recommended the approval of 
the tax exemption to the Mayor by a unanimous vote. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council ofthe City of Jersey City 
that: 

A. The application of Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., an urban 
renewal company, formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax 
Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 4OA:20-1 g gl. a copy of which " 

is on file in the office ofthe City Clerk, for Block 1 1603, Lot 45.01, more commonly known by the 
street address of 401 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, N.J., more specifically described by metes _ 

and bounds in the application is hereby approved.
" 

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax exemption 
Financial Agreement and a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement. The Financial 
Agreement shall include at a minimum the following terms and conditions:
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1. Term: the earlier of 15 years from the adoption ofthe within Ordinance or 10 years from the 
date the project is Substantially Complete; 

2. Annual Service Charge: each year the greater of: 

· - 

(a) the Minimum Annual Service Charge equal to $1,146,1 87 upon Proj ect Completion, - 

whether or not the Project is occupied; or 

(b) 10% of the Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 4; 12% ofthe Annual Gross
A 

Revenue for years 5 through 8; and 14% of the Annual Gross Revenue for the final 
years 9 and 10, which initial sum is estimated to be $1,146,187, and which shall be 
subject to statutory staged increases during the term of the tax exemption. 

3. Administrative Fee: 2% of the prior year’s Annual Service Charge; 

4. County Payment: 5% ofthe Annual Service Charge to the City for remittance by the City 
to Hudson County; 

5. Project: A new multiple dwelling, market rate residential rental project, which will consist 
of a thirty-nine (39) story building with approximately three hundred eleven (311) market 
rate residential rental units, approximately six hundred forty one (641) square feet of ground 
floor retail space and with a perpetual easement to utilize approximately one hundred sixty- 
three (163) parking spaces in an existing parking garage; 

6. Affordable Housing Trust Fund: $1,500 per unit or $466,500 and $1.50 per square foot x 641 
square feet or $962, for a total of $467,462; 

7. An obligation to execute a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement to insure 
employment and other economic benefits to City residents and businesses. 

C. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Financial Agreement to 
the Tax Assessor and Director of the Division of Local Government Services. 

D. The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial Agreement and 
Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially the form on file in the 
Office ofthe City Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business Administrator or Corporation 
Counsel deems appropriate or necessary. 

E. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

l 

F. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth 
therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of 
the Jersey City Code. 

G. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by law. 

H. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to 
change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification 
of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in 
order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions. 

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted. For purposes of 
advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face and repealed matter by italic. 
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Long Term Tax Exemption 
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, Q _sQj. ` 

i (New Market Rate Res Rental FA)·e‘‘ 
Re: 401 Washington Boulevard 

Approximately .435 acres 

Block 11603, Lot 45.01 

Harsimus Cove Station Redevelopment Plan 
Redevelopment Plan formerly known as Hudson 
Exchange Redevelopment Plan 

PISEAMBLE 

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] is made the day of_, 2013 by 

and between MARBELLA TOWER URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES SOUTH, L.L.C., an 
urban renewal entity formed and qualified to do business under the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax 

Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20—1 Q gl., having its 
principal office at c/o Roseland Property Company, 233 Canoe Brook Road, Short Hills, NJ 07078 

[Entity], and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, 
having its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 [City]. 

RECITALS 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
WHEREAS, the Entity is the Owner pursuant to Deed of certain property designated as 

Block 1 1603 , Lot 45.01 , more commonly known by the street address of 40 l Washington Boulevard, . 

. Jersey City, and more particularly described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 

1 to this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, this property is located within the boundaries of the Harsimus Cove Station 
Redevelopment Plan formerly known as Hudson Exchange Redevelopment Plan Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct a thirty-nine (3 9) story building with 

approximately three hundred eleven (311) market rate residential rental units, approximately six 

hundred forty one (641) square feet of ground floor retail space and will own a perpetual easement 

to utilize approximately one hundred sixty-three (163) parking spaces in an existing parking garage 

which shall beincorporated into the Proj ect [Proj ect]; and -
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WHEREAS, on May 15, 2012, the Project received site plan approval from the Planning 

Board; and 

WHEREAS, on November 28, 2012, the Entity filed an Application with the City for a long 

term tax exemption for the Proj ect; and 

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance on , 2013, the Municipal 

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a 

_ 
Financial Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings: 

A. Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs: 

1. the current real estate tax generates revenue of only approximately $15,744, 
whereas, the Annual Service charge as estimated, will generate revenue to 
the City of an initial amount of approximately $1,146,187 in the first year; 

2. the Entity has agreed to pay the City the sum of $467,462, as an affordable 
` 

housing contribution pursuant to Ordinance 03-112; 

3. it is expected that the Proj ect will create approximately 400 new construction 
jobs and 18 new permanent full time jobs; 

‘ 

4. the Proj ect should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of existing 
local business and to the creation of new businesses, which cater to the new 
occupants; 

5.

I 

the Project will further the redevelopment objectives of the Harsimus Cove 
Station Redevelopment Plan formerly known as Hudson Exchange 
Redevelopment Plan, which include [remediation or development of vacant 
property]; 

6. the City’s Impact Analysis, on file with the Office ofthe City Clerk, indicates 
that the benefits of the Proj ect outweigh the costs to the City; and 

B. Assessment ofthe Importance ofthe Tax Exemption in obtaining development of the 

project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants:
_ 

1. the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will 
make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders needed to finance 
the Project; and 

2. the relative stability and predictability of the service charges will allow the
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owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance 
to the building over the life ofthe Project, which will attract occupants to the 
Proj ect, insure the likelihood of stabilized rents to tenants and the success of

I 

I

` 

the Proj ect; and 

3. have a positive impact on the surrounding area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and for 

other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows: 

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 1.1 Governing Law 

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law, 

as amended and supplemented, 40A:20-l g sggt., Executive Order ofthe Mayor, 02-003, 
Disclosure of Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance _ , which authorized theA 

execution of this Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies 

upon the facts, data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, 

in granting this tax exemption. 

Section 1.2 General Definitions
l 

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in this 

Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

i. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable Profit Rate · 

to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c). 

ii. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at 

by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity’s initial permanent 

mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a governmental 

agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per annum basis, shall 

be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage financing, or if the
_ 

” 

financing is internal or undertaken bya related party, the Allowable Profit Rate shall be the greater 

of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per annum to the interest rate per 

annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate on mortgage financing on 

comparable improvements in ‘Hudson County. The provisions of 40A:20-3(b) are

i
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incorporated herein by reference.
‘ 

iii. Annual Gross Revenue Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the Project 

of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants (not including tenant security 

deposits) or income or fees from third parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or 

received for parking, or as user fees or for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for . 

operating or maintenance costs, including, but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other 

utilities, garbage removal and insurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third 

party, except for customary operating expenses of commercial tenants such as utilities, insurance and 

taxes (including payments in lieu of taxes) which shall be deducted from Gross Revenue based on · t 

the actual amount of such costs incurred.
I 

iv. Armual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each year 

for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the Improve- 

ments, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 4OA:20—l2. It shall include a payment for each year’s amrual excess 

profit, if any. 

v. Auditor's Report - A complete amrual financial statement outlining the financial status 
of the Proj ect, which shall also include a certification of Total Proj ect Cost and clear computation 

ofthe amrual Net Profit. The contents ofthe Auditor’ s Report shall have been prepared in conformity 

. with generally accepted accounting principles on a cash basis and shall contain at a minimum the 

following: a balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in 

stockholders’ equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial 

statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash flows and 

any other items required by Law. The Auditor’s Report shall be certified as to its conformance with
_ 

such principles by a certified public accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the 

State of New Jersey.
_ 

vi. Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued by 
the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D—l33. 

vii. Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of principal and 

interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other 

financing including returns on institutional equity financing and market rate related party debt for 
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the Proj ect for a period equal to the tenn of this Agreement. 

viii. — Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation 

imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any applicable
A 

grace or cure periods.
_ 

ix. — The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean Marbella Tower Urban 

Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to 

40A:20—5. It shall also include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, 

provided they are formed and operate under the Law. 

x. Improvements or Project 
—i 

Any building, structure or fixture permanently affixed to 

the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement. 

xi. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which the 
City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-l to 54:5-129 pt 

gi. 

xii. Land Taxes — The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the proj ect 

is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not exempt; 

however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Amiual Service Charge. 

xiii. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including approved 

grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax Collector. 

xiv. @ - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and 
supplemented, 4OA:20—l, Q gl.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003, relating to long 
term tax exemption, as it may be supplemented; Ordinance 02-075 requiring Disclosure of Lobbyist 

Status and Ordinance 
, which authorized the execution of this Agreement and all other 

relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations. 

xv. Lease Up Period - Shall begin on the first day of the month following the issuance 

of the first Certificate of Occupancy (whether permanent or temporary) for the Project (Lease Up 
Date).- During the Lease Up Period, the Entity shall pay the sum equal to the estimated`Am1ual 

Service Charge divided by the number of units in the Project divided by 12 for each month at the rate 

of l7 units per month for the first month and an additional l7 units each month thereafter through 

the l8"' month after Lease Up Date, whether or not the units are actually occupied or generate



revenue. The Lease Up Period for the Proj ect expires 18 calendar months after the Lease Up Date. 

xvi. Minimum Annual Service Charge — The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall be
l 

the g| of: (a) the amount ofthe total taxes levied against all real property in the area covered by 1 

the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, which amount the 

parties agree is $15,744; (b) the sum of$1,146,187 per year, which sum will be prorated only during 

Lease Up Period and in the years in which Substantial Completion occurs and this Agreement 

terminates. 

Following Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annual Service Charge set forth in 

subsection (b) shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated pursuant 

to N.J.S.A. 4OA:20—12 or this Agreement, would be less than the Minimum Annual Service Charge. 

xvii. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all annual operating and 

non—operating expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, but: 

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid pursuant to 

40A:20—12; (b) all annual payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to ‘ 

40A:20-1 5 or N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 6; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the straight 

line method-equal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs determined in
j 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity whose revenue is 

included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable 

annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is included in the 

computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees, brokerage commissions, 

insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional service 

fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office supplies and payments into repair or 

maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent including but not limited to ground rent by 

the Entity; (f) all Debt Service; and
°

I 

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on 

debt, except interest which is part of Debt Service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other 

compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or 

officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity.
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xviii. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the singular, 

as well as the plural, as context requires. 

xix. Substantial Completion — The determination by the City that the Project, in whole or 

in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the Proj ect 

- receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether temporary or permanent for 

any portion of the Proj ect. ~ 

xx. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation ofthe terms of this Financial 

Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption. 

xxi. Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a 

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Proj ect, which categories of cost are set forth in 

40A:20—3 (h). There shall be included in Total Project Cost the actual costs incurred by the 

_ 
Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which are associated with 

site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or contaminants in accordance 

with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred including the cost of demolishing 

structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of relocating displaced residents or buildings 

and the clearing of title, if applicable.
n 

ARTICLE II - APPROVAL
` 

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption 

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be 

constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the 

provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known on the - 

Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City as: Block 11603, Lot 45.01, more commonly known by 
the street address 401 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, and described by metes and bounds in 

Exhibit l attached hereto. 

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity 

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of F ormation is attached hereto as Exhibit 

4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law; has been 

reviewed and approved by the Commissioner ofthe Department of Community Affairs; and has been 

filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson County Clerk,

7



all in accordance with 4OA:20-5. 

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed 
` 

Entity represents that it will construct a thirty—nine (39) story building with approximately
` 

three hundred eleven (31 1) market rate residential rental units, approximately six hundred forty one 

(641) square feet of ground floor retail space and will own a perpetual easement to utilize 

approximately one hundred sixty-three (163) parking spaces in an existing parking garage which 

parking spaces shall be incorporated into the Project; all of which is specifically described in the 

Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3.
1 

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule 

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the Proj ect 

in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5, and in 

compliance with any Redevelopment Agreement. 

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control 

The Entity represents that it is the owner ofthe property upon which the Project is to be con- 

` 

structed, and that it owns a perpetual easement to utilize approximately one hundred sixty—three 

(163) parking spaces in an existing parking garage. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the 

Improvements will be used, managed and controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement. 

Section 2.6 Financial Plan 

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the 

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total 

Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Proj ect Cost, the source of funds, the interest rates 

to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid—in capital, and the terms of any 

mortgage amortization. 

Section 2.7 Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents 

The Entity represents that its good faith projections ofthe initial rents and other revenue to 

the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7. 

— ARTICLE III - DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
Section 3.1 Term 

‘ 

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and agreed

-



by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of 15 years from the 

date ofthe adoption of Ordinance __ on , 2013 , which approved the tax exemption
` 

or 10 years from the original date of Substantial Completion ofthe Proj ect. The tax exemption shall
l 

only be effective during the period of usefulness ofthe Proj ect and shall continue in force only while 

the Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and operating under the Law. 

ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE 
Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge 

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual payments 

to the City for services provided to the Proj ect: 

i. City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of : the Minimum Annual Service
V 

Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 10% ofthe Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 

4; 12% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 5 through 8; and 14% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 

9 and 10 of this Agreement. The Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the
l 

Entity’s estimates of Annual Gross Revenue, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual 

Service Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this Agreement. 

ii. County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the Municipal Annual Service 

Charge shall be paid to the City and remitted by the City to the County. 

iii. The Minimum Annual Service Charge set forth in Section 1.2(xvi)(a) shall be due
I 

beginning on the effective date of this Agreement. Beginning- on the first day of the month after 

Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annual Service Charge set forth in Section l.2(xvi)(b) shall 

be due in any year where it exceeds the Annual Service Charge. The City Service Charge shall be 

due on the first day of the month following the Substantial Completion of the Proj ect. In the event 
P 

the Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, 

the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax
I 

liens on land until paid. 

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments ‘ 

The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax exemption 

in accordance with 40A:20—12(b) as follows: 

i. Stage One: From the lst day ofthe month following Substantial Completion until the
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last day of the 6th year, the Annual Service Charge shall be 10% of Annual Gross Revenue; 

ii. Stage Two: Beginning on the 15* day ofthe 7th year following Substantial Completion
I 

until the last day ofthe 7th year, an amount equal to the greater ofthe Annual Service Charge or 20%
I 

of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and Improvements; 

iii. Stage Three: Beginning on the lst day of the 8th year following the Substantial 

Completion until the last day of the 8th year, an amount equal to the greater ofthe Annual Service 

Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and 

Improvements; 

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the lst day of the 9th year following Substantial 

Completion until the last day of the 9th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service 

Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and 

Improvements.
I 

v. Final Stage: Beginning on the lst day of the 10th year following Substantial 

Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the 

Amtual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of 

the land and Improvements. 

Section 4.3 Land Tax 

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax Payments. 

The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the pre—existing . 

improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual Service Charge for the 

subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount, without interest, of the Land 

Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly installments against the Annual Service 

Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax Payments when due and owing, 

such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land Tax Payment credit against the 

Amiual Service Charge until the Land Taxes are paid in full. No credit will be applied against the 

Annual Service Charge for a partial payment of Land Taxes until the land taxes are paid in full. In 

addition, the City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against 

the property pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, 54:5-1, Q gg. and/or declare a 
» Default and terminate this Agreement.
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Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments / Interest 

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly 

installments on thoseu dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to 

adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year. 

In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under this
I 

Agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid 

taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full. ` 

Section 4.5 Administrative Fee 

The Entity shall also pay an annual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the Annual 

Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two (2%) percent 

of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on or before 

December 31st of each year, and collected in the same mamier as the Annual Service Charge. 

Section 4.6 Affordable Housing Contribution and Remedies
F 

A. Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sum of $467,462 or $1,500 per 

residential unit plus $1.50 per square foot of retail space as a contribution. The sum shall be due 

and payable as follows: 

i. 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the ordinance approving the tax exemption; 

ii. 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit for the Project, but no 

later than six months after the date of the Financial Agreement; and 

iii. 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the Project, 

but no later than twenty—four (24) months after the date of the Financial Agreement. ‘ 

Section 4.7 Material Conditions 

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum 

Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto, Administrative 

Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this 

Agreement.
_ 

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT 
Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contracting Agreement 

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other

11



economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project 

Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8. 
V 

Section 5.2 Project Labor Agreement_ `

l 

The Entity shall execute a Project Labor Agreement as required by Ordinance 07-123 as it 

exists or as it may be amended from time to time. 

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY 

Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy 

t 

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all 

Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with the
i 

· proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the Certificates 

of Occupancy shall subject the Property to full taxation for the period between the date of Substantial 

Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained. . 

Section 6.2 Filing of Certificate of Occupancy 

It shall be the primary responsibility ofthe Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax Assessor 

and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.
A 

Failure ofthe Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the preceding 

paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City, including, if 

appropriateretroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to bedue, in the absence of 

such filing by the Entity. 

ARTICLE VII — ANNUAL REPORTS 
Section 7.1 Accounting System

S 

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established and 

administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports 

r A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar year, 

depending on the Entity’s accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the Entity 

shall submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council_and the NJ Division of Local Govemment Services 

in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor’s Report for the preceding fiscal or calendar 

year. The Auditor’s Report shall include, but not be limited to gross revenue, and the terms and

12



interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or construction ofthe Project and such 

details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and to its operation and performance 

hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report shall clearly identify and calculate 

the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year, plus the excess net profit, if any, in accordance 

with Article VII hereof. Any excess net profit shall be paid to the City. 

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the 

Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City 

Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Proj ect 

Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project 

architect. 

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and 
- each and every year thereafter while this Agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the 

Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials 

required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an ownership interest in 

the Proj ect, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional information as the 

City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership interests of the 

individual persons owning any corporate interest in the Entity.
h 

Section 7.3 Inspection/Audit
_ 

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other 

facilities of the Proj ect and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by 

representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Government Services in the 

Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit of its 

books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made during 

the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated by the 

Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was in full force and effect. 

All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review ofthe Entity’s audits, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part of the Entity’s 

Annual _Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a 

delinquent service charge.
l
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ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES 
Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves · 

`

L 

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a 

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of| 40A:20-15. 
The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals, and 

_ 

reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent ofthe Gross Revenue ofthe Entity 

for the last full fiscal year and may retain such part of the Excess Net Profits as is necessary to 

eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in 40A:20-15. The reserve is to be non- 

cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto shall be permitted after the reserve shall 

have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of the preceding year's Gross Revenue. 

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit
A 

In the event the Net Profits ofthe Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits for 

such year, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end ofthe year, shall 

pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional annual service charge; provided, however, 

that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to aforementioned paragraph 8.1 . The ~ 

calculation of the Entity’s Excess Net Profits shall include those project costs directly attributable 

to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other costs mcluded in the definition of Total 

Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xxi) of this Agreement even though those costs may have been deducted
p 

from the proj ect costs for purposes of calculating the amiual service charge. 

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve! Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale 

The date of termination of this Agreement or sale ofthe Project shall be considered to be the 

close of the fiscal year of the Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to 

the City the amount of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this article and the balance 

of the Excess Net Profit, if any. 

ARTICLE IX — ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION 
Section 9.1 Approval of Sale 

Any sale or transfer of the Proj ect, shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance 
of the Municipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the 

Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this 

“
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Agreement provided 1) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject to long term tax 

exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the Law; 
` 

3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations under
5 

this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; 5) the Entity pays in full the maximum transfer 

fee, 2% ofthe Annual Service Charge, as permitted by 40A:20-l0(d). 

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself 

provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure 

statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure 

statement.

U 

Section 9.2 Transfer Application Fee 

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a sale or transfer of the 

Proj ect, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new tax exemption application fee for the 

legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to the review, preparation and/or 

submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate action on the requested 

assignment. The fee shall be non-refundable. ·

U 

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE 
Section 10.1 Operation 2 

- During the term of this Agreement, the Proj ect shall be maintained and operated in 

accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Proj ect under this Agreement shall not 

only be terminable as provided by 40A:20-l, g gl., as amended and supplemented, but 
also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall constitute 

a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to 

terminate the tax exemption. - 

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative
S

‘ 

During the tenn of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-005, 

and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status. The Entity’s 

failure to comply -with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a Default under this 

_ Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax 

exemption in accordance with Article XII hereof 
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ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT -

A 

Section 11.1 Default

I

. 

_ 

‘ 

Default shall be failure ofthe Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or failure
‘ 

of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable notice, cure or 

grace period. 

Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default ( 

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity ofthe Default 

[Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the alleged 

Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to cure any 

Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However, if, in the
I 

reasonable opinion ofthe City, the Default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days using reasonable 

diligence, the City will extend the time to cure. 

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the right 

to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section l2.l.
A 

Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material 

Conditions in Section 4.7, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as 

provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as 

provided in Article XII herein.
I 

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default 

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property 

I 

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, 54:5- l , g @1. In order to secure the full and 
timely payment ofthe Annual Service Charge, the City on its own behalf or on behalf of the Trustee, 

reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Project Area in 
accordance with Applicable Law, as more fully set forth in this Financial Agreement. 

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising
I

A 

out ofthe Entity's failure to pay’Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Administrative 

Fees, Affordable Housing Contribution, or the Annual Service Charges shall not be subject to the 

. default procedural remedies as provided in Article XI herein, but shall allow the City to proceed 

immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided in Article XII. All of the remedies provided
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in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be
_ 

cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City 

of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the 

Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution or 

Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and owing at the time or which, 

under the terms hereofQ would in the future become due as if there had been no termination. Further,
I 

the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service 

Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution, Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the 

resort to any other remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as 

1 

a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure 

action or any other specified remedy.

i 

In the event of
n 

a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article IV, 

the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and 

property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or 

amendatory thereof Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to mean
I 

taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is pertinent to this 

Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land. 

I 

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION 

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity
_ 

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided in 

Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the 

Entity [Notice of Termination]. 

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity 

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project, after 

the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project , as of the January l“ of 

the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluntary Termination must be received by the City no later 

than October ls' ofthe tax year preceding the calendar year in which the termination is to occur. As J 

of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and dividend ‘ 

restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be entitled to any
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refund, in whole or in part, of any funds paid to the City to obtain the tax exemption, including but 

not limited to the Affordable Housing Contribution. In addition, the due date for all Affordable 
I 

Housing Contribution and any other fees that the Entity agreed to pay under this Agreement, shall
‘ 

be accelerated so that all fees to be paid shall be due on January lst as a condition precedent of the 

voluntary termination. 

Section 12.3 Final Accounting 

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the 

Entity or by virtue ofthe provisions ofthe Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Entity 

shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the provisions of 

40A:20-l3 and l5 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For purposes of rendering 

a final accounting the date ofthe termination ofthe Agreement shall be deemed to be the end ofthe 

fiscal year for the Entity.
U

_ 

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes
_ 

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project shall 

expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and conventionally 

taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable property in the City. 

I 

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUT E RESOLUTION 
Section 13.1 Arbitration 

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a dispute 

arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein, either party · 

may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to settle and resolve 
the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law. In the event the 

Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the dispute to the 

American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance with its rules and 
regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose ofthe Long Tenn Tax Exemption Law. The 

cost for the arbitration shall be borne by the Entity. The parties agree that the Entity may not file an 

action in Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the Entity has first paid in full 

all charges defined in Section 4.8 as Material Conditions. 

'
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Section 13.2 Appeal of Assessment 

In calculating the amount of "staged" tax adjustments @ (that is, taxes otherwise due,
‘ 

pursuant to Section 4.2 and 4OA:20— l 2), either party may file an appeal ofthe conventional
` 

assessment with the Hudson County Tax Board or the Superior Court of New Jersey to determine 

the value of land and improvements. 

ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER 
° 

Section 14.1 Waiver 

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or 

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to 

terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided herein. 

Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City’s right to audit or recover any amount which the 

City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XV — INDEMNIFICAT ION 
Section 15.1 Defined 

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in any 

action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this 

Agreement and/or the provisions of 4OA:20-l Q gig, the Entity shall indemnify and hold 
the City harmless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable attorneys’ 

fees and costs, through trial and all stages of any appeal, including the cost of enforcing this 

indemnity) arising out of Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives all statutory or 

common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this indemnification. 

The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City maintains the right 

. to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the expense thereof to be 

bome by the City. 

- ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE 
Section 16.1 Certified Mail 

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by certified 
or registered mail, return receipt requested. 
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Section 16.2 Sent by City
U

V 

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to: 
‘ “ 

Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C. 
` A 

c/o Roseland Property Company 
233 Canoe Brook Road 
Short Hills, NJ 07078 
Attn: Ivan M. Baron 

c/o Garden State Development
I 

30 Montgomery Street, 15"‘ Floor 
Jersey City, NJ 07302 » 

Attn: Peter Mangin 

and 

Cormell Foley, LLP
` 

Harborside Financial Center 

2510 Plaza Five 

Jersey City, NJ 07311 
Attn: James C. McCann, Esq. 

unless prior to giving of` notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise. 

. In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this 

Agreement, of` the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such 

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity. 

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity 

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to: 

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk 
City Hall 

280 Grove Street 
W Jersey City, New Jersey 07302, 

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector 

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice to 

the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the 

Property’s Block and Lot number). 

_ ARTICLE XVII—SEVERABILITY 
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Section 17.1 Severability

I 

If any tenn, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a Material 
I 

Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this
C 

Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or circumstances other 

than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each 

l 

term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent 

permitted by law.
C 

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and 

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each other 

to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated by the 

parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-execution of 

this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of then parties and the 

Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would modify a Material 

Condition, the amount ofthe periodic adjustments or any other term of this Agreement which would 

result in any economic reduction or loss to the City. 

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 18.1 Construction 

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws ofthe State of 

New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring construction ' 

against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for both the Entity 

and the City have combined in their review and approval of same. 

Section 18.2 Conflicts 

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language 

contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict 

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail. 

Section 18.3 Oral Representations 

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are not 

contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement, and the 

Application constitute the entire Agreement _between the parties and there shall be no modifications
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thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties and delivered to 

each party. 

Section 18.4 Entire Document
I

I 

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance ofthe Municipal Council approving this 

Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof. 

Section 18.5 Good Faith 

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the City. 

ARTICLE XIX — EXHIBITS 

Section 19 Exhibits 

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at length 
herein: 

l. Metes and Bounds description of the Proj ect; 
I 2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement; 

3. The Application with Exhibits; 
4. Certificate of the Entity; 

5. Estimated Construction Schedule; 

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project; 
7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents; 
8. Proj ect Employment and Contracting Agreement; 
9. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs. 
10. Deed

`

.

1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day and year 
first above written.

r 

WITNESS: MARBELLA TOWER URBAN RENEWAL 
ASSOCIATES SOUTH, L.L.C. 

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY 

ROBERT BYRNE JOHN KELLY 
CITY CLERK BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR

22



i 

2-05-13 

PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT 

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made as ofthe day of___, 
2013, between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] and MARBELLA TOWER URBAN ‘ 

RENEWAL ASSOCIATES SOUTH, L.L.C., having its principal office at c/o Roseland Property 
Company, 233 Canoe Brook Road, Short Hills, NJ 07078. Recipient agrees as follows: 

I. Definitions:

l 

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have the following 
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

‘ 

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the- City of Jersey City, or his designee, 
including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in 
whole or in part, this agreement. 

2. "Contractor" means any party performing or offering to perform a prime contract on behalf 
of the Recipient. 

3. "DEO" means the Division of Economic Opportunity under the Department of 
Administration, located at 121-125 Newark Avenue, Jersey City, NJ 07302, Telephone 
#(201) 547-561 1. DEO is in charge of Project Employment & Contracting coordination and 
monitoring on projects receiving abatements. 

4. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project which 
requires approval of the Municipal Council and which reduces the annual amount of taxes 
otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate; 

5. "Employment" means any job or position during the construction and operational phase of 
the project. It includes positions created as a result of intemal promotions, terminations, or 
expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by new employees. 

A 
However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's existing work force 
are not covered positions under this agreement. 

6. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City. 

7. Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program means the group within DEO 
under the Department of Administration responsible for collecting local and minority 
business contracts and capability information. This group operates the Supplier Alert service 
which is to be used by the Recipient to meet their good faith business contracting and 
construction subcontracting goals. 

8. "Minority" means a person who is African, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian defined as 
follows:

_ 1



a) "African-American" means a person having origins in any of the black racial groups 
of Africa. 

b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South
I 

` 

American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding, however, - 

persons of European origin. 

c) "Asian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of the Far East, 
Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands. 

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of 
North America who maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or 
community recognition. 

9. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey 
City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a Minority or 
woman. A 

10. "Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent 
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Labor Market, and 
Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City Clerk. 

ll. "Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent, 
temporary, part time or seasonal. 

12. "Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the 
contract. 

13. The "Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator” is a member ofthe DEO staff under 
the Department of Administration who is in charge of coordinating Project Employment& 
Contracting projects. Contractors and developers engaged in projects covered by Project 
Employment & Contracting Agreements will direct inquiries to the Project Employment& 
Contracting Coordinator. 

14. The "Project Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor" is a member of the DEO 
staff under the Department of Administration directly under the command of the Project 
Employment & Contracting Coordinator, who is in charge of monitoring the site, collecting 
the reports and documentation, and other day-to—day Project Employment & Contracting 
housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement. 

15. The "Project Employment & Contracting Officer" or "Officer” is an employee of the 
Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in compliance 
with the Recipient’s Proj ect Employment & Contracting agreement. 

l 6. "Recipient" means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or other 
entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non—profit, or agent thereofi which receives

I
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an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent of the 
Recipient. 

17.
I 

"The Registry" or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the City
I 

_ 
or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses, including

I 

Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts. ’ 

18. "Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that 
is part of a prime contract. 

1 9. "Subcontractor" means a third party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform under
` 

a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract. 

20. "Substantial Completion" means the determination by the City that the Proj ect, in whole or 
in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the 
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion ofthe 
Project.

_ 

II. Purpose:

I

` 

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunities for City residents, 
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses, especially 
Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or relocating to the City 
who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined to accomplish that goal 
by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good Faith, as defined herein, and 
discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent mandated by State and Federal law and 
so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City 
acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. 

III. Good Faith Goals: r

I 

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the goals 
set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the Recipient will not 
be required to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set forth in Section VI, 2., A—J

° 

(Permanent Jobs). 

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a work 
force representing fifty-one (51%) percent City residents, fifty-one (51%) percent of whom are 
residents who are Minorities and, in Non-Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of whom 
are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more than one 
category, · 

2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal 
of awarding twenty (20%) percent ofthe dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fifty-one 
(51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. If fifty-one (51%) 
percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses camiot be obtained, that percentage of
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contracts must still be applied to local vendors. 

IV. Recipient Designee: 

' 

The Recipient shall designate a' principal officer of its firm to be responsible for
I 

administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to 
discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be designated 
as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer. 

The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the "Project Employment& 
Contracting Compliance Officer" to the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to any 
preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This principle 
officer should also be present for all preconstruction meetings. » 

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the "Proj ect Employment & Contracting Compliance 
Officer" to the employees of the Recipient’s company. An example of this letter can be found in · 

Appendix AZ
U 

V. Term: 
V

A 

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-terminus with the effective period ofthe tax 
exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council adopted 
Ordinance 

, approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of 15 years from the date · 

ofthe adoption of that Ordinance or l0 years from the date of Substantial Completion ofthe Proj ect. 

VI. Good Faith Defined: 
_

i 

1. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions: 

A. Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of a Recipient’s 
permanent workforce, the Proj ect Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient will sit down 
with the head of the Registry to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent workforce. 
The following issues should be covered in this meeting: 

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiring process. 
ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled. ‘ 

iii) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs. 
iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer. 
v) the Recipient’s goals and how it plans to meet these goals. 
vi) any other issues which need to be addressed by the Registry. 

1. Subcontractor Notification —— If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of its 
permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the 
subcontracting party that it will abide by the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement before 
said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The Recipient must forward a copy ofthe 
signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An example of this

_

A
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signed acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E. ‘ 

2. Subcontractor Pre—Hiring Job Awareness Meeting —- Each subcontractor hired to staff 
permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Officer to meet with the

p 

head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2.A(I—vi). 

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the same 
requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A. 

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan——Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken place, 
the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future permanent employment 
needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the Pre—Hiring Awareness Meeting, list 
estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment goals commensurate with 
the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the Recipient plans to meet these 
goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix J. 

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any 
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient’s subcontractor shall provide the Registry with a written 
notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum qualifications, rate of pay, hours 
of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective terms which 
will enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient. 

D. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified 
applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs in a 
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must fumish the Project 
Employment & Contracting Coordinator in DEO under the Department of Administration with a 
copy of this advertisement.

I 

E. Pre—Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it 
from the Registry, to be maintained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is 
required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the advertisement. 

F. Semi—Annual Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-annual 
employment reports to the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be provided 
by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident, minority 
resident or woman resident. The report will explain in writing the reasons why any qualified 
applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertisement is required, any qualified person

' 

responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example of this report is found in Appendix K. 

G. |The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files and 
records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy 
of the information set forth in the semi-annual reports. ~ 

H. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the site 
to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-

‘ 

annual reports.
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I. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such 
reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to implement the 
purposes of this agreement. ~ 

J.

l 

Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this 
Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service, maintenance, 
security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whose personnel will be 
assigned to the Recipient project. 

2. Business Contracting »

_ 

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions: 

l) Solicitation of Businesses: 

a) One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must forward 
a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Acting Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's 
Business Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any 
construction or building operating goods, services and subcontracting opportunities. 
An example of this letter can be found in Appendix D.

j 

b) After submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether the bid was accepted 
or rejected, and state the reason why. An example of this documentation can be found 
in Appendix D2. 

i) Semi-Annual Purchasing Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi- 
amrual purchasing reports which will include a list of all contracts awarded 
over a six month- period and the dollar amounts of these contracts. The 
reports will specify the number and dollar amount of contracts awarded to 
Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. An 
example of these reports can be found in Appendix L. 

ii) No Utilization of Local and Local Minority Vendors As Conduits For 
Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned: 

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors that 
are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by DEO under the Department of Administration 
of a Recipient, either knowingly or unknowingly, using the masthead of a local or minority owned 
business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it should not, will 
immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section VIII (d) below. 

3. Summation of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement 

l. Letter Designating Proj ect Employment & Contracting Officer (Appendix A) 
2. Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Officer to Recipient’s Employees 
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3.

A 

Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and 
Residential Vendors from Acting Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program 
(Appendix D) 

4. Documentation of Bid Submission (Appendix D2) 
5. Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors/ 

Subcontractors (Appendix E) 
6. Example of Bi—Weekly Site Visit Report (Appendix I) » 

7. Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix J)
` 

8. Example of Semi-Arrrrual Employment Report (Appendix K) 
9. Example of Semi-Annual Purchasing Report (Appendix L) 

VII. Notices of Violation:
_ 

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there is 
non—compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The Advisory 
Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis ofthe alleged violation. The Recipient shall 
have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an Advisory Notice can 
be found in Appendix M. 

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been 
corrected to the satisfaction ofthe City within four (4) working days, the City shall then issue 
a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient detail 
the basis ofthe alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3) working days 
to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in Appendix N. 

3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may 
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and so 

· advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City.
_

I 

4. Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may 
be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into 
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to 
achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the violation 
will be considered not corrected. . 

5. Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportunity for a meeting with 
the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance; or may 
respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the Recipient has made timely submission 
of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be requested no later than 
two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written explanation. 

6. Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request 
additional infomation from appropriate parties as is considered necessary to determine 
whether the alleged violation has occurred. 

7. Determination of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient
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is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirty days after the 
i 

delivery of the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determines that the Recipient 
is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided below.

A 

VIII. Liquidated Damages:'iii
—

I 

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material breach 
of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of this agreement 
by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical certainty. 
Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a material breach of any ofthe above terms 
and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation, the City will be 

i 

entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts: 

a) failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement 
` 

(Construction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): an amount equal to Three 
(3%) percent increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes; · 

` 

b) failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports (all 
categories): an amount equal to Two (2%) percent increase in the estimated armual 
payment in lieu of taxes. 

c) the use of the local or local minority business’ masthead for labor or work supplied 
by a non local or local minority vendor: An amotmt equal to Five (5%) percent 
increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes. — 

IX. Commercial Tenants at the Project Site: - 

l. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a 
_ 

letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as Appendix 
O. 

2. The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about the 
‘ 

composition of the work force of each tenant. The information solicited will be 
submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall provide - 

the Recipient with a questionnaire in the form attached as Appendix P. 

3. The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment& 
Contracting Monitor no later than October 31 of each year. 

4. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a 
Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q. 

X. Notices 

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:



l. When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to: 

Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C. 
c/o Roseland Property Company 

V p _ 
A 

233 Canoe Brook Road 
Short Hills, NJ 07078 

and 

Connell Foley, LLP 
Harborside Financial Center 

2510 Plaza Five 

Jersey City, N.J. 0731 l-4029 ` 

Att: James C. McCann, Esq. i 

2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:
p 

Project Employment & Contracting Monitor 
Department of Administration - 

Division of Economic Opportunity 
121 -125 Newark Avenue 
3rd Floor 

* Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; unless prior to 
giving of such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in 
writing.

_ 

XI. Adoption, Approval, Modification: 

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by the 
Municipal Council. 

XII. Controlling Regulations and Laws: 

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good ‘ 

Faith obligations tmder this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the Recipient and its 
contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts with any collective 
bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as the Recipient provides 
the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective bargaining agreement. 

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if the Recipient has entered into 
a Project Labor Agreement with a Labor Organization, then any and all sections of` this Agreement 
pertaining to construction jobs and the construction portion of any Proj ect, are null and void and may 
be disregarded by the Recipient. In the event the Recipient has entered into a Project Labor 
Agreement, then this Agreement shall become effective upon Substantial Completion ofthe Project. 
In the event there are any conflicts between this Agreement and any Project Labor Agreement, then 

.

9
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the Project Labor Agreement shall govern. Wherever possible, this Agreement shall be interpreted
U 

consistently with the Proj ect Labor Agreement. - 

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY `

p 

Robert Byrne John Kelly
‘ 

City Clerk Business Administrator
_ 

WITNESS: MARBELLA TOWER URBAN RENEWAL 
ASSOCIATES SOUTH, L.L.C. 

Secretary`

1 O
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*1 

ORDINANCE *1 *t 

OF JBIIORATE 5*% 

]ERSEY CITY, N,]. 
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-017 

TlTLE¤ ORDINANCE AMENDING A 15 YEAR LONG rrmzivr TAX EXEMPTION FINANCIAL 
AGREEMENT WITH MARBELLA TOWER URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, L.L.C., 
TO: 1) AMEND ITS GROUND LEASE AND FINANCIAL AGREEMENT TO REDUCE 
LAND AREA OF THE PROJECT; 2) REDUCE THE NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES 
FROM 423 TO 260 PARKING SPACES; AND 3) ASSIGN A PORTION OF THE PROJECT 
CONTAINING 163 PARKING SPACES TO MARBELLA TOWER URBAN RENEWAL 
ASSOCIATES SOUTH, L.L.C. 

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: 

WHEREAS, Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates, L.L.C., is an urban renewal company, 
r 

qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as 
amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 [Entity]; and 

WHEREAS, Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates, L.L.C., is the ground lessee of certain
` 

property now known as Block 1 1603, Lot 45.02 (formerly Block 15, Lot 28), on the City’s Official 
_ 
Tax map, consisting of approximately 1.7 acres, and more commonly known by the street address 
of 425 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, New Jersey [Property]; and 

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance 00-175, the City approved a fifteen (15) year tax 
V 

exemption for the Entity to construct a forty (40) story residential building, containing 

approximately four hundred sixteen (416) market rate residential rental units, with approximately 

9,000 gross square feet of retail space and parking for approximately four hundred twenty-three 
(423) cars [Project]; and

` 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 00-175 adopted on January 1 1, 2001, the Entity and the City 
entered into a certain financial agreement dated as of January 31, 2001 [Financial Agreement]

_ 

whereby the City granted the Entity a 15 year tax exemption for certain property now designated as 
Block 1 1603, Lot 45.02 (formerly known as Block 15, Lot 28), and more commonly known by the 
street address of 425 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, NJ; and 

WHEREAS, on November 28, 2012, Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates, L.L.C., filed an 
application to amend its Ground Lease to reduce the land area of the Project to 1.384 acres; assign 
a portion ofthe Project containing] 63 parking spaces to Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates 
South, L.L.C., thereby reducing its parking spaces from 423 to 260; and 

WHEREAS, Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., agreed to include the 163 
_ 

parking spaces as part of its Project, which will also be subject to the increased Annual Service 
Charge that is in effect for the Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C.; and 

WHEREAS, the Entity and the City now seek to enter into an amendment to the Financial 
Agreement to: (a) amend its Ground Lease to reduce the land area ofthe Project to 1.384 acres; (b) 
assign that portion ofthe Project containing 163 parking spaces from its parking garage to Marbella 
Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., thereby reducing its parking spaces from 423 
parking spaces to 260 parking spaces; and _ 

WHEREAS, all capitalized terms used in this Amendment are used as defined in the Financial 
Agreement; and 

§@aeuee2a



Continuation of City Ordinance 13;O17 
, page 2

l 

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2013 , the Tax Exemption Committee recommended the approval of this 
Amendment to the Financial Agreement to the Mayor by a unanimous vote. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City 
_ _ 

that: 4`VV 
. A. The application of Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates, L.L.C., an urban renewal 

company, formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax 
Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 g gz;. a copy of which 

` 

is on file in the office ofthe City Clerk, to amend the its Ground Lease and the Financial Agreement 
to 1) delete and replace the metes and bounds description its Ground Lease and the original 
Financial Agreement to a metes and bounds description showing 1.3 84 acres of land; 2) reduce the 
number of parking spaces in the Project from 423 to 260 parking spaces; and 3) assign 163 parking 
spaces to Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., is hereby approved. 

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to consent to the amendment of 
the Ground Lease so that the land area of the Project is reduced to 1.384 acres and to execute an 
Amendment to the Financial Agreement. The Amendment to the Financial Agreement shall include 
at a minimum the following terms and conditions: , 

1. The metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to the Financial Agreement is hereby 
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the new metes and bounds description showing a land area 
for the Project of 1.3 84 acres.

_ 

2. Any and all references throughout the Financial Agreement to 423 parking spaces is hereby 
deleted and replaced with 260 parking spaces. 

3. The Financial Agreement is supplemented with the following provision: 
A portion ofthe Project is now located on Lot 45.01 in Block 1 1603 is subject to a perpetual 

reciprocal easement between the Entity and Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, 
L.L.C. Pursuant to such easement, 163 ofthe parking spaces located in the garage ofthe Project are 

now being used by Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, L.L.C., and are hereby 
deemed to be a part of the Marbella II Project. 

C. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Financial Agreement to 
the Tax Assessor and Director of the Division of Local Government Services. 

D. The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial Agreement and V 

Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially the form on file in the 
Office ofthe City Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business Administrator or Corporation 

Counsel deems appropriate or necessary. 

E. All ordinances and parts of ordinances, including Ordinance 00-175, inconsistent herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

F. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth 
therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of 
the Jersey City Code. 

G. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by law. 

H. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to 
change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification 
of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in 
order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions. 

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted. 

For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face 
and repealed matter by italic. 

JM/he 
APPROVED APPRovEo; 

APPROVED: 
usiness Adminis a 

Certification 

Not Required l]



Rev. 2-05-13 

Long Term Tax Exemption 

Market Rate Rental Residential · 

. 

· 

_

V 

Re: 425 Washington Boulevard 

Formerly 1.7 Acres within Block 15, Lot 28, . 

Now 1.384 acres within Block 11603, Lot 45.02 ‘ 

Harsimus Station Redevelopment Plan formerly known as . 

Hudson Exchange Redevelopment Plan 

PREAMBLE — 

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] is made as 

of this _ day of _, 2013, by and between MARBELLA TOWER URBAN RENEWAL 
ASSOCIATES, LLC, an urban renewal Entity formed and qualified to do business under the 

provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, 

40A:20—1 Q gl., having its principal office at c/0 Roseland Property Company, 233 Canoe Brook 

Road, Short Hills, NJ 07078, [Entity], and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation 

of the State of New Jersey, having its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 

07302 [City].
A 

RECITALS - 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 00-175 adopted on January 1 1, 2001, the Entity and the 

City entered into a certain financial agreement dated as of January 31, 2001 [Financial Agreement] 

whereby the City granted the Entity a tax exemption for certain property fonnerly known as Block 

1 5, Lot 28, now known as Block 1 1603, Lot 45 .02, and more commonly known by the street address 

of 425 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, NJ ; and
‘ 

WHEREAS, the Entity and the City now seek to enter into an amendment to the Financial 

Agreement to (a) authorize an amendment to the Entity’s Ground Lease to reduce the land area of 

the Project to 1.384 acres in accordance with the metes and bounds description attached hereto as 

Amended Exhibit 1; (b) reduce the parking spaces in the Project from 423 to 260; and c) assign 163 

parking spaces from its parking garage to Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, LLC; 

and -



WHEREAS, all capitalized terms used in this Amendment are used as defined in the 

Financial Agreement; and .

‘ 

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein 

. contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 

hereby acknowledged, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:
` 

1. The City consents to an amendment to the Entity’s Ground Lease reducing the 

acreage of the Project to 1.384 acres. 

2. The metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit l to the Financial Agreement 

is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the new metes and bounds description attached 

hereto as Amended Exhibit l. 

3. Any and all references throughout the Financial Agreement to 423 parking spaces is 

hereby deleted and replaced with 260 parking spaces. - 

4. The Financial Agreement is supplemented with the following provision: 

A portion ofthe Proj ect is now located on Lot 45.01 in Block 1 1603 pursuant to a perpetual
A 

reciprocal easement between the Entity and Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, LLC. 

Pursuant to such easement, 163 ofthe parking spaces located in the garage of the Proj ect are now 

being used by Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates South, LLC, and are hereby deemed to 

be a part ofthe Marbella II Project. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day 
and year first above written. 

ATTEST: MARBELLA TOWER URBAN 
RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LLC 
BY: Roseland/Jersey City II LLC 

Its Managing Member 

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY 

CITY CLERK BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
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PLEASE REPLY TO JERSEY CITY, NJ
’ 

. 

V November 28, 2012
' 

Via Hand Delivegy
I 

Honorable Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy
I 

c/o All Cameron, Deputy Director 
` 

A 

` ‘

_ 

» Department of Housing, Economic Development
‘ 

and Commerce = E

A 

30 Montgomery Street, 9th Floor r 

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 

Re: Letter Application Requesting Amendment to 
Financial Agreement by and between Marbella Tower. Urban Renewal _ 

Associates, L.L.C. and City of Jersey City for Project 
At 525 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, NJ _

l 

Known as Marbella I now located on new Lot 45.02 in Block 11603

1 

Dear Mr. Cameron: ·

l 
`

1 

. This firm represents Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates, L.L.C. in connection 
with the above captioned Financial Agreement. l 

_ 
The purpose of this letter is to respectfully request an amendment to the above- 1 

» referenced Financial Agreement, which: (1) deletes the existing metes and bounds description
j 

for the Project and replaces it with the new metes and bounds description attached hereto as 
Amended Exhibit 1; (2) reduces the 423 parking spaces in the Project by 163 spaces to 260

i 

parking spaces; (3) discloses that the aforementioned 163 parking spaces have now become 
part of the Marbella ll Project pursuant to a perpetual easement and that any revenue received 

_ 

from the use of such 163 parking spaces will be paid to Marbella (South Urban Renewal 
_

· 

- Associates, L.l..C;; and (4) discloses that a portion of the Project’s improvements will now be 
located on Lot 45.01 in Block 11603, pursuant to a perpetual easement. 

2813539-Ol 
` `

_

,



Honorable Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy V 

S .

‘ 

c/o All.Cameron, Deputy Director . .

S 

‘ 

Department of Housing, Economic De-velopment . 

- Page 2, November 28, 2012 — 

.

" 
‘

I

, 

_ 

These amendments are made necessary by the pending development of Marbella Il.
‘ 

·

A 

ln lightiof the·fact that this letter application is being submitted-simultaneously and in - 

conjunction with the- Marbella ll Tax Abatement application for thesole purpose of conforming 
the Project description ofthe Marbella I Project to the Marbella ll Project, l ask that if anyrfee is

- 

required for this amendment that it be waived. . 

lf you have any questions, please feel free to contact this office.
` 

. 
,· 

D ,·'\ 

` A 

_ 
Vejy trulyryours, `lt fi

· 

, ;,’ 
`i, i· 

i 
/'

' 

if 

I- 

{

A 

V 

A 

JAIMES Ce·‘McCA N, ESQ.
A

` 
· 

‘ 

gn Behalf of the ¤Firm{ ‘—~._,-··‘‘`
. 

. JCM/mg
l 

Encs. · 

_ 

—

` 

cc; Marbella Tower Urban Renewal Associates, L.L.C.
A

. 

A 

Attn.: Ivan Baron, Esq. (w/enc. Via e-mail) . 

Mayor Jerramiah Healy, Attn.: Rosemary McFadden, Chief of Staff (w/o encs.) 
. 

A 

Carl Czaplicki, Director of Housing & Economic Development (w/o encs.) 

zsizszas-oi 
- V

_
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. ft,

I 

July 23, 2012. 
_ 

~ 

` 

Job No. 614-24
I 

. 

_ 

.4 
·· Deed Description 

_ 
_

. 

Proposed Block 11603, Lot 45.02 
'" 

Dizssonen Rosin 
City of J GT S9y City 

- 

I 

Hudson County, New Jersey 
_ _ _

_ 

, 
. Jersey City. 

I 

` I 

Corporate Office -

‘ 

Beginning at a point in the westerly sideline of Washington Boulevard, 
|SI’“”3IIIF'°°'

. 

107 feet wide, a public right of way,` said point being distant the ierseycimnii ovaus-oqss
_ 

following two courses along the same from its intersection with the QQQNF 

northerly sideline of Second Street, 60 feet wide, a public right of way: 
_

` 

__ 
°` 

Asbu Park Office 
`A. Northerly, along a curve tothe left having a radius 2146.48 feet, 6¤aM¤;I;¤¤AvE¤uE - 

an arc length of 63.68 feet to a point of tangency subtending an ASIMY "¤"<$ NI 07712
` 

. . _. . PHONE: 732-988-7020 
interior angle of 1 degree 42 minutes 00 seconds and having a FAX: m_9,,8_7,,32 

chord bearing of North 6 degrees 36 minutes 24 seconds East, . 

chord length of 63.68 feet; thence
I 

Pennsauken Office 
_ Perks Ruetter Division 

B. North 5 degrees 45 minutes 24 seconds East, 49.72 feet to the FB‘“”aVC°'P°'**`*°*C‘*“"?'
_ 

point of BEGINNING and running; thence 
` |SUIIIIIIII 

I - · 

PHONE: 856-488-6zoc 

_ 
1. Leaving the westerly sideline of Washington Boulevard, North 

FAXI 856"°’88`43°2 

. 83 degrees 35 minutes 00 seconds West, 185.10 feet through Wayne Office
‘ 

existing Block 11603, Lot 45 crossing the easterlysideline of the
I 

Hanson Ewneermg Division
w 50 foot wide Hudson—Bergen Light Fiail Transit System 7 DoigRoad,Suite1 

. Operating Easement, to a point in the easterly line of Block W¤Y¤¤·_Nl°747° 

11603, Lot 47 as shown on the current TaxAssessment l\/lap of ;:,2NE‘ 

the City of Jersey City; thence 

www.dresdnerrobin.com 
2. — Northerly along said easterly line of Block 11603, Lot 47, along - 

a curve to the left having a radius 400.00 feet, an arc length of - 

215.65 feet to a point of tangency subtending an interior angle
. 

of 30 degree 53 minutes 20 seconds and having a chord 
_ 

·=¤(
_ 

bearing of North 08 degrees 38 minutes 25 seconds West, €.,,T“;rED ti) L
I 

` 

chord length of 213.04 feet; thence 
I UI 

, 

fs I 

` 

3. 
" 

Still along said easterly line of Block 11603, Lot 47, North 06 . 

_

I

, 

degrees 48 minutes 23 seconds East, 57.40 feet to a point 
where it is intersected by the southerly sideline of Fourth Street,

I 

_ 46 feet wide, a public thoroughfare, known as Block 11603, Lot ·

‘ 

46 as shown on the current Tax Assessment I\/lap of the City of _ 

‘ 

. I 

JerseyCity; thence 
l 

._ 

.`

I 

4. Along said southerly sideline of Fourth Street, South -85 degrees 
I

I 

13 minutes 58 seconds East, 240.14 feet to a point where it is .

I 

intersected by the westerly sideline of the aforementioned ~ 
’ ·

` 

westerly sideline of Washington Boulevard; thence .
·



· 

5. Along said westerly sideline of Washington Boulevard, South 06 degrees 48 
'- minutes 23 seconds West, 118.66 feet to a point of cun/ature; thence ‘

y 

. 6. Southerly along said westerly sideline of Washington Boulevard,.along 3.Cl,II'VG to . . 

_ the right having a radius 5503.50 feet, an arc length of 100.83 feet to a point of
` 

A tangency subtending an interior angle of 01 degree 02 minutes 59 seconds and -

_ 

having a chord bearing of South 06 degrees 16 minutes 53 seconds West, a 3
‘ 

» chord length of 100.83 feet; thence
W

_ 

7.

A 

Still along said-westerly sideline of Washington Boulevard, South 05 degrees 45
I 

‘

I 

V 
. minutes 24 seconds West, 50.55 feet to the point or place of BEGINNING. .

- 

_ 
Containing 60,300 square feet or 1.384 acres.`4 

V_ 

_ 
Subject to all easement, rights of way and agreements of record. 

y

V 

This description was prepared in accordance withga map entitled "l\/linor \ " 

, 

A Subdivision, Marbella Tower Associates, Existing Lot 44 and Lot 45, Proposed 
Lot 45 and Lot 45.01, City of Jersey City, Hudson County, New Jersey” prepared

g 
‘ 

by Dresdner Bobin, Hanson Engineering Division, dated`12-23-11 and revised to 

_ 

7-23—12, Job No.614-24 

Greg S. Gloor 
, 

- 

‘ 

Professional Land Surveyor 
.

i 

t 

· 

. 1 
_ 

New_Jersey License No. 37189 ,

l 

Dresdner Bobin — Hanson Engineering Division 
I

l 

a I

. 

_ 

. 7 Doio Boad. Wavne. NJ 07470 T:973-696-2600 F:973.-696-1362 
_

‘

.



_

i

t 

Re: 425 Washington Boulevard
I 

_ 

. .

‘ 

» Approximately 1.7 Acres [within ·

. 

» 

1 

- 
- » Block 11603, Lot 45.02 (formerly part of i 

. . 

- — Block 15, Lot 28)
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Harsimus Station Redevelopment Plan
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formerly know as Exchange Place Redevelopment _
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· Plan 
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AIVIENDMENT TO FINANCIAL · 

THIS ANIENDMENT TO FINANCIAL AGREEIVIENT, [Amendment] is made as of ` 

this day of 2013, by and between MARBELLA TOWER URBAN 
RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, L.L.C, an urban renewal Entity formed and qualified to do business 
under 

1 

the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law ·of 1992, as amended and 

supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20—1 et seq., having its principal office at c/o Roseland Property 

company, 233 Canoe Brook Road, Short hills, NJ 07078, [Entity], andthe City of Jersey City, a 

Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey,rhaving its principal office at 280 Grove ‘

I 

_ 
Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 [City]. t 

` 

RECITALS
A 

_] 

. WITNESSETH.:
_ 

WHEREAS, the Entity and the City entered into a certain financial agreement dated as of 
January 31, 2001 ("Financial Agreement’) whereby the City granted the Entity a tax exemption 

for certain property then designated as Block 15, [Lot 28 and more commonly known by street 

address of 425 Washington Boulevard, Jersey City, New Jersey ("Financial Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, the Entity and the City now seek to enter into an amendment to the ,

` 

Financial Agreement; and
4

· 

V

· 

WHEREAS, all capitalized terms used in this Amendment are used as defined in the
_ 

Financial Agreement; and
` 

_ 

— -

. 

` I

{ 

_ 
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· NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for such other good and 
_ 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Entity ·

_

I 

and the City agrees as followsz
l

' 

_ _ A

I 

. 1. Themetes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit l to the Financial
_ 

Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the new metes and bounds 
‘ 

description attached hereto as Amended Exhibit 1. ’ ‘ 

` A 

3. Any and all references throughout the Financial Agreement to 423 parking ‘

B 

spaces is hereby deleted and replaced with 260 parking spaces:
A 

- »

i 

.. 4. The Financial Agreement is supplemented with the following provision:
i 

- A portion of the Project is now located on Lot 45.01 in Block 11603 pursuant to a
A 

U

P 

perpetual reciprocal easement between the Entity and Marbella Tower South Urban Renewal 

- Associates, L.L.C. Pursuant to such easement 160 of the parking spaces located in the garage of 

the Project are now being used by Marbella Tower South Urban Renewal Associates, L.L;C. and
_ 

are hereby deemed to be a part of the Marbella II project.
I 

·

I 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day 

and year first above written,
‘ 

‘ 
E

I

' 

·

A 

ATTEST MARBELLA TOWER URBAN
" 

· RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, L.L.C. l 

By:
_ 

_ 

Roseland/Jersey City II 

- 

_ 

` 

. Its Managing Member P

j 

ATTEST: . CITY OF JERSEY CITY ·

_ 

. 
V

l

A 

t

` 

CITY CLERK BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR 

. 

‘ 
I

I 

2813629jOl 
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city clerk File Ne. Utd- 12*018 

Agenda No. 3 ‘ G 
1st Reading 

XERSG 
Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage O {Bm! i` 
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ORDINANCE A 

O |L '<

‘ 

_ _ _ OO 
‘ j|et.| ' 

ky
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€» OF {.,,0m, 5 

JERSEY CITY, N,]. 
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

‘ CIW ORDINANCE 13-013 

TITLE: ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY AMENDING 
THE CLAREMONT REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CLARIFY USES 

AND FEES 

WHEREAS, the Local Redevelopment and Housing Law, NJ SA 40A: 12A-1 et seq. permits municipalities to adopt 
and amend regulations dealing with areas declared to be in need of redevelopment; and 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City adopted a redevelopment plan for the Claremont 
Redevelopment Plan Area on December 4, 1984, and amended it several times since; and 

WHEREAS, the existing Plan has language which does not reflect the recently adopted Land Development 
Ordinance glossary. 

WHEREAS, this amendment clarifies the inconsistencies without changing the permitted uses. 

WHEREAS, this amendment also increases the fee for amendments to current City standards of $1,000. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NJ SA 40A: 12A-1 et seq., the Planning Board has reviewed these proposed amendments 
and recommended their adoption by the Municipal Council at their meeting of December 18, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, said amendments are attached and are available for public inspection at the Office of the City Clerk in 
City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City that the attached 
amendment to the Morris Canal and Claremont Redevelopment Plans be, and hereby is, adopted. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT: 
A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. ~ 

B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein, The City Clerk shall have 
this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code. 

C. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law. 
D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter numbers, 

article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between 
those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible repealers of existing provisions, 

E. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption of this Ordinance 
to the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant to N.J.S. 40:55D-15 and N.J.S. 40:55D-63 
(if required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the City Clerk is directed to publish notice of the 
passage thereof and to file a copy ofthe Ordinance as finally adopted with the Hudson County Planning Board as required by 
N.J.S. 40:55D-16. The clerk shall also forthwith transmit a copy of this Ordinance after Enal passage to the Municipal Tax 
Assessor as required by N.J.S. 40:49-2.1. 

Robert D. Cotter, PP, FAICP, Director 
Division of City Planning 

., 

2// 
i é` APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: ,642 , 

C' ~~ 
Gl
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APPROVED:
" 

Corporation Counsel Business dministrator 

Certification Required El 

Not Required El



Date Submitted to B.A. 

ORDINANCE FACT SHEET
V 

1. Full Title of Ordinance: 

n A 

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY
n 

AMENDING THE CLAREMONT REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CLARIFY USES 
AND FEES 

2. Name and Title of Person Initiating the Ordinance, etc.: 

Carl Czaplicki, Director, Department of Housing, Economic Development and Commerce 

3. Concise Description of the Program, Project or Plan Proposed in the Ordinance: 

This amendment clarifies the permitted apartment building uses pursuant to recently adopted 
definitions. This is for clarification only; no changes to the permitted uses are proposed. 

Additionally, amendment fees are revised to reflect our current minimum of $1,000. 

4. Reasons for the Proposed Project: 

To bring the existing Redevelopment Plan into conformity with recently the adopted glossary. c 

5. Anticipated Benefits to the Community: 

This amendment will clarify existing uses and bring fees up to the existing minimum amount of 
$1,000.

_ 

6. Cost of Proposed Program, Project, etc.: $0.00, all work was done in house 

7. Date Proposed Program or Project will commence: Upon Adoption 

8. Anticipated Completion Date: N/A 

9. Person Responsible for Coordinating Proposed Program, Project, etc.: 

Robert D. Cotter, Director, City Planning 547-5050 
Kristin Russell, City Planning 547-5010 · 

· 10. Additional Comments: None 

I Certify that all the Facts Presented Herein are Accurate. 

Division Director e 

gm 4/2 
Department Di tor Signature Date 
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Summary 

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY 
AMENDING THE CLAREMONT REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CLARIFY USES 

AND FEES 

This amendment clarifies the permitted apartment building uses pursuant to recently adopted definitions. 
This isfor clarification only; no changes to the permitted uses are proposed. 

Additionally, amendment fees are revised to reflect our current minimum of $1,000. 

G:\REPLANS\Clarcmont\C|arcmont Amd 08 - Definitions PENDING\C0uncil\Cl¤rcmont Amd8 Summary.doc
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INTRODUCTION 

The Claremont Redevelopment Plan will regulate development within the 
Claremont Study Area. The site of approximately 68 acres is parallel to the 
westem_right of way of the New Jersey Turnpike between Chapel and Caven 
Point Avenues. The majority of the site is vacant land with the only activity 
resulting from an active rail line which bisects the site. The New Jersey Turnpike 
serves as a natural boundary separating the Study Area from the developments 
along the Jersey City waterfront. Additionally, the site is surrounded by a mix of 
nonresidential uses. This isolation and the availability of easy access to the 
Turnpike makes this a ideal site for industrial and office development. The 
Claremont Redevelopment Plan will assure proper development which will 
promote the public health, safety and welfare. 

I. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

The following City tax lots comprise the Claremont Redevelopment Area:
p 

Block 24302 — Lots 1 (entire block) 

Block 27401 — Lots 2, 2.01, 2.02, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 (part) 

Block 24301 — 3 (part), 5 (part), 6 (part), 7 (part), 8, 9 10 (part) 

Block 24303 — Lots 1 (part), 3, 4 (part), 6 (part), 17 (part), 18, 19 

II. REDEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES 

Redevelopment activities of the Claremont Study Area will be undertaken in 
conformity with and will be designed to meet the following goals and objectives. 

A. To redevelop the Claremont Study Area through the elimination of blighting 
influences and by providing opportunity for new development. 

` 

B. To provide for coordination of redevelopment activities to promote a uniform 
attack on blight and reinforce already existing renewal and improvement - 

programs in adjacent areas. 

C. To provide additional revenue to the City through the assembly and private 
_ 

development of lands which are currently contributing limited revenue to the 
City. 

-

g
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D. To encourage the proper reuse of abandoned rail rights of way which may 
otherwise remain unused. 

‘ 

E. To provide land needed to accommodate the growing desire for industrial 
space in J ersey· City. 

F. To create skilled and semiskilled jobs which are accessible to areas of the City 
experiencing above average levels of unemployment. 

G. To provide a vehicular circulation system that will allow for efficient 

movement for vehicles to and from, as well as within the site. 

H. To provide where necessary site improvements including new streets, 

sidewalks, off—street parking, open space, and landscaped areas. , 

I. To encourage and improve public transportation access to the area. 

J. To provide opportrmities for the construction of new housing in the vicinity of 
the Richard Street light rail station consistent with the principals of "Transit 
Village" development. 

K. To promote balanced development in accordance with the Fair Housing Act, 
NJSA 52:25D, and the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan of the Jersey 

I 
City Master Plan. 

III. DESIGN OBJECTIVES 

A. All buildings in the Redevelopment Area must be located with proper 
consideration of their relationship to other buildings in terms of light, air, 
usable open space, access to public and private rights of way, off street 
parking, height and bulk. 

B. Groups of related buildings shall be designed to present a harmonious 
appearance in terms of architectural style and exterior materials. 

C. Buildings shall be designed to be attractive from all vantage points. · 

D. Groups of buildings shall be designed and located to provide for proper 
circulation and loading systems. 

E. All structures shall provide aesthetic consideration of their visibility from the 
adjacent New Jersey Turnpike. 

F. All rooftop mechanical systems shall be adequately screened.

l
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G. Access by the elderly, physically handicapped and/or disabled shall be 
required pursuant to the requirements in the Uniform Construction Code. 

. » Design standards shall meet, at a minimum, barrier free design regulations as - 

specified in the Uniform Construction Code. Handicapped parking
' 

requirements shall meet, at a minimum, regulations as specified in the 
Municipal Code.

t 

IV. GENERAL DESIGN RE UIREIVIENTS (Additional requirements can be
_ 

found in the Land Use Sections of this Plan) 

A. Submission rj Redevelopment Proposals
A 

Prior to commencement of construction, architectural drawings, specifications 
and site plans for the construction and/or rehabilitation of improvements to the 
Redevelopment Area shall be submitting by the developers for review and 
approval by the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City, and by the Board of 
Commissioners of the Jersey City'Redevelopment Agency. 

B. Adverse Influences 

No use or reuse shall be permitted, which, when conducted under proper and 
adequate conditions and safeguards, will produce corrosive, toxic or noxious 
fumes, glare, electromagnetic disturbance, radiation, smoke, cinders, odors, 
dust or waste, undue noise or vibration, or other objectionable features so as to 
be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare. 

C. Off-Street Parking and Loading Objectives
A 

l. Off-street parking and loading areas shall be coordinated with the public
3 

street system serving the project area in order to avoid conflicts with 
through traffic or obstruction to pedestrian walks and thoroughfares;

V 

2. Poured in place concrete curbing or a substitute deemed acceptable by the 
Planning Board must surround all parking facilities and wherever the 
Planning Board deems necessary to prevent vehicles from encroaching on 
landscaped areas; 

_ 3. All parking and loading abutting streets or building lots shall be 
landscaped about their periphery with berms, shrubs, trees and/or ground 
cover. Such landscaped area shall be a minimmn of five (5) feet wide; 
interior loading bays shall be enclosed with opaque overhead doors. 

4. All required parking and loading areas shall be provided off-street. All 
such parking and loading areas shall be graded, paves, adequately drained 
and all access points shall be defmed and limited in accordance with the 
Zoning Ordinance of the city of Jersey City; in residential developments,

3



required parking and loading may be provided on-street within the 
A 

confines of the project area.
l 

5. All required parking spaces shall be a minimum of eight and one—half (8.5) 
feet wide by eighteen (18) feet deep. All aisles shall be a minimum of · 

twenty two (22) feet wide. On-street parallel curb—side parking spaces 
shall be a minimum of twenty two (22) feet long and eight (8) feet wide; 

6. Each loading space shall have a minimum width of twelve (12) feet, a 
minimum depth of forty (40) feet and a minimum overhead clearance of 
fourteen (14) feet; 

7. All parking and loading areas shall be adequately illuminated. 

D. Landscape Desigg Objectives 

1. All open space including yards shall be landscaped with lawns, trees, 
shrubbery, and other appropriate plant materials unless said open space is 
specifically designated for other activities which require paving or other 
treatment. Screen planting shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height. 

. Materials shall be planted, balled and burlapped and of specimen quality 
as established by the American Association of` Nurserymen. At initial 
planting the materials shall provide a screen from the top of the plant to 
within six inches of grade. All other plant materials shall be dense and of 
specimen quality as determined above. All deciduous trees shall have a 
minimtun of two and one half (2.5) inches caliper. All plants, trees and 
shrubs shall be installed in accordance with a planting schedule provided 
by the City Planning Division. Adequate soil. preparation must be made to W 

assure survival of the planted materials; 

2. All lawn areas must be sodded and provided with an underground 
sprinkler system to assure adequate maintenance of such areas; 

3. All landscaped areas and open space must be property maintained and are 
subject to the regulations of the Performance Standards Section of the 
Jersey City Zoning Ordinance; 

4. All fencing must be "tubular steel" or a substitute quality as approved by 
the Jersey City Plamring Board; 

5. All fences within industrial areas shall be a minimum of six (6) feet tall; 
all fencing along street frontages in residential areas shall not exceed 
forty—two (42) inches in order to maintain a pedestrian scale; taller fencing 

V 
shall be pemritted for screening or security purposes. The use of razor 
wire, barbed wire or other similar material is expressly prohibited within 
the Redevelopment Area.

4



6. All site plans must indicate method and location of trash disposal. All 
. such areas must be adequately screened and are subject to Planning Board - 

approval. 

7. Identify historic resources within the zone including the Morris Canal and 
the concrete railroad piers. Preserve where possible and incorporate 
informational signage. Maintain the Morris Canal corridor as green space. 

8. Developer will upgrade sewerage and infrastructure to residential 

standards to the outflow. 

9. Redevelopment shall provide adequate water,. sewer and other necessary 
utilities to the site, to the satisfaction of the Mtmicipal Engineer. All costs 
for infrastructure are the responsibility of the redeveloper. 

E. Circulation Objectives ‘ 

1. Sidewalk shall be provided adjacent to all streets. However, if there is no 
~ development along a side of the street, the sidewalk requirement for that 

side may be waived; 

2. At the Plamring Board’s discretion final roadway, sidewalk and/or other 
site improvement construction may be delayed until individual 
development occurs rather than be in place during initial site preparation 
to minimize damage from construction vehicles. However, under no 
circumstance will final site plan approval be granted without the roadway, 
sidewalk and/or other site improvements in place unless a performance 
guarantee is provided by the developer. 

V. INTERIM USES 

Interim uses may be established, subject to agreement between the developers and 
the Planning Board and the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency Board of 
Commissioners that such uses will not have an adverse effect upon existing or 
contemplated development during the interim use period. This shall include such 
signage necessary for project identification. All interim uses will be subject to 
site plan review by the Jersey City Plamaing Board. Approvals shall be granted 
for no more than three (3) years, although such grants may be extended from time 
to time, consistent with other portions of this section.

5



VI. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

· ~ A. The regulations and controls in this Section will be implemented where · 

applicable by appropriate covenants, or other provisions, or agreements for 
land disposition and conveyance executed pursuant thereto. 

B. The developer shall begin and complete the development of the land and the 
construction of improvements agreed upon in the disposition contract within a 
reasonable amount of time as determined in the said disposition contract 
between the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency and the designated 

developer. 

, 
C. No covenant, lease, conveyance, or other instrument shall be affected or 

executed by the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency or by a redeveloper or
l 

any of his successors or assignees, whereby land within the project area is 
restricted by the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency, or the redeveloper upon 
the basis of race, creed, color, gender, or national origin in the sale, lease, use 

r or occupancy thereof Appropriate covenants, rumring with the land forever, 
will prohibit such restrictions and shall be included in the disposition 
instruments.

_ 

D. No building shall be constructed over an easement in the project area without 
prior written approval of the Jersey City Division of Engineering. 

E. The Jersey City Redevelopment Agency and the Jersey City Planning Board 
shall specifically reserve the right to review and approve the redeveloper’s 
plans and specifications with respect to their conformance to the 

Redevelopment Plan. Such review shall be on the basis of a site plan and 
building designs submitted to both the Redevelopment Agency and thel 

· Planning Board. » 

No additional construction or alteration to existing or proposed construction
A 

shall take place until a site plan reflecting such additional or revised 
construction has been submitted to, and approved by, the Jersey City Plamring 
Board. This pertains to revisions or additions prior to, during and after

` 

completion of the improvements.
I 

F. Prior to commencement of construction, architectural drawings and site plans 
with detailed specifications for the construction and/or rehabilitation of 
improvements to the area shall be subnritted by the developer to the Plamring 
Board of the City of Jersey City for review and approval so that compliance of 
such plans with the redevelopment requirements and objectives can be 
determined. Site plan review shall be conducted by the Plamring Board 
pursuant to NJ SA 40:55D-1 et. seq. Applications may be submitted for the 
entire project or in any number of phases. Final Site Plan approval for any 
phase shall entitle an applicant to building permits.
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As part of any Final Site Plan approval, the Planning Board may require a 
. developer to furnish performance guarantees pursuant to NJ SA 40:55D-53 et . 

seq. Such performance guarantees shall be in favor of the City in a form · 

approved by the Jersey City Corporation Counsel. The amount of any such 
performance guarantees shall be determined by the City Engineer and shall be 
sufficient to assure completion of on and off site improvements within one (1) 
year of final site plan approval. 

G. Any subdivision of lots and parcels of land within the Redevelopment Area
` 

shall be in accordance with the requirements of this Plan and the Land 
Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Jersey City. 

H. The provisions of this plan specifying the redevelopment of the project area 
and the requirements and restrictions with respect thereto shall be in effect for 
a period of forty (40) years from the date of approval of this plan by the Jersey i 

City Council. 

I. All utility distribution lines and utility service connections from such lines to V 

the project area’s individual uses shall be located undergroimd where feasible. 

J. Secmity Stations/Guard Houses may be located throughout the 
Redevelopment Area subject to Plamiing Board approval. 

K. No outside dog kermels may be constructed on site. · 

L. The Planning Board may grant deviations from the regulations contained 
within this Redevelopment Plan, where, by reason of exceptional narrowness, 
shallowness or shape of a specific piece of property, or by reason of

j 

exceptional topographic conditions, pre—existing structures or physical 
features uniquely effecting a specific piece of property, the strict application 
of any area, yard, bulk or design objective or regulation adopted pursuant to 
this Redevelopment Plan, would result in peculiar and exceptional practical 
difficulties to, or exceptional and undue hardship upon, the developer of such 

_ property. 

The Planning Board may also grant a deviation from the regulations contained 
within this Redevelopment Plan related to a specific piece of property where 

l the purposes of this Redevelopment Plan would be advanced by such 
deviation from the strict application of the requirements of this Plan; and the 
benefits of granting the deviation would outweigh any detriments. ‘ 

The Planning Board may grant exceptions or waivers &om design standards, 
H·om the requirements for site plan or subdivision approval as may be 
reasonable and within the general purpose and intent of the provisions for site 
plan review and/or subdivision approval within this Plan, if the literal

7



enforcement of one or more provisions of the plan is impracticable or would · 

exact undue hardship because of peculiar conditions pertaining to the site. No 
T deviations - may be granted under the terms of this section unless such - 

_ deviations can be granted without resulting in substantial detriment to the 
public good and will not substantially impair the intent and purpose of the 
Redevelopment Plan. 

No deviations may be granted which will result in permitting or expanding a 
use that is not a permitted use within this Redevelopment Plan, an increase in 
the maximum height of greater than ten (10%) percent, or an increase in the 
pemritted density floor area ratio of that permitted within this Redevelopment 
Plan. An application requesting a deviation from the requirements of this 
Redevelopment Plan shall provide public notice of such application in 
accordance with the public notice requirements set forth in NJ SA 40:55D-12.a 
& b. 

M. If any word, phrase, clause, section or provision of this Plan shall be found by 
a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, such - 

word, phrase, clause, section or provision shall be deemed severable and the 
remainder of the ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

VII. LAND USE PLAN — INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

A. Permitted Principal Uses— 

1. Offices; 

2. Light Industry gr Manufacturing: Fabrication and/or Assembly and/or 
Processing where the only activity involved is one of the fabricating or 
the assembling of standardized parts as contrasted to a processing 
activity which would involve a physical or chemical process which 
would change the nature or character of the product or raw material; 

3. Scientific Research Laboratories devoted to research, design or 
, experimentation, and processing and fabricating incidental thereto, 

provided that no materials or finished products shall be manufactured, 
processed or fabricated on said premises for sale, except such as are 
incidental to said laboratory activities or are otherwise permitted in this

_ 

District;
_ 

4. Warehousing provided such activity and inventory is conducted entirely 
within an enclosed structure;

. 

5. Public Semi Public Uses. 

_

A
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B. Accessogg Uses—
U 

1. Off—street parking 

O l 

2. Fences and walls 
3. Loading areas 
4. Security stations 

5. Storage and wholesaling — not open to the public — of goods and services 
6. Utilities 

C. Coverage— 

· The maximum amount of land covered by buildings shall not exceed seventy 
percent (70%). 

D. twang- 

1. One (1) space per four hundred (400) square feet for offices; 

2. One (1) space per five thousand (5000) square feet for warehouses; 

3. One (1) space per one thousand (1000) square feet for manufacttuing 
r and laboratories. However, a developer may present a parking needs 

analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer or Planner in lieu of strict · 

adherence to the above requirements. Upon presentation of such 
analysis the Planning Board may reduce the requirement for a particular 
development. 

E. Building Height — · 

U O 

Maximum building height permitted shall be sixty (60) feet except on the 
south side of Caven Point Road east of Commercial Street to the north side of 
the Turnpike right-of—way where the maximum building height permitted shall 
be seventy (70) feet as measured from the finished floor to the average roof 
pitch (not including rooftop mechanicals or mechanical sheds). 

F. Yards—i 
n

i 

Principal structure may be located up to any street line. 

G. Landscaping —
. 

A minimum of fifteen percent (15%) of any lot area shall be landscaped. This 
amount may be reduced on site provided the applicant can demonstrate that 
land constraints such as, but not limited to, topography, environmental 
hazards and/or lot configuration exist and provided that an equivalent amount

P
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of offsite landscaping be provided by the applicant at the discretion of the 
Planning Board.

A 

H. Si@s— 

Each building shall be pennitted no more than two (2) signs; a primary and a 
secondary sign. The primary sign shall not exceed 100 square feet or 10 
percent of the area of the Hont of the building, whichever is less. Signs shall 
be encouragedto be attached to the building, and in no case shall a sign be 
located in a required setback area. The sign may be intemally or extemally 
illuminated but no glare from extemal project identification sign may be 
located at each entrance of an industrial park providing that such does not 

A 
exceed sixty (60) square feet in area.

_
_

A 

1. Loaarirg 

1. Manufacturing, Warehouses Laboratories: 

Gross Floor Area Number pf 
Off street

A 

Loading Spaces 
Less than 10,000 square feet 1 Space 

Each additional 20,000 square feet 1 Space 
- Feet up to 100,000 square feet - - 

Each additional 40,000 square feet 1 Space;
O 

2. Offices: Number of 
Off street 

Gross Floor Area 
` 

Loading Spaces 
Less than 25,000 square feet 0 Space 

25,000 to 100,000 square feet 1 Space 

Each additional 100,000 square feet 1 Space; 

» Adequate provisions shall be made for the maneuvering of all vehicles. 

VIII. LAND USE PLAN — RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 

. A. Pennitted Principal Uses —
A 

1. Townhouse Residential 
2. Residential Apartment Building 

q 

I
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B. Accessory Uses — within the residential district, an accessory building, 
structure, or, use may be an a separate lot within the residential district. i 

1. On—street parking, and off-street parking in parking structures 
_ 

2. Fences and walls 
A .

_ 

3. Convenience commercial uses
_ 

` 

4. Clubhouses and Child care facilities 
5. Parks, playgrounds, recreation facilities and open space 
6. Surface parking areas as accessory to items 3, 4 & 5 above; and 

limited to no more than 20 parking spaces. 
7. Guard houses and gate structures are prohibited at the entrances to any 

residential development. 

» 
t C. Required Parking— ..» 

l. Residential- 1.0 parking spaces per unit. 
2. Other Uses - None 

D. Maximum Height - 

1. Townhouse Residential- 4 Stories 
2. High-ri-se Residential Apartment Building — Up to four (4) h—i·gh—1=ise 
4 

apartment buildings may be constiucted south of Richard Street, as
_ 

extended, with a minimum of 6 stories and up to a height of 14 
- 

i Stories, but-not to exceed 150 feet to the top of the roof —A1l other · 

higl=1·1=i·se buildings, whether constructed south or north of Richard 
Street, shall not exceed 10 Stories, and not more than 110 feet to the 

. top of the roof Parapetsand other roof—top appurtenances may exceed 
this height within the limitations imposed by the Jersey City Land 

` 

Development Ordinance. . 

3. Accessory Buildings (other than parking structures) — 2 Stories 
4. Parking Structures — 4 levels above grade. 

E. Maximum Density — 50 dwelling units per acre based on the gross area of 
the entire development parcel. 

F. Setbacks — It is the intent of this plan to create development parcels or 
blocks, such that nearly the entire development block is to be covered with 
a building consisting of an interior parking structure, townhouse type or . 

other residential units ringing the parking structure and facing onto the 
streets, and a, apartment structure above the parking base. 
Therefore, the use of the terms side setback or rear setback will not be 
applicable. The front setback shall be measured from the street right of 
way line or interior edge of the sidewalk to the front of the building. The 
minimum setback from this line shall be five (5) feet, and in no case closer 
than fifteen (15) feet from the curb line. However, the distance to the 

_
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front of a townhouse unit should be greater than the distance to the wall of 
an apartment structure in order to accommodate the stoop of the 

~ · townhouse and a small front garden area. Where more than one · 

apartment high-rise structure occupies any development block, there shall 
_ be at least 100 feet between the apartment structures. 

G. Buffer and Screening Requirements — 

l. A continuous buffer strip shall be provided along the eastern edge of 
any residential development parcel to screen the proposed residential 
development &om railroad and industrial uses to the east. The buffer 
strip shall be at least twenty (20) feet wide and shall be densely 

_ 
planted with a combination of evergreen and deciduous plant materials 

. in order to provide a visual screen. - » 

2. A continuous buffer strip shall be provided along the western edge of 
any residential development parcel to screen the proposed residential 
development from the light rail right-of way and other uses to the 
west. The buffer strip shall be at least fifteen (15) feet wide and shall 
be densely planted with a combination of evergreen and deciduous 
plant materials in order to provide a visual screen. 

H. Building Design Requirements— 

- 
1. Parking garage facade treatment — - — 

a. All parking levels shall be screened so as not to give the apparent 
perception of garage space. Facades shall be screened by an 

. 

V 

intervening use (i.e. residential, office, retail, restaurant, building 
lobby, etc.) between the parking use and the street or walkway

i 

frontage to mask the parking within the building. 

b. Parking levels which are at least 50% below grade may directly 
adjoin a street frontage. However, the facade of these levels shall 

· 

be designed to imitate the traditional basement level of a · 

residential building. The material used on the base facade of the 
parking levels of a building shall be the same as, or compatible 
with, that used on the rest of the building. Artificial windows of 
the punched out style utilizing glass or decorative 

. grillwork or a combination of same shall be utilized 

c. Interior garage lighting shall utilize fixtures that will not readily 
expose the lighting source from view, thereby maintaining a soft 
illumination of the interior garage space. Individual fixture 
sources shall not be visible from the exterior. An intemal liglrtirrg

i
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plan prepared by a lighting professional shall be included with any 
garage application for review and approval.

V 

‘ 

2. All residential buildings shall front upon a public street or walkway,
T 

_ 
and shall be so oriented as to contribute to the overall liveliness of the 
pedestrian enviromnent. The pedestrian level of all buildings should 

g 
be designed to a scale appropriate to walking. 

3. Front yard parking is _prohibited in residentially zoned portions of the 
Redevelopment Area. 

4. The windows and glazing of a building are a major element of style 
_ 

that gives character to the building. Windows and glazing on grotmd
_ 

. . floor retail uses should be broad and expansive providing views into - 

the store and display areas. . 

5. Windows in residential portions of a building should be arranged such 
that the vertical dimension, or height, is greater than the horizontal 

dimension, or width. However, bay windows, bow windows and other 
_ 

similar architectural features may also be incorporated into the facade 
to provide interest and character. 

6. All corner buildings shall have windows on both street frontages. The 
window sill of any residential window shall not be less than five (5) 

— — feet above the elevation of the adjoining sidewalk, unless the building · 

is setback at least 10 feet from the sidewalk or other adequate visual 
screening methods are employed.

i 

7. Facade treatments, materials, colors and architectural treatments shall 
` 

be compatible with the buildings architectural style. Artificial stone 

and artificial brick veneer ("Permastone" & "Brickface"), EIFS, 
asbestos and asphalt shingles are not permitted. 

‘ 

8. All townhouse style structures shall have a raised stoop or porch at the 
. front building entrance. 

9. Groups of related buildings shall be designed to present a harmonious 
appearance in terms of architectural style and exterior materials. 

I 
Buildings shall be designed so as to have an attractive, finished 

appearance when viewed from all vantage points within and outside 
the Area. Materials used for screening of rooftop mechanical 
equipment shall be harmonious with those used in the building's 
facade. 

l0. In all cases, due consideration shall be given to the screening of 
rooftop mechanical equipment, satellite dishes, and television and

. 
. 

.
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· radio antennas. Where feasible, rooftop mechanical equipment shall be 
screened from view Hom all directions and elevations to minimize the 

. negative aesthetic impact upon the view from neighboring residential- 
zones and nom street level. Said screening shall be constructed in a 
manner that is pleasing to the eye and consistent with the surrounding

V 

architecture and the architecture of the building. 

ll. H~igl=r—1=ise Apartment buildings shall be designed to have a significant 
top or cap. The architectural treatment utilized to create the building 
top shall include various stepback treatments at the upper levels to 
create open terraces, the utilization of penthouse structures, and/or 
architectural treatments to conceal rooftop equipment.

A 

. l2. View corridors along existing street rights-of—way east of Garfield . 

- Avenue shall be preserved. No building shall be located so as to 
obstruct the view within the corridor created by the extension of said 
street right-of-way lines to and through the Residential District. 

13. All trash receptacles shall be located within buildings or parking areas, 
and shall be adequately screened, enclosed and secured. 

I. Landscape, Streetscape, Lighting and Open Space Requirements - 

1. A unified streetscape plan shall be prepared as part of any site plan 
- application. The plan shall identify sidewalk materials, colors and » 

other features. The plan shall also include any other decorative 
features to be employed including: landscaping, tree guards and/or 
grates, benches, trash receptacles, lighting and other decorative street V 

furniture. 

2. All utility distribution lines and utility service connections from such 
lines to the project area's individual uses shall be located undergrormd. 
Remote readers for all utilities, in lieu of extemal location of the actual 
metering devices are preferred. Developers are required to arrange for 
connections to public and private utilities. 

3. All new projects must include a landscape plan for the subject site, 
including the sidewalk area adjoining the site. Landscaping shall be 

· 

required for any part of any parcel not used for buildings, off—street 
parking, sidewalk area or other similar purposes. All proposed site 
plans shall include plans for landscaping indicating the location, size 
and quantity of the various species to be used. 

4. Parking lots for five (5) or more vehicles shall provide planting areas 
along any street line and along all property lines except in those 
instances where a building intervenes or where the proposed planting 

V
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may interfere with sight triangles. The landscaping in said planting 
areas shall consist of evergreen material, flowering tress and shrubs 

. . and shade trees that are planted on a center that is consistent with the » 

mature spread of the species planted in order to provide screening and 

_ _ 

buffer areas for the parking. Where possible, such planting areas shall 
collect adjacent storm water runoff 

5. Within surface parking areas, a minimum of one tree shall be planted 
for every 8 parking spaces. These trees should be interspersed 
throughout the parking area, but may be located in the planting areas 
arormd the perimeter of the parking area if space limitations dictate. 

6. Landscaping shall be maintained with shrubs not higher than three (3) - 

.

l 

. feet, except where a taller buffer or visual screen is required,.and with
L

. 

the branches of shade trees no lower than ten (l0) feet. The 
landscaping shall be designed such that it is dispersed around the 
parking area in an aesthetically pleasing marmer. 

7. Trees shall be planted along curb lines of streets at a maxirnurn of 35 
feet on center to further enhance the aesthetic quality of the pedestrian 
environment in the Area; except where the curb line or sidewalk area 
adj oin a buffer area. 

8. All plant material used must be able to withstand the urban 
» enviromnent and shall be planted consistent with standards as - 

established by the American Association of Nurserymen. A planting 
schedule shall be provided by the developer as part of the Site Plan 
Application. Any landscaping that dies within one (1) year of planting ~ 

shall be replaced. Wherever practical, irrigation should be with
5 

collected and reused storm water. 

9. Street lighting fixtures shall be located at the outer edge of all 
sidewalks and have a comprehensive decorative design theme. The 
lighting fixtures shall be of pedestrian scale. Taller "Cobra Head" 
lighting fixtures oriented toward the carriage way may be utilized as 
part of the lighting plan, but not to the exclusion of the pedestrian scale 
lighting, provided that they are the same color as the decorative 
lighting and the pole for the "Cobra Head" lighting is of the same 
design and color as the pedestrian scale lighting. Along the residential 
side streets, street lighting fixture shall be located at the outer edge of 
all sidewalks. Decorative pedestrian scale lighting is preferred and 
encouraged. 

I 
l0. Lighting within each site and along all street rights—of-way shall be 

sufficient to illuminate all areas and provide for a safe, evenly 
illmninated enviromnent. -
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ll. On—site lighting fixtures shall be in scale with the size of the project. 
. . Bollard type lighting and/or pedestrian scale lighting is encouraged. - 

12. Sidewalk areas shall be durably paved in conformance with Mtmicipal
, 

standards. Porous paving materials are encouraged where appropriate, 
including the street tree planting strip along the curb line. 

13. Sidewalks areas shall be continuous across any driveway, including 
any decorative paving elements. Access to any driveway, garage, 
parking alley or common parking area shall be via a "dropped" curb 

_, 

and slopedi apron. Said access shall not be provided by the use of 
_ 

· 

radius curbing and an extension of the street pavement. Driveway 
4 widths and curb cuts shall be limited to the iminimmn width and - 

number necessary. Shared curb cuts and driveways are encouraged. 

14. Only decorative style fences, such as tubular steel, "wrought iron", or 
other similar type fences, are permitted along street frontages. The 
design of the fencing shall be in keeping with and appropriate to the 
architectural style of the building. Fencing along all street frontages 
shall not exceed forty-two (42) inches in height. 

15. Chain link fencing shall be prohibited along all street frontages within 
the Area, except during construction. Chain link fencing for 

— — construction shall be dismantled and removed prior to the issuance of a — · 

Certificate of Occupancy. 

16. A pedestrian plaza shall be created near the Richard Street light rail 
station. This pedestrian plaza shall also incorporate a drop off area 
where vehicles can drop off passengers headed to the light rail station. 
Additional open space shall be developed within the Redevelopment 
Area to compliment the club house, and shall be open to all residents 
ofthe project area. This open space may include active and/or passive 
recreation areas associated with the clubhouse, and may also include 
areas maintained as wetlands, detention/retention areas and/or other 
vegetated areas. In the altemative, the developer may make recreation 
and open space improvements to Bayside Park which would be of

1 

equal value to the above improvements. 

J. Circulation Plan and Requirements— 

1. At present (i.e. 2004), the Residential District is bisected by a railroad 
line which runs across the district in a generally east—west direction. 
Therefore: 

_ 
4
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a. No development shall be permitted north of the railroad line, 
unless a vehicular bridge is constructed over this railroad line; or 

» ~ until this railroad line is abandoned and removed and a roadway is - 

constructed to the northem portion of the site. In the alternative, a 
p roadway constructed at grade across this railroad line at grade shall I 

suffice to meet the above requirement if a secondary means of 
_ 

vehicular access is also created linking the northem part of the site 
to another public street outside the boundary of the project area. 
Any such bridge or roadway must be constructed in conformance 
with all applicable rules and regulations, and approved by the 
Planning Board, the City of Jersey City, and all other agencies 
having jurisdiction.

· 
· 

_ 
b. No certificate of occupancy or temporary certificate of occupancy . 

shall be issued for any structure within the Residential District 
until at least an at grade pedestrian walkway across the railroad 
line and the light rail line has been constructed and deemed 
complete to the satisfaction of the Planning Board in order to 
provide pedestrian access to the Richard Street light rail station. If 
and when the roadway or bridge described in paragraph "a" above 

‘ 

is constructed, then the sidewalk portions of said roadway or 
bridge shall be considered to be part of the pedestrian walkway to 
the light rail station. 

· 2. All streets- within the residential land use district shall be two way » 

streets. 

.

A 

3. All travel lanes shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide. All parking lanes 
shall be a minimum of 8 feet wide. 

4. All east—west streets shall have parking on both sides. All north—south 
streets shall have parking on at least one side and may have parking on 
both sides. 

5. All sidewalks located on the same side of the street as a building shall 
be a minimmn of 10 feet wide measured from the outside of the curb 
surface to the interior edge of the sidewalk. Sidewalks are not 
required on the opposite side of the street from a building except 
where on-street parking is provided, in which case a sidewalk of 5 feet 
in width shall be provided. 

IX. OTHER PROVISION NECESSARY TO MEET STATE AND LOCAL 
REQ QUIREIVIENTS 

A. The "Redevelopment Agencies law" NJSA 40:55C—l, g gh, specifically 
40:55C—32 requires that a redevelopment plan shall: 

i
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• The industrial land use elements of this plan conform to the general plan for 
- the municipality as a whole. The residential- component of this plan was not · 

envisioned at the time of the preparation of the last Master Plan in the year 
2000. However, since that time, the Richard Street lightrail station has been 
opened making portions of the Claremont Redevelopment Area better suited

. 

for residential development. In addition, the portions of the Redevelopment 
Area designated for residential uses are adjacent to other residentially zoned 
portions of Jersey City to the west. 

• Shall be sufficiently complete to indicate such land acquisition, demolition 
and removal of structures, redevelopment, improvements, conservation or 

_ rehabilitation as may be proposed to be carried out in the area of the proj e_ct, 
» zoning and plamring changes, if any, land uses, maximum densities, building 4 

requirements, and the plan’s relationship to definite local objectives 
respecting appropriate land uses, improved traffic, public transportation, 
public utilities, recreational and community facilities, and other public 
improvements. 

B. In accordance with State requirements, the followingl statements are made: 

• The proposals of this plan conform with the general plan for the mtmicipality; 
and

` 

• This plan provides an outline for the development or redevelopment of the` 
Claremont Redevelopment Area and is sufficiently complete to indicate such 
land. acquisition, demolition, and removal of structures, redevelopment, 
improvements as proposed, planning changes, land uses, maximum densities, 

V 
building requirements, and its relationship to defmite local objectives 
respecting appropriate \land uses, improved traffic, public transportation, 
public utilities, community facilities, and other public improvements. 

• Provisions for the temporary and permanent relocation of persons in the 
Redevelopment Area are not applicable as the Area does not contain 
residential structures. 

‘ • » The City of Jersey City, through the services of the Jersey City 
Redevelopment Agency relocation staff will provide displaced entities with 
the relocation assistance necessitated by State Law. This office will be 
staffed by qualified personnel who will actively assist displaced businesses in 
finding adequate accommodations. 

X. PROCEDURE FOR AMENDING THE PLAN 

This Redevelopment Plan may be amended from time to time upon compliance
I 

with the requirements of law. A fee of five hundred dollars ($500 1,000) plus all 
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costs for copying and transcripts shall be payable to the City of Jersey City for 
any request to amend this Plan. If there is a designated developer, as provided for 
under NJ SA 40:55C-l g sgqg said developer shall be responsible for any and all 
such costs. If there is no developer the appropriate agency shall be responsible 

_ for any and all such costs.
_
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ORDINANCE *1 

. . . . QO 
' 
‘£| Y-"‘| gy .

Q OF 
]ERSEY CITY, N .]. 

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-019 

TITLE: ORDINANCE or THE MUNrcn>AL councn. or THE CITY or JERSEY CITY 
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE HOBOKEN AVENUE REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO 
CLARIFY PERMITTED USES 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City adopted the Hoboken Avenue Redevelopment Plan 
on September 13, 2006, and amended the Plan numerous times subsequently; and 

WHEREAS, existing Plan permits 4-unit multi-family buildings, however with the approved elimination of the 
Plan glossary that stipulation will be unclear; and 

WHEREAS, adding this pennitted use standard back into the text willrresolve this confusion; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NJSA 40A: l2A—1 et seq., the Planning Board has reviewed these proposed amendments and 
recommended their adoption by the Municipal Council at their meeting of December 18, 2012; and 

_ WHEREAS, a copy of the Planning Board’s recommended amendments to the Hoboken Avenue Redevelopment 
Plan is attached hereto, and made a part hereof] and is available for public inspection at the office of the City 
Clerk, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAHYED by the Municipal Cotmcil of the City of Jersey City that the 
aforementioned amendments to the Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan be, and hereby are, adopted. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAIN ED THAT: 
A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 
B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City 

Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code. 
C. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided bylaw. 
D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any 

chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance 
reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and 
possible repealers of existing provisions. 

E. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption 
of this Ordinance to the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant to 
N.J.S. 40:55D-15 and N.J.S. 40:55D-63 (if required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing 
thereon, the City Clerk is directed to publish notice ofthe passage thereof and to file a copy ofthe Ordinance as 
finally adopted with the Hudson County Planning Board as required by N.J.S. 40:55D—16. The clerk shall also 
forthwith transmit a copy of this Ordinance after final passage to the Municipal Tax Assessor as required by 
N.J.S. 40:49-2.1. 

,. Robert D. Cotter, PP, FAICP 
Director, Division of City Planning 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: _ 
0-V 

APPROVED: ‘ 

Corporation Counsel Business dministrator 

Certification Required El 

Not Required III
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· Date Submitted to B.A. 
ORDINANCE FACT SHEET 

1. Full Title of Ordinance: 

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY 
CITY ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE HOBOKEN AVENUE 

· - REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CLARIFY PERMIT-TED USES 

2. Name and Title of Person Initiating the Ordinance, etc.: 

Carl Czaplicki, Director of Housing, Economic Development, and Commerce

A 

3. Concise Description of the Program, Project or Plan Proposed in the Ordinance: 

This ordinance clarifies existing permitted uses in the Hoboken Avenue Redevelopment 
Plan subsequent to the adoption of the Land Development Ordinance glossary. No 
changes to the permitted uses are proposed. 

4. Reasons (Need) for the Proposed Program, Project, etc.: 

Inconsistency between Redevelopment Plan and Land Development Ordinance 

5. Anticipated Beneiits to the Community: 

A Clarification between Redevelopment Plan and Land Development Ordinance 

6. Cost of Proposed Plan, etc.: 

$0.00. Plan was prepared by Division of City Planning staff 

7. Date Proposed Plan will commence: 

Upon Adoption. 

8. Anticipated Completion Date: N/A 

9. Person Responsible for Coordinating Proposed Program, Project, etc.: 

Robert D. Cotter, Director, City Planning 547-5050
n

A 

10. Additional Comments:
_ 

I Certify that all the Facts Presented- Herein are Accurate. 

9- Q6/3 
Di rsion irector D 

I 

{ ;. _/ .
_ Ov ` / I 

Department(Di tor Signature Date 

G:\REPLANS\l·lobokcn Avenue\Amend2 Hoboken Ave Detintions l204l2\Council\l·l0b - Fact Sheetdoc



Summary Sheet: 

_ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY
_ 

CITY ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE HOBOKEN AVENUE 
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CLARIFY PERMITTED USES 

This ordinance clarifies existing permitted uses in the Hoboken Avenue Redevelopment 
Plan subsequent to the adoption of the Land Development Ordinance glossary. No 
changes to the permitted uses are proposed. 

G:\REPLANS\Hobokcn Avcnue\Amend2 Hoboken Ave Defintions l204l2\Council\HOB - Summary Sheet.doc
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Hoboken Avenue 

_ _ 

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN
_ 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The Hoboken Avenue Redevelopment Area (hereinalter the Redevelopment Area or the Area) 
was determined to be "an area in need of redevelopment", pursuant to the New Jersey Local 
Housing and Redevelopment Law (N .J .S.A. 40A: 12A-l et seq.) by resolution of the Jersey City 
Municipal Council following a recommendations by the Jersey City Planning Board. 

The Hoboken Avenue Redevelopment Area is bounded on the south by the Jersey Avenue 
Redevelopment Area. The areas to the east of the Study Area, along the Hudson River 
waterfront, have already seen tremendous growth and redevelopment activity. The Newport 
Center Mall and new high rise commercial and residential development is further evidence of the 
revitalization of the waterfront district. 

The subject Area on the other hand is characterized by vacant land, formerly used for industrial 
purposes and in generally in poor condition; and therefore, are not in keeping with those uses 
permitted in the zone plan for the Area or recommended in the Master Plan. 

It would now appear to be appropriate for the City to take a more pro—active approach to 
redevelopment in this Area, so as to bring the Area into greater compliance with the 
recommendations of the Master Plan and redevelop the Area in a mamrer that is more consistent 
with redevelopment activities in the smrorurding community. 

II. BOUNDARIES 

The Hoboken Avenue Area is located in the Downtown section of Jersey City, north of the New 
Jersey Turnpike, Hudson County Extension (a.k.a. Interstate 78). The Area is generally bound by 
the New Jersey Transit Morris and Essex Rail line, New York Avenue and the City of Hoboken 
Boundary line on the north and northeast, Hoboken Avenue on the south and southeast, and 
Monmouth Street on the west. 

The Area consists of the following Tax Blocks and Lots:
U 

Block 6001, Lots 40 through 45 

The boundary of the Redevelopment Area is also depicted on Figure l — Boundary Map. 
Since lot lines may change overtime due to subdivisions and/or consolidations, in case ofa 
conilict between the above description and the Boundary Map, the Boundary Map shall prevail.

1



III. REDEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES AND REQUIREMENTS OF ANY 
DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE PLAN AREA 

p 

A. The planning and development of the Redevelopment Area as a primarily residential
l

_ 

mixed-use area with ground floor commercial uses where appropriate. 

B. To provide for new open space and recreation opportunities both within the 
redevelopment area and in immediately adjacent areas. 

C. To promote the principles of "Sma1t Growth" and "Transit Village" development. i.e. 
sustainable economic and social development, including a variety of housing choices, 
providing pedestrian hiendly streets and public rights—of—way, minimize automobile use 
by maximizing the appeal of mass transit, encourage reduced parking and shared use 
parking solutions, and creating a livable community with convenient access to 
commercial facilities. 

_

A 

D. Minimize off-street parking and maximize the use of mass transit in order to take 
advantage of the Hudson-Bergen Light Rail station located just to the north. 

E. To integrate new development within the Area into the surrounding community by 
encouraging the creation of a viable residential community that will complement the 
existing and proposed development in adjacent redevelopment areas. 

F. The improvement of the pedestrian environment and traffic circulation for the 
contemplated new development by limiting vehicular access to residential development 
sites to Momnouth Street, the proposed creation of a pedestrian walkway leading from 
Hoboken Avenue to the 2“d Street Light Rail Station along the light rail right of way, and 
the provision of new side walks, street trees and other pedestrian amenities within the 
existing street rights-of-way. t ‘ 

IV. PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT ACTIONS
A 

It is proposed to substantially improve and upgrade the Redevelopment Area through
`

a 
combination of redevelopment actions that will provide a uniform and consistent attack on blight 
within the Area by systematically removing blighting influences in an orderly marmer and 
allowing for new construction. These will include but not be limited to: f 

A. Acquisition of vacant land, and/or acquisition and demolition of structures, determined to 
be impediments to sound and comprehensive redevelopment. 

B. The consolidation and re-subdivision of land within the Redevelopment Area into 
suitable parcels for development for the new residential and commercial land uses where 
necessary. 

C. Provision for a full range of public and/or private infrastructure necessary to service and 
support new development in the Area and adjacent areas, including the re—construction of 
Momnouth Street and other new streets within the redevelopment area.

2



D. Construction of new structures and complementary facilities that are compatible with the 
land use pattems in the surrounding area. 

V. 
4 

GENERAL ADIVIINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
l A 

The following provisions shall apply to all property located within the Hoboken Avenue 
Redevelopment Area. A

. 

A. Prior to the commencement of: (a) any new construction, (b) reconstruction, (c) 
rehabilitation (d) any change to the interior floor plan of any structure, (e) any change in 
the use of any structure or parcel, or (f`) any change in the intensity of use of any structure 
or parcel; a site plan for such shall be submitted by the developer or property owner to the 
Planning Board for review and site plan approval. No temporary or permanent Building 
Permit shall be issued for any work associated with a through f above, without prior site 
plan review and approval of such work by the Plamring Board. Nothing in this section is 
intended to require site plan review and approval for minor modifications to the interior 
floor plan, such as the relocation or modification of partition walls, which are commonly 

· done to accommodate new tenancies or during lease renewals. 

B. The provisions of this Plan specifying the redevelopment of the Area and the 
requirements and restrictions with respect thereto shall be in effect for a period of twenty . 

(20) years from the original date of approval of this Plan by the Jersey City Municipal 
Council. Subsequent amendments hereto shall not alter or extend this period of duration, 
unless specifically extended by such amendments. 

C. Prior to commencement of construction, architectural drawings and site plans with 
detailed specifications for the construction and/or rehabilitation of improvements to the j 

area shall be submitted by the developer to the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City 
for review and approval so that compliance of such plans with the redevelopment 
requirements and objectives can be determined. Site plan review shall be conducted by

A 

the Planning Board pursuant to NJ SA 40:55D-l et. seq. Applications may be submitted 
for the entire proj ect or in any number of phases. Final Site Plan approval for any phase 
shall entitle an applicant to building permits. 

As part of any Final Site Plan approval, the Planning Board may require a developer to 
furnish performance guarantees pursuant to NJ SA 40:55D-53 et seq. Such performance 
guarantees shall be in favor ofthe City in a fonn approved by the Jersey City Corporation 
Counsel. The amount of any such perf` ormance guarantees shall be determined by the 
City Engineer and shall be sufficient to assure completion of on and off site 
improvements within one (1) year of Hnal site plan approval.

l 

D. Any subdivision of lots and parcels of land within the Redevelopment Area shall be in 
accordance with this Plan's requirements and the Jersey City Land Subdivision 
Ordinance.

V

·

3



E. 
‘ No development or redevelopment of any parcel in the Redevelopment Area that will 
result in an increase in wastewater Hom that parcel shall be permitted unless and until the 
plarmed project wastewater piping and systems for the removal of effluent and storm 
water are approved by the City of Jersey City Division of Engineering and the Municipal 

` 

Utilities Authority; and the municipal wastewater piping and systems for the removal of 
effluent and storm water are certified by the City of Jersey City Division of Engineering . 

and the Municipal Utilities Authority as being of sufficient capacity and good condition 
to accommodate uses that will occupy said parcel. Such approval may be contingent upon 
requisite improvements to the drainage system in the street, as determined by the Division 
of Engineering. 

F. Interim uses may be permitted, subject to site plan review and approval by the Planning 
Board. The Planning Board shall only permit uses that it fmds will not have an adverse 
effect upon surrounding existing or contemplated development during the interim use 
period. Interim uses must be approved by the Planning Board. The Board shall establish 
an interim use period of up to three (3) years in duration. The Planning Board may grant 
additional one (l) year renewals of interim uses upon application, review, and approval. 
Commuter or commercial surface parking lots and cornrnuter or commercial parking 
garages are specifically prohibited and shall not be pemiitted as interim uses. 

G. The Plarming Board may grant deviations from the regulations contained within this Plan, 
where, by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness or shape of a specific piece of 
property, or by reason of exceptional topographic conditions, pre-existing structures or 
physical features uniquely affecting a specific piece of property, the strict application of 
any area, yard, bulk or design objective or regulation adopted pursuant to this Plan, would 
result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue 
hardship upon, the developer of such property. The Planning Board may also grant a 
deviation from the regulations contained within this Plan related to a specific piece of 
property where the purposes of this Plan would be advanced by such deviation from the 
strict application of the requirements of this Plan; and the benefits of granting the 
deviation would outweigh any detriments. The Planning Board may grant exceptions or 
waivers from design standards, &om the requirements for site plan or subdivision 
approval as may be reasonable and within the general purpose and intent of the provisions 
for site plan review and/or subdivision approval within this Plan, if the literal 
enforcement of one or more provisions of the plan is irnpracticable or would exact undue 
hardship because of peculiar conditions pertaining to the site. No deviations may be 
granted under the terms of this section unless such deviations can be granted without 
resulting in substantial detriment to the public good and will not substantially impair the 
intent and purpose of this Plan. No deviations may be granted which will result in 
permitting: (1) a use or principal structure in a district restricted against such use or · 

principal structure, (2) an expansion of a non-conforrning use, (3) an increase in height of 
a principal structure which exceeds by 10 feet or 10% the maximum height permitted in 
the district, (4) an increase in the permitted floor area ratio, (5) an increase in the 
permitted density. An application requesting a deviation from the requirements of this 
Plan shall provide public notice of such application in accordance with the public notice 
requirements set forth in NJ SA 40:55D—l2.a. & b.

4



H. The regulations and controls in this section may be implemented where applicable by 
appropriate covenants, or other provisions, or agreements for land disposition and 
conveyance executed pursuant thereto. 

` 

I. No covenant, lease, conveyance or other instrument shall be effected or executed by the
` 

Jersey City Redevelopment Agency or by a redeveloper or any successors or assignees, » 

whereby land within the Redevelopment Area is restricted by the Jersey City 
Redevelopment Agency or the redeveloper upon the basis of race, creed, color or national 
origin in the sale, lease, use or occupancy thereof Appropriate covenants, running with . 

the land forever, will prohibit such restrictions and shall be included in the disposition 
instruments. 

J. No building shall be constructed over an easement in the Redevelopment Area without
l 

site plan review and approval of the Jersey City Planning Board and prior written 
approval of the Redevelopment Agency and the Division of Engineering. 

K. If any word, phrase, clause, section or provision of this Plan shall be found by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, such word, phrase, clause, 
section or provision shall be deemed severable and the remainder of the ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

VI. GENERAL DESIGN REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS
_ 

The following standards and requirements shall apply to all applications, including but not 
limited to: developments, re—developments, rehabilitation, and or re—use applications within the 
Redevelopment Plan area: 

- A. All utility distribution lines; utility service connections from such lines to the 
» Redevelopment Area's individual uses; and utility appliances, regulators and 

metering devices shall be located underground or within the building. No utility 
boxes or structure shall be permitted in sidewalk areas or exterior to the 
building. Remote readers are required for all utilities, in lieu of extemal 
location of the actual metering devices. Developers are required to arrange for

I 

connections to public and private utilities. 

B. Chain link fencing shall be prohibited within the Redevelopment Area, except during
A 

construction. Chain link fencing for construction shall be dismantled and removed prior 
to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

C. No Billboard shall be permitted on any property contained within the Redevelopment 
Area.

g 

D. No signage shall be permitted within the Redevelopment Area, which includes flashing, 
blinking or otherwise animated lights and/or parts, spimrers, pemiants, reflective 
materials, which sparkle or twinkle and/or similar materials; except for seasonal holiday 
decorations.

5



E. No advertising shall be permitted on parking meters, light poles, or on benches or other 
street furniture within the public right-of-way.

. 

F. Upon demolition of any existing structures, the site shall be graded, planted, sodded, 
_

U

` 

and/or developed, as
’ 

app11¤ab1c, in accordance with this Plan. 

G. All trash dmnpsters and/or compactors shall be located within the buildings. All outdoor 
storage shall be prohibited.

. 

H. All buildings within the Redevelopment Area must display the street address of the 
building such that it is clearly visible from the adjoining street right of way. 

I. In order to facilitate the overall redevelopment of the Hoboken Avenue Redevelopment 
Area, the surrounding area, and the City of Jersey City in general, all advertising, signage 
and other promotion of the resulting project, whether undertaken by the City, the 
Redevelopment Agency, or private developers, shall contain references to the proposed 
project’s location. They all shall clearly state it to be within the City of Jersey City so as 
to promote the positive external effects for not only the proj ect, but the Redevelopment 
Area and the City as well. 

VII. URBAN DESIGN REQUIREMENTS 

A. Building Design Requirements
_ 

1. All new structures within the Redevelopment Area shall be situated with proper 
consideration of their relationship to other buildings of architectural merit, both existing 
and proposed, in terms of material, light, air and usable open space, access to public 
rights of way and off—street parking, height, setback and bulk; Buildings shall be 
designed to be attractive &om all vantage points, such that the same facade materials and 
detailing are used on all facades. 

2. Buildings shall be oriented toward the street so as to contribute to the overall liveliness of 
the pedestrian enviromnent. Main-building entries shall be prominent, easily identifiable, 
and cormect directly to the public street and sidewalk and shall not occur simply as voids 
within or between buildings. 

3. Buildings shall have a clear base, middle and top. Architectural devises, such as 
providing stringcourses, cornices and sub—comices, lintels and sills, and/or horizontally 
differentiating surface treatments, can be used to achieve the necessary transitions. 

4. The windows and glazing of a building are a major element of the style which gives 
character to a building and shall be appropriately and sensitively chosen. 

5. Balconies and terraces may extend from the building when facing into interior courts. 
However, all balconies facing onto streets shall be prohibited.

r
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6. EIFS (Exterior Insulating Finishing Systems, stucco, artificial stone, CMU size/type 
block, vinyl and/or aluminum siding and artificial brick panel systems, veneer such as 
permastone or brick—face and/or plastic type artificial siding materials may not be used as » 

facade cladding within this Redevelopment Area. Facade material to be used shall be
` 

primarily of brick, Standard, Modular and Norman sizes only. 
` A 

7. All mechanical equipment, generators, HVAC equipment and similar equipment shall be 
acoustically buffered such that any noise generated by the equipment shall be within the 
applicable standards as defined by the State of New Jersey. 

8. All electronic communication equipment shall be totally screened hom view. This shall 
be achieved through creative disguises within the basic architecture of the building, such 
that it does not negatively impact the appearance of the building. Said screening shall be 
constructed in a marmer that is consistent with the architecture of the building, and shall 
utilize the same materials used in the construction of the building, such that the screening 
appears to be an integral part ofthe building. The screening shall not impair· the 
frmctioning of the equipment. Said equipment shall be located so as to minimize or 
eliminate the need for screening. Cellular antemras / wireless communication antennas 
and facilities are not permitted within this Redevelopment Area. Reference shall be made 
to the Wireless Communications section of the Jersey City Land Development Ordinance 
for appropriate permitted locations for these facilities. There shall be no rooftop louvers 

g 
utilized as screening. 

9. All mechanical equipment, generators, HVAC equipment and similar equipment shall be 
totally screened Hom view, both from the street and existing or plarmed neighboring 
buildings. Said screening shall be constructed in a manner that is consistent with the 
architecture of the building, and shall utilize the same or complimentary materials used in 
the construction of the building, such that the screening appears to be an integral part of 
the building. Interior locations must be utilized where mechanically possible

. 

l0. No more than 15% of any street frontage may be occupied by utility or equipment rooms. 

l 1. A planting buffer must be provided at grade between the property line and the building 
line, except where a commercial use fronts onto the street or as necessary for pedestrian 
and vehicular access. 

12. The windows and glazing of a building are a major element of style that gives character to 
the building. Windows and glazing on grormd floor commercial uses, if any, should be 

- broad and expansive providing views into the store and display areas. At least seventy— 
five (75%) percent of the retail facade shall be glass. Comer buildings shall have 
windows on both street Horrtages. If security gates are used on any part of the building or 
window, they shall be installed on the interior side of the window, hidden from view - 

when closed, and be of the open grate style. Similarly, windows and doors into 
residential lobby areas should be broad and expansive allowing views to and from the 

. adjoining streets.
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13. Ventilation equipment required for commercial uses shall be vented through the roof of 
the building. All such equipment ventilated through the roof shall be screened in 
compliance with this plan.

l 

B. Streetscape, Open Space and Landscape Requirements-
l 

1. A streetscape plan is required for all projects and shall include_proposed sidewalk and ‘ 

curbing materials and treatments, street trees, tree pit grates and/or treatments, and any 
proposed street furniture, lighting or other features to be provided.

. 

2. Sidewalk areas must be provided along the street rights of way and shall be properly sized 
for the safe and convenient movement of pedestrians through and around the 
Redevelopment Area. 

3. Sidewalk areas shall be attractively landscaped and durably paved in conformance with 
Municipal standards and shall be provided with adequate lighting. Decorative concrete r 

paving materials shall be incorporated into the design and pedestrian scale lighting is 
required. At a minimmn, decorative elements shall be introduced at building entrances at 
street comers and along the curb line to accent and channel pedestrian flow. 

4. All plant material used must be able to withstand the urban enviromnent and shall be 
planted, balled and burlapped as established by the American Association of Nurserymen. 
A planting schedule shall be provided by the developer and approved by the Planning 
Board. All landscaping shall be guaranteed for a period of two (2) years. Any 
landscaping which is not resistant to the urban enviromnent or that dies shall be replaced 
by the developer or property owner. 

5. Street trees shall be a minimum of 3 % — 4" caliper, planted along all curb lines of streets 
- within the Redevelopment Area at a maximum of 35 feet on center. Each tree pit shall 

contain a decorative metal grate and/or decorative paving treatment. Tree species shall beV 

selected which will achieve a mature height of 50 feet or above and a medium spread.) 
Fast growing trees tend to be weak wooded and inappropriate for street planting. 
Therefore trees shall be selected that have a medium growth rate. The crown shape of the 
tree should be selected to compliment the architecture and setting of the buildings. 
Evergreen trees and fruit trees may not be used as street trees. 

7. Lighting within the Redevelopment Area shall sufficiently illuminate all areas to prevent 
"dark corners". All lighting sources must be shielded to prevent and eliminate any glare. 
The area of illumination shall have a uniform pattem of at least one-half (0.5) foot- 
candles. 

8. Outdoor landscaped open space areas shall be provided for all new construction within 
the Redevelopment Area and shall occupy any required yard areas and/or be constructed 
on the deck over any parking structure. A landscaped plaza or recreation area is required 
at the top of all parking structures in order to provide outdoor open space for building 
residents. All areas not covered by a building or pavement shall be landscaped with trees,
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shrubs, groundcovers or other appropriate plant material and a dog run shall be 
incorporated into all residential projects. 

9. Each project shall be required to make a fmancial contribution to an "Open Space Trust 
Fund" which shall be utilized by the City of Jersey City to improve or acquire public open

l 

space within the Area or immediately adjacent to the Area. Avenue. Open space 
improvements may include; trees and other landscaping, active and passive recreation, 
playgrounds, dog runs and other similar facilities and activities. (See also the Open 
Space Plan, Section DC and the Density Bonus Provisions found therein, Section IX.B.) 

C. Off-street Parking Design and Loading Requirements
_ 

1. All parking shall be located within the building. There shall be no separate parking . 

structures. Access to parking may be provided from Momnouth Avenue. No access to 
parking shall be provided from Hoboken Avenue. There shall be no exposed parking 
permitted, either surface parking or on the top of parking deck levels of a building. A 
landscaped plaza or recreation area is required on the top of all structures parking. 

2. All parking and mechanical related areas along a street facade shall be wrapped along the 
exterior by occupied active building uses,. such as commercial storefionts, residential 

. units, building lobbies, meeting rooms, management offices and other similar spaces 
excepting the location of the vehicular entry and exit and stairways or elevator shafts that 
serve the parking structure along Momnouth Avenue. Utility rooms may occupy no more 
than fifteen (15%) percent of any street facade. On other facades, no visible from the 
street, they shall be designed to disguise the parking use within. 

3. On other facades, no visible from the street, the exterior wall of the parking structure 
shall be architecturally designed to mimic and reflect the occupied portions of the 
building in terms of style, materials and the rhythm of the window openings serving the 
principal uses. They shall be covered by glass or metal in such a way that the exterior 
design is compatible with the design of the building and the actual windows of the 
building. The glass tint and/or reflectivity may be different so as to decrease the visibility 
of the garage use within. Blind windows, where appropriate shall also be permitted. The 
intent of the above regulations is that no exposed garage exterior wall shall be detectable 
as a garage at the grormd floor level. 

4. In order to preserve the maximmn number of on-street parking spaces possible, driveway 
g 

widths and curb cuts shall be limited to the minimum width and nmnber necessary. 
Driveway! curb cut widths leading to parking areas containing less than twenty (20) cars 
shall be no more that twelve (12) feet in width. The width of driveways and curb cuts 
leading to parking areas for twenty (20) cars or more shall be limited to twelve (12) feet 
for one-way traffic and twenty (20) feet for two-way traffic. 

5 . All required parking spaces must be a minimrun of 8.5 feet wide by 18 feet deep. The 
placement of a curb up to two (2) feet within the required 18 foot depth of the parking 
space is permitted, provided that there is adequate area for an automobile occupying the 
parking space to over—hang said curb a like distance without infiinging on required 

.
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landscaping or pedestrian areas. All aisles shall be a minimum of 22 feet wide. Compact 
spaces may be provided only with the approval of the Planning Board and shall be a 
minimum of 8 feet wide by 16 feet deep. 

6. Off-street parking and loading areas shall be coordinated with the public street system 
serving the Redevelopment Area in order to avoid conflicts with vehicular traffic and/or 
obstruction to pedestrian walkways and thoroughfares. No vehicular access to parking 
and/or loading areas may be provided from Hoboken Avenue. 

7. Light sources within any parking level shall not be visible from the exterior of the 
building either Hom the street or from other surrounding buildings and properties. r 

Identification of the internal fixture and its location must be provided in order for any 
" 

application to the Planning Board for site plan to be deemed complete. 

8. Developers shall demonstrate to the Board’s satisfaction that sufficient off—street loading 
is provided to meet the needs of the proposed uses. 

9. All parking provided within the Redevelopment Area shall be for the sole use of the 
residents or tenants of the Redevelopment Area or visitors to the buildings within the 
Redevelopment Area. Parking may not be leased to commuters or other non-residents or 
non-tenants of the Redevelopment Area. 

10. The number of required and/or permitted parking spaces for each use is indicated in 
_ Section VIH of this Plan. 

D. SignageI 

1. Pennitted Signage: 

a. Each residential building shall display the street address of the building on the 
front facade or front door of the building such that it is visible from the adjoining 
street right—of—way. 

b. Each residential building may provide any necessary signage required for proper 
mail delivery —indicating the name(s) of the resident(s) of the building on the

` 

mailbox or doorbell. 
c. Each major residential building, i.e. buildings on lots of 10,000 square feet or 

more, may have one (1) exterior sign flush mounted to the facade at the entrance 
to the building indicating the bui1ding’s name, if any, not to exceed twenty (20) 

» square feet.
A 

d. Commercial Uses - Each such use fronting on a public street may be allowed one 
(1) exterior wall mounted sign not to exceed ten (10%) percent of the area of the 
ground floor storefront only (not the entire building area). Ir1 addition, each 
cormnercial tenant may be permitted one blade sign. Each blade sign shall not 
exceed a maximum of 10 square feet and shall be extemally lit. Blade sign are

_ 

required to be located on the building facade directly on the sidewalk frontage and 
shall be placed such that the lowest portion of the sign hangs at least 8 feet above I 

the sidewalk.
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e. Tenant directories may be located within the lobby of a building. 
fC Accessory Parking — Since commuter and commercial parking is not pennitted, no 

additional signage is pennitted for parking uses. 
g. Other uses shall conform to the requirements of the Jersey City Land 

Development Ordinance,
l 

2. Additional Signage Regulations and Requirements:
A 

a. All signs are subject to minor site plan review when not included as part ofa 
major site plan application. 

b. All signs shall be flush mounted and project no more than fifteen (15) inches, 
although blade signs may be attached to the first floor facade. 

c. Window signs (other than lettering as specifically pennitted) shall be prohibited. 
Lettering shall be limited to decorative gold-leaf, flat black or etched / hosted 
glass style lettering and shall be limited to the name ofthe business occupying the 
commercial space / store front and shall cover no more than twenty (20%) of the 

· window area. 
d. All signs may be attached to the first floor level of the building only. Where there 

is a two—sto1y lobby or mezzanine space incorporated into the design of the 
building, the sign may be permitted to be placed above the lobby at the equivalent 
of the second floor or level with Board approval. 

e. Permitted signage material includes: 1.) Painted wood; 2.) Painted metals 
including aluminum and steel; 3.) Brushed fmished aluminum, stainless steel, 
brass, or bronze; 4.) Carved wood or wood substitute. 

fi Pennitted lettering material includes: I.) Lettering forms applied to the surface of 
the sign; 2.) Single colored lettering fonns applied to the stuface of the sign; 3.) 
Metallic solid body letters with or without returns; 4.) Painted acrylic or metal 
letter; 5.) Neon style lettering.

_ 

g. Sign Lighting: Signs may be lit from gooseneck fixtures, backlit halo, and up- 
lights. Internally lit signs and sign boxes are prohibited.

V 

h. Construction signs subject to the following regulations: Temporary construction 
signs shall not exceed fifty (50) square feet; no person shall exhibit more than one 
(1) such sign per premise, advertising the name of the building or project, general 
contractor, subcontractor, financing institution, public agencies and officials, and 
professional personnel; and such signs shall only be permitted beginning with the 
issuance of a building permit and terminating with the issuance of the certificate 
of occupancy for the building or proj ect. 

, 3. Prohibited Signage: The following signs and devices shall not be permitted within the 
Bates Alley Redevelopment Area: 

Monument signs and intemally or externally illuminated box signs, flashing or animated 
signs, spirmers, pennants, reflective materials that sparkle or twinkle, roof signs, 

‘ 

billboards, signboards, window signs, posters, plastic or paper that appear to be attached 
to the window, pole signs, free—standing signs, fluorescent and/or glowing paint for any 
signage or building within the redevelopment area, waterfall style awnings, plastic 
awnings, product advertising signage of any kind. Product advertising signage is defined
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here to include, but not be limited to signage on: parking meters, signage in windows, on 
light poles, benches or other street furniture within the redevelopment area. Nothing in 
this paragraph shall be deemed to prohibit either lamppost mounted seasonal barmers or 

_ 

traditional residential holiday decorations. 
_ _ V 

VIII. SPECIFIC LAND USE REGULATIONS 

The Redevelopment Area is a divided into two (2) land—use districts: a Residential District and a 
Transportation _/ Open Space District. The land use districts are displayed on the Land Use Map. 
These districts are regulated as follows: 

Residential District ` 

A. Principal Permitted Uses · ·

A
A 

I. Multi—family Building with 4 or more dwelling units 
i A 

B. Uses incidental and accessory to the principal use, including: 

. 1. Commercial Uses — limited to the ground floor of multi—family buildings. 
a. Retail sales of goods and services. 
b. Restaurants, category one and two. 
c. Bars. 

d. Offices. 

e. Financial institutions. 
· · f Art Galleries. · · · 

2. Off—street parking, only within structures as part of the
( 

principal building. 
3. Recreation facilities and areas, (indoor &/or outdoor) including pools, 

landscaped yards and decks, active recreation uses, gynmasiums, exercise 
rooms, etc. 

4. Community rooms. 
5. Fences and walls. 
6; Home occupations. 
7. Signs. 

C. Maximum Permitted Density — Maximum permitted density shall be 50 dwelling 
units per acre. The maxirnurn density for any development parcel may be 
increased to not more than 80 dwelling units per acre in compliance with the 
Density Bonus Provisions found in the Open Space Plan (Section IX. of this 
Redevelopment Plan.) This permitted density shall not be considered an absolute 
as-ofright permitted density. Rather, it is subject to compliance with the 
requirements ofthe Palisades Preservation Overlay District. The maximum 
permitted density may be substantialbw less gf less building bulk and / or height is 
permitted by the Palisade Overlay. ‘

‘ 
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A 

The maximum number of dwelling units permitted on any particular development 
parcel shall be determined by the applicable unit size, pemiitted height and other 
bulk standards; or based upon the maximum permitted density; whichever is less. 

`E. Notwithstanding the above provisions, the maximum permitted densities as
l 

described above shall not be considered absolute as-of-right pemiitted densities. . 

Rather, the maximum permitted density shall also be limited by the Minimum ‘ 

Required Dwelling Unit Size, Maximum Permitted Height, Palisade Avenue 
Overlay restrictions and other bulk and design standards of this Plan. 

E. Minimum Required Dwelling Unit Size (interior measurement) - The average 
unit size of all dwelling units shall not be lesswthan 1,200 square feet. 

F. Maximum Permitted Height — Maximum permitted height shall be 6 stories and 65 
_ 

feet. This permitted height shall not_be considered an absolute as-of-right
`

j 

permitted height. Rather, it is subject to compliance with the requirements of the 
Palisades Preservation Overlay District. The maximum permitted height may be 
substantially less. 

Minimum height shall be 4 stories. 

Height shall be measured to the highest point ofthe roof from the mean elevation 
of the finished grade from all exterior walls. 

1. Additional Height Regulations: 

a. All residential floors shall have a minimum floor to ceiling height of nine 
(9) feet. This standard shall not be wavered through deviation 

- b. Ground floor commercial areas shall have a minimum floor to ceiling 
height of Twelve (12) feet. This_standard shall not be wavered through 
deviation. 

c. Ground floor commercial areas may be taller than twelve (12) feet and 
may contain mezzanine levels within the commercial use area. 

d. Parking structures may not exceed two (2) levels in height. 
e. Parapets and other roof—top appurtenances may exceed the permitted 

height within the limitations imposed by the Jersey City Land 
· 

Development Ordinance, subject to compliance with the requirements of 
the Palisades Preservation Overlay District Standards. 

F. Minimum Lot Size — 1.5 Acres 

G. Permitted Maximum Building Coverage — Including Parking Structure — 85% 

A
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H. Required Setbacks 

l I 

1. Front Yard: 10 feet along Hoboken Avenue and Momnouth Street
` 

Except that facades containing grormd floor commercial uses may be
_ 

' l 

constructed up to the front property line provided that there is at least 15
I 

feet public sidewalk distance Hom curb face to building. 

2. Other Yards: 15 feet. 

I. Parking Requirements: Minimum Maximum
_ 

Multi—family Building 1.0 per unit 1.5 per unit 
. Commercial Uses Zero 2.0/ 1,000 sq. it. 

Transit! Open Space District
_

I 

A.
l 

Principal Permitted Uses 
n 

A n 

1. _ Light Rail and Railroad Rights-of-Way 

_ 

2. Public Parks, Open Space and Buffers 
3. Pedestrian Walkways

. 

4. Any combination of the above 

B. Uses incidental and accessory to the principal use, including 

1. Light Rail stations. 
— 

2. Necessary equipment to service Railroad and Light Rail uses. - 

3. Signs 

4. Park equipment and f\1I`I1lSl’1lI1gS 
5. Dog rims ‘ 

6. Fences and walls 

C. Bulk and Other Standards 

l. As regulated by the Jersey City Land Development Ordinance. 

IX. OPEN SPACE PLAN 

A. It is the intent of this Open Space Plan to provide new public open space areas 
within this Redevelopment Area and on parcels of land immediately adjacent to 
this Redevelopment Area. New Jersey Transit owns several pieces of properties 
within and immediately adjacent to this Redevelopment Area which are impacted 
by the alignment of the Light Rail transit way, Lackawanna mainline &/or 
wetlands. However, portions of these properties are suitable for use as public 
open space. This open space should include a public pedestrian walkway leading 
to the 2“d Street Light Rail Station. The proposed open space will consist ofa 
series of small parks, linear walkways and landscaped buffer areas on existing 
New Jersey Transit owned properties and along the Light Rail right of way. These 
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open spaces shall be linked together, and to the public street system, in order to 
provide access to and between the various residential, commercial, recreational, 
open space and transportation uses and facilities within the Redevelopment Area 
and the surrounding areas of Jersey City and Hoboken. Improvements within this

A 
l l 

open space system should include: pedestrian walkways; bikeways; shade trees, 
decorative trees, shrubs and other landscaping; dense buffer plantings where 
appropriate; pedestrian scale lighting; street and park furniture and other

` 

amenities. 

B. Density Bonus 

One of the primary objectives of this Redevelopment Plan is to provide for new 
open space and recreation opportunities within this Redevelopment Area and in 
immediately adjacent areas. It is also recognized that this Redevelopment Area 

A 

, has the potential to accommodate greater densitiesbecause of its proximity to the 
Light Rail system. Therefore, all residential or mixed-use development within this 
Redevelopment Area is eligible to receive a density bonus of up to an additional 
30 dwelling units per acre; based upon a monetary contribution of five thousand, 
five hundred ($5,500.00) dollars to an "Open Space Trust Fund" for each 
additional unit to be constructed. The Open Space Trust Fund shall be utilized by 
the City of Jersey City to create & improve public open space within the 
Redevelopment Area or immediately adjacent to the Area. 

Uses of the Open Space Trust Fund monies shall include: The development ofa 
pedestrian walkway leading from Hoboken Avenue to New York Avenue on 

· · 

portions of lots 42, 43 and 45 within Block 6001 (it is strongly suggested that
‘

· 

New Jersey Transit continue this walkway beyond New York Avenue to Paterson 
Avenue in the City of Hoboken); the development of parks and open space on 
portions of lot 42 and 43 and all or portions of lot 45 within Block 6001; the ’ 

~ creation of dense landscaped buffer areas on these same lots or on other New 
Jersey Transit owned properties immediately adjacent to the Redevelopment Area 
in order to shield views to the Lackawanna mainline and other tmdesirable views. 

X. CIRCULATION PLAN (Map 3 —Circulation Map) 

1. It is the intent of this Circulation Plan to provide a street layout for the Redevelopment 
Area which is adequate to meet the circulation needs of the Redevelopment Area in terms 
of vehicular traffic and pedestrian volrune, while at the same time recognizing that it is a 
primary purpose of this Redevelopment Plan to promote the principles of a "Transit 
Village". That is; to provide pedestrian friendly streets and public rights—of—way, to 
minimize automobile use by maximizing the appeal of mass transit and to encourage 
reduced parking and shared use parking solutions. The Redevelopment Area is serviced 
by the Light Rail station at 2"d Street on the Hoboken / Jersey City boundary line. 

2. All streets and rights of way within the Redevelopment Area shall remain open to the 
public. The configuration of all streets within the Redevelopment Area is expected to
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remain as they are. To the greatest extent practical, all streets should provide on street 
parking on both sides of the street unless restricted by local ordinance. 

4 

3. Monmouth Street shall be reconstructed to municipal standards. Further, Monmouth 
A

A 

Street cturently has a 50 foot right—of-way and should be studied to determine if it should 
be widened to a 60 foot right-of-way. If it is fotmd that the right-of-way should be 
widened to 60 feet, then an additional 5 feet should be dedicated on each side of the street

` 

to achieve the desired right—of-way width. The costs of the reconstruction and widening 
of Monmouth Street shall be assessed to all adjoining properties on both sides of the 
street on a pro-rata share basis. 

4. Sidewalk areas must be provided on both sides of the street within the Redevelopment 
Area, and shall be properly sized for the safe and convenient movement of pedestrians 
through and around the Area, taking into consideration the character of the adjoining area. 

_ In general, sidewalks on busier, wider streets such as Hoboken Avenue should be wider
`

_ 

than sidewalks on side streets such as Momnouth Street. The required minimum
A 

sidewalk width on Hoboken Avenue shall be 15 feet; andthe required minimtun sidewalk 
width on Momnouth Street shall be 10 feet.

‘ 

5. It is strongly recommended that New Jersey Transit create a pedestrian walkway leading 
from Hoboken Avenue, near its intersection with Cole Street; along the Light Rail right- 
of-way passing under the Lackawanna main line, and leading to New York Avenue. 

- From that point, the pedestrian walkway should be extended to Paterson Avenue in 
Hoboken and connected to the existing walkway leading to the 2"d Street Light Rail 
Station. ·‘

A 

6. There is a need to acknowledge and recognize the future potential of extending Jersey . 

Avenue North. A possible scenario of the extension is included on the Circulation Map 
3 .·

i 

XI. ACQUISITION PLAN 

All property within this Redevelopment Plan is listed as "To Be Acquired". 

XII. RELOCATION PLAN 

It is anticipated that their will be no relocation because there are no residents living 
within, or businesses operating with, this area. However, should relocation of persons or 
businesses become necessary, the process of relocating the affected persons and 
businesses will receive the careful attention of local officials and the Jersey City 
Redevelopment Agency, and be conducted in accordance with the requirements of all 
applicable Federal, State and Local laws. 

V
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XIII. OTHER PROVISIONS TO MEET STATE AND LOCAL REQUIRENIENTS 

In accordance with NJ SA 40A: 12A-l et seq., Chapter 79, Laws of New Jersey 1992, known as 
1 "The Local Redevelopment and Housing Law", the following statements are made: 

A. The Plan herein has delineated a definite relationship to local objectives as to appropriate
l 

land uses, density of population, and improved traffic and public transportation, public 
utilities, recreation and cormnunityfacilities and other public improvements.

` 

B. The Plan has laid out various strategies needed to be implemented in order to carry out 
the objectives of this Plan. 

C. The Plan has given proposed land uses and building requirements for the Redevelopment 
Area.‘ 

D. The Acquisition Map and Acquisition Plan (Section IX), which are a part of this Plan, 
indicate all property to be acquired as a result of this Plan. 

E. The Plan is in general compliance with the Master Plan ofthe County of Hudson. It is
` 

_ not contrary to the goals andobjectives of the Jersey City Master Plan or the Zone Plan.
A 

The Zone Plan permits residential land uses over ground floor commercial uses as this 
Redevelopment Plan does. However, this Redevelopment Plan emphasizes residential 
land-uses to a greater extent and reduces the emphasis on commercial uses. This has 
been done in recognition of the large community commercial center located immediately 
east of the Redevelopment Area, just across Bates Street. The Plan complies with the 
goals and objectives of the New Jersey Development and Redevelopment Plan in that this 
Plan and the State's plan both recognize the need to redevelop urban land. 

F. This Redevelopment Plan shall supersede all provisions of the Jersey City Zoning 
`— Ordinance that are specifically addressed herein. Any zoning related question that is not 

addressed herein shall refer to the Jersey City Zoning Ordinance for clarification. No 
· variance from the requirements herein shall be cognizable by the Zoning Board of · 

Adjustment The Planning Board alone shall have the authority to grant deviations from 
the requirements of this plan, as provided herein. Upon fmal adoption of this Plan by the 
Municipal Council of Jersey City, the Jersey City Zoning Map shall be amended to rezone 
the Redevelopment Area covered by this Plan as a Redevelopment Area, and all 
underlying zoning will be voided. 

XIV. PROCEDURE FOR AMENDING THE PLAN 

A. This Plan may be amended hom time to time upon compliance with the requirements of 
law. A fee of five thousand dollars ($5,000), plus all costs for copying and transcripts 
shall be payable to the City of Jersey City for any request to amend this Plan. If there is a 
designated developer, as provided for under NJ SA 40A: 12A-1 et. seq., said developer 
shall pay these costs. If` there is no developer the appropriate agency shall be responsible 
for any and all costs. 

B. No amendment to this Plan shall be approved without the review and recommendation of 
the Planning Board, and a public hearing and adoption by Mtmicipal Council. A copy of 
any proposed change to the Plan shall be filed with the Office of the City Clerk.

H
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· ]ERSEY CITY, N.]. 
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE - 

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-Ogg 
ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING 

TITLEIVIENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE FOR FENCING 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Cormcil, pursuant to NJ SA 40:5 5D-62, may adopt or amend a zoning ordinance relating to the nature 
and extent of the uses of land and of buildings and structures thereon; and 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council adopted the Land Development Ordinance, Chapter 345 of the Code of the City of Jersey 
City, on April ll, 2001, (Ordinance No. 01-042), and several amendments since then; and 

WHEREAS, Article V of the Land Development Ordinance supplemental zoning regulations for fencing (§345—67); and 

WHEREAS, the existing standards do not explicitly prohibit barbed wire fencing, which the City finds undesirable; and 

WHEREAS, while chain link fencing is currently prohibited, it would be beneficial to exempt vacant lots hom this regulation in 
order to control activity on such sites; and 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council, pursuant to NJ SA 40:5 5D-64, has sought and received the recommendations of the Jersey 
City Planning Board relative to these issues; and 

WHEREAS, the Plamiing Board at its meeting of November 20, 2012 did vote to recommend that the Municipal Council amend 
the Land Development Ordinance fencing standards; and 

WHEREAS, the amendments to the Land Development Ordinance are attached hereto and made a part hereof, and are available 
for public inspection at the Office ofthe City Clerk, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Coimcil of the City of Jersey City that the Land Development 
Ordinance, be and hereby is amended as per the attached document; 

BE IT FURTHER |ED THAT: 
A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

I 

B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City Clerk shall 
have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the ofhcial copies of the Jersey City Code. 

C. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law. 

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter 
numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a 
conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confirsion and possible repealers of existing 
provisions. 

E. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption of this 
Ordinance to the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant to N.J.S. 40:55D-15 and N.J.S. 
40:55D-63 (if required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance aiier public hearing thereon, the City Clerk is directed to publish 
notice of the passage thereof and to Hle a copy of the Ordinance as finally adopted with the Hudson Cormty Planning Board as 
required by N.J.S. 40:55D—l6. The clerk shall also forthwith transmit a copy of this Ordinance after Hnal passage to the 
Municipal Tax Assessor as required by N.J.S. 40:49-2.1. 

Robert D. Cotter, AICP, PP, Director 
Division of City Plamiing 

-. / z

I 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: 6%,/ -·@ |{ 
APPROVED: 

Corporation Counsel Business Administrator 

Certification Required El 

Not Required EI
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§345-67 
_ 

R `|S 

345-67. Fences and Walls 

A. Zoning Standards F 

A j 

1. Location and Height standards c 

_ , 

r 
j __ 

r 

= 

_‘ 

it 

a. Residential Districts Maximum4Heighta N A Wm r V __ r 

i. Front Yard. Four feet except for parking areas of six spaces or more 

developed in accordance with the ordinance, then the maximum 

height shall be six feet; 

ii. Side Yard. Six feet maximum height; 

iii. Rear Yard. Eight feet maximum height. 

b. Commercial Districts Maximum Height 

i. Front Ya rd. Four feet except for parking areas of six spaces or more 

. developed in accordance with the ordinance, then the maximum 

height shall be six feet; 

ii. Side Yard. Six feet maximum height; 

iii. Rear Yard. Eight feet maximum height. 

c. Industrial Districts Maximum Height - 

i. All yards. Twelve (12) feet. — 

d. Corner lots. Fences on corners shall maintain clear lines of sight for
‘ 

vehicular traffic and shall be subject to the requirements of sight triangles. 
` f 

On corner lots, the fencing shall have similar matching fence heights on 
` 

both frontagesy 

2. Chain link fences shall not be permitted in the front yard. 

3. Vacant Lots shall be exempt from the standards listed above. Vacant lots shall be
` 

permitted to have six foot high chain link fence along the front and side yard and eight 

feet along the rear yard. All chain link fencing is to be removed upon development of 

the property. 

. 4. Barbed wire / razor wire fencing is prohibited.



I A ` 

Date Submittedi to B.A. 

ORDINANCE FACT SHEET » 

1. Full Title of Ordinance: 

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE FOR FENCING

V 

2.- Name and Title of Person Initiating the Ordinance, etc.: 

Carl Czaplicki, Director, Department of Housing, Economic Development, and Commerce 

3. Concise Description of the Plan Proposed in the Ordinance: 

This Ordinance will amend Article V of the Land Development Ordinance (Zoning Ordinance) to revise 
fencing standards (§345—67) to prohibit barbed wire fencing citywide, and to allow chain link fencing on 
vacant lots. 

4. Reasons (Need) for the Proposed Program, Project, etc.: 

Currently, there is no specific prohibition against barbed wire fencing, which is undesirable in an urban 

area. Additionally, it would be beneficial to exempt vacant lots from the existing prohibition against 
chain link fencing in order to prevent such lots from becoming misused. 

` 

5. Anticipated Beneiits to the Community: 

The proposed amendments will help beautify neighborhoods by prohibiting barbed wire fencing and by 
fencing off vacant lots to prevent misuse. 

6. Cost of Proposed Plan, etc.: 
None 

7. Date Proposed Plan will commence: 

_ 
Upon approval 

8. Anticipated Completion Date: N/A 

9. Persons Responsible for Coordinating Proposed Program, Project, etc.: 

Carl Czaplicki, Director, Dept of HEDC 
_ 

Robert D. Cotter, City Planning Director 

Nick Taylor, Acting Director, Division of Zoning 

10. Additional Comments: None
K 

I Certify that all the Facts Presented Herein are Accurate. 

4, 20/2 
Division Director Date 

[,_ 
Department 

' 
ec Signature Date 

G:\Land Development Ordinance Amcndrncn|s\Ar\icl1: V\Supplemcnlnry Zoning Rcgs\Fcneing\harb:d wire and vacant Iois 20l2\C¤un¤il\F¢m:ing fact Shccndoc



ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE FOR FENCING 

This Ordinance will amend Article V ofthe Land Development Ordinance (Zoning Ordinance) to revise 
fencing standards (§345-67) to prohibit barbed wire fencing citywide, and to allow chain link fencing on 
vacant lots.

» 

G:\Land Dcvclopmcnt Ordinance Amendments\Article V\Supp|cmcntary Zoning Rcgs\Fencing\barbcd wirc and vacant lots 20l2\Council\Fencing Summary Shcct.d0c
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r ]ERSEY CITY, N.], 

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
4 

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-021 

TITLE: ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEYCITY ADOPTING 
AMENDMENTS T0 THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE CREATING THE ARTS 
DISTRICT OVERLAY ZONE FOR THE RIVERVIEW ARTS DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council, pursuant to NJ SA 40:55D-62, may adopt or amend a zoning 
ordinance relating to the nature and extent of the uses of land and of buildings and structures thereon; and 

WHEREAS, on May 10, 1984 the Municipal Council designated by Resolution an area within the 
“Heights" section ofthe city as the Riverview Arts District; and 

WHEREAS, since that 1984 designation, there has been extensive location of artists’ homes and/or 
studios into said area as well as additional relocation of artists displaced by the demolition of 111 First 
Street and subsequent land use approvals encompassing arts-related uses; and 

WHEREAS, the creation of an Arts District Overlay Zone would encourage continued use and further 
development of said area as a viable artist enclave that would enhance the vibrancy of the area; and 

_ WHEREAS, the Planning Board of Jersey City, at its meeting of February 5, 2013, did discuss and approve 
a motion recommending that the Municipal Council adopt the boundaries ofthe Arts District Overlay Zone 
and the text amendments contained herein; and 

WHEREAS, the amendments to the Land Development Ordinance are attached hereto and made a part 
hereof and are available for public inspection at the Office ofthe City Clerk, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, 
Jersey City, NJ; - » 

. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey city that the 
Land Development Ordinance, be and hereby is amended as per the attached document; 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT: . 

A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 
B. This ordinance shall be a part ofthe Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City Clerk 

shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies ofthe Jersey City Code. 
C. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law. 
D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter 

numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there 
is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible repealers of 
existing provisions.

` 

E. 'I`he City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption of 
this Ordinance to the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant to N.J.S. 
40:55D-15 and N.J.S. 40:55D-63 (if required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the 
City Clerk is directed to publish notice of the passage thereof and to file a copy ofthe Ordinance as finally adopted 
with the Hudson County Planning Board as required by N.J.S. 40:55D—16. The clerk shall also forthwith transmita 
copy of this Ordinance after fmal passage to the Municipal Tax Assessor as by N.J.S. 40:49-

f 

x Q 
Robert D. Cotter, FAICP, PP, Director 

Divw,City Planning 

‘ 

ai 
-· ’ / 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: 

APPROVED: 
Corporation Counsel Business Administrator 

Certification Required I] 

Not Required E1



Date Submitted to B.A. 
ORDINANCE FACT SHEET 

1. Full Title of Ordinance: 

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY 
ADOPTIN G AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE CREATING 

- A THE ARTS DISTRICT OVERLAY ZONE FOR THE RIVERVIEW ARTS DISTRICT · 

2. Name and Title of Person Initiating the Ordinance, etc.: 

Carl S. Czaplicki, Director, Department of Housing, Economic Development, and Commerce 

3. Concise Description of the Plan Proposed in the Ordinance: 

. Establishes boundaries on the Zoning Map, as adopted by the Municipal Council in 1984, expanded to 
reflect subsequent related land use approvals, and will permit artist studios and work/live units within 
those boundaries. 

4. Reasons (Need) for the Proposed Program, Project, etc.: 

a.) To recognize the extensive location and relocation of artist’s homes and/or studios into a portion of` 
the "heights" section since the 1984 Municipal designation along with subsequent land use approvals 
related to the arts; and b.) to encourage further development of this section of the city as an additional 
viable arts enclave. 

5. Anticipated Benefits to the Community: 

Facilitation of` a1ts—related development that will enhance the vibrancy ofthe area in a manner consistent 
with its overall residential character. 

6. Cost of Proposed Plan, etc.: 
None 

7. Date Proposed Plan will commence: ,. 

Upon approval 

8. Anticipated Completion Date: N/A 

9. Persons Responsible for Coordinating Proposed Program, Project, etc.: 

Carl S. Czaplicki, Director, Dept of HEDC 
Robert D. Cotter, City Planning Director · 

Nick Taylor, Director, Division of Zoning 

10. Additional Comments: None 

I Certify that all the Facts Presented Herein are Accurate. 

$2 C, J-0 / 3 
Division Director },__.» Date 

D' 
,. 5 yr Z Em é 2 0 /3 

Department Director Signature Date



SUMMARY STATEMENT 

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY 
· ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE CREATING 

THE ARTS DISTRICT OVERLAY ZONE FOR THE RIVERVIEW ARTS DISTRICT 

The overlay zone will establish boundaries on the Zoning Map, as adopted by the Municipal Council in 
1984, expanded to reflect subsequent related land use approvals, and will permit artist studios and 
work/live units within those boundaries.



Proposed Amendments to Article V of the Jersey City Land Development Ordinance 
creating an Arts District Overlay Zone within that portion of the R—1 Zoning district 
previously designated by the Municipal Council as the Riverview Arts District 

Draft Prepared: January 28, 2013 

Material indicated by strikethrough liketlais is existing material that is intended to be deleted. Material 

indicated by bold italic like this is new material that is intended to be enacted.
` 

§ 345-60.3 
A. Purpose. The purpose ofthe overlay zone is: 

1. to recognize the extensive location and relocation of artists’ homes and/or studios into a 
portion ofthe "Heights" section formerly designated by the Municmal Council as the 
Riverview Arts District in 1984; and 
2. to encourage the further development of this section of the city as an additional viable 
arts enclave 

B. Arts District Overlay Zoning Regulations: 
1. Permitted Princmal Uses 

a. Work/Live Artist Studio 

b. Work/Live Unit 

c. Artist Studio Workspace 

2. Existing bulk and parking regulations applicable to underbring zoning districts shall 
remain unchanged and shall apply to any new uses within the overlay zone. 

3. See definition for each ofthe above uses for additional standards.



A ss *v 

rs 

sswss 

Wy Ws ug %, Wy », 
s ·ss.ss ss|ss|ss s ;ss .ss ss|ss 

iw ss s% ss ss |sssss %% ss ss| ss. ss| §s s ss ss ss ssss 
V. W| s; ss ss ss `Ms 
tm ss ss lm 

J-s ‘· ss `\ 

s ss ss s/ 

|%· ss ss 
Ws

s s ss ss 
up ss ss ss 

a gg 
i 

V s ss sss 
i ss ss 

z ss 

j ss ss 

%> 
Q' 

sg| 

s 
|ew| 

Of wr '|W it " @%
N 

Proposed Arts District Overlay Zone Boundary 
for The Riverview Arts District 

Legend 

January 29, 2013 
Proposed Arts District Overlay Boundary

-



City Clerk File No. Ord- 13-022
`

- 

gen a 0 s ea lng 
TERSG 

. A ci N . 
3-K 1 in cr 

Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage O JA 

Af arit\\tliill*ii"'l/#11/um 

+-1 ·—< \ ..... » ·- I 

ORDINANCE *i ,,..OO ’ 

Yy 
tb OF QPORATES 

]ERSEY CITY, N .]. 
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

_

A 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-022 

TITLE: ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING 
AN AMENDMENT TO PERMITTED USES IN THE PALISADE AVENUE PORTION OF THE 
R—2 DISTRICT OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council, pursuant to NJ SA 40:55D-62, may adopt or amend a zoning . 

ordinance relating to the nature and extent ofthe uses of land and of buildings and structures thereon; and 

WHEREAS, ground floor retail and office use is already permitted along the subject portion of Palisade 
Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, the amendment serves to recognize the considerable number of existing, neighborhood- 
oriented restaurants thereby reflecting existing conditions and making them permitted uses; and 

WHEREAS, the amendment will also facilitate the location of additional restaurant uses along said 
portion of Palisade Avenue thereby enhancing the vibrancy ofthe area; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board of Jersey City, at its meeting of February 5, 2013, did discuss and approve 
_ a motion recommending that the Municipal Council adopt the amendments contained herein; and _ 

WHEREAS, the amendments to the Land Development Ordinance are attached hereto and made a part 
hereof} and are available for public inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, 

Jersey City, NJ; 

— NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey city that the 
Land Development Ordinance, be and hereby is amended as per the attached document; 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT: 
A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 
B. This ordinance shall be a part ofthe Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City Clerk 

shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies ofthe Jersey City Code. 

C. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law. 
D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter 

numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there 
is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible repealers of 

existing provisions. 

E. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption of 
this Ordinance to the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant to N.J.S. 
40:55D-15 and N.J.S. 40:55D—63 (if required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the 
City Clerk is directed to publish notice of the passage thereof and to file a copy ofthe Ordinance as finally adopted 
with the Hudson County Plamring Board as required by N.J.S. 40:55D-16. The clerk shall also forthwith transmita 
copy of this Ordinance after final passage to the Municipal Tax Assessor as required by N.J.S. 40:49-2.l. 

Robert D. Cotter, AICP, PP, Director 
Division of City Planning 

./\ -- 

· APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: 

APPROVED: 
Corporation Counsel Business Administrator 

Certification Required El 

Not Required El



Date Submitted to B.A. 
ORDINANCE FACT SHEET

j 

1. Full Title of Ordinance: ‘ 

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY . 

ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO PERMITTED USES IN THE PALISADE AVENUE 
. PORTION OF THE R-2 DISTRICT OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE - 

2. Name and Title of Person Initiating the Ordinance, etc.: 

Carl S. Czaplicki, Director, Department of Housing, Economic Development, and Commerce 

3. Concise Description of the Plan Proposed in the Ordinance: 

This ordinance will add category one and two restaurants as permitted ground tloor uses along that 
portion of Palisade Avenue within the R-2 District. 

4. Reasons (Need) for the Proposed Program, Project, etc.: 

Ground floor retail and office use is already permitted along the subject portion of Palisade Avenue. The 
amendment serves to recognize the considerable number of existing, neighborhood¥oriented restaurants 
there as well, making them pennitted uses and facilitating the location of additional restaurant uses there. 

5. Anticipated Benefits to the Community: 

Facilitation of appropriate, compatible development that will enhance the vibrancy ofthe area. 

6. Cost of Proposed Plan, etc.: 

, 
None 

7. Date Proposed Plan will commence: 
Upon approval 

8. Anticipated Completion Date: N/A 

9. Persons Responsible for Coordinating Proposed Program, Project, etc.: 

Carl S. Czaplicki, Director, Dept of HEDC 
` 

Robert D. Cotter, City Planning Director 
Nick Taylor, Director, Division of Zoning

_ 

10. Additional Comments: None 

I Cer·tify that all the Facts Presented Herein are Accurate. 

Division Director 
‘ 

Date 

l 

/ ,. . 

gif eé-~ C; 2 o z 3 
Department*Director Signature Date

L 1



SUMMARY STATEMENT 

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY 
ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO PERMITTED USES IN THE PALISADE AVENUE 
PORTION OF THE R-2 DISTRICT OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

This Ordinance will add category one and two restaurants as permitted ground floor uses along that 
portion of Palisade Avenue within the R-2 District.



Proposed Amendments to Article V of the Jersey City Land Development Ordinance 
Permitting Restaurants on the ground i`loor within the R-2 zone along Palisade Avenue 

Draft prepared January 28, 2013 

Material indicated by strikethrough like-this is existing material that is intended to be deleted. 

Material indicated by bold italic like this is new material that is intended to be enacted. 

345-41. R-2- Multi-Family Attached Housing (four stories or less) District 

A. No Change 

B. Permitted principal uses are as follows: 

1. Townhouses 
2. Houses of worship 

3. Parks and playgrounds 

4. Essential services 

5. Schools 

6. Governmental uses 

7. Along Palisades Avenue only, retail sales of goods and services, category one and 
· two restaurants, and office uses on ground floor with apartments above 

8. Conversions of lst floor commercial to a residential unit 

9. Assisted living residences . 

· 

10. Nursing homes 
l l. Senior housing ~ 

12. Public Utilities, except that natural gas transmission lines shall be prohibited V 

C. No Change 
D. No Change 
E. No Change 
F. No Change 
G. No Change 
H. No Change

` 

I. No Change
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ORDINANCE T 

OF acm, ar 
JERSEY CITY, N.]. 

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-023 

TITLE: ORDINANCE ACCEPTIN G FROM LT REALTY COMPANY, LLC A 
DEDICATION OF CERTAIN ROADWAYS, SIDEWALKS AND UTHJITIES 
LOCATED WITHIN THE COLGATE REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AREA 

j 
THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: 

WHEREAS, Essex Waterfront Owners, LLC (EWO), was the owner and developer of a 648 unit 
residential complex known as Liberty Towers, 33 Hudson Street also known as Block 14504, Lot 
1 formerly known as Block 34, Lot 26 (Property); and 

WHEREAS, the Property was developed in accordance with the requirements of the Colgate 
Redevelopment Plan which included the construction of a wider roadway, a sidewalk and utilities 
along the southerly lot line of Block 14504, Lot 1 adjoining Essex Street between Greene Street and 
Hudson Street; and . 

WHEREAS, EWO transferred the Property to LT Realty Company, LLC (LT Realty) on January 
31, 201 1; and 

WHEREAS, LT Realty desires to dedicate for use as a public right-of—way the land and 
improvements within the Colgate Redevelopment area described below; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City (City) is authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:67-1 and N.J.S” .A. 
» 40A:12-5 to accept the conveyance and dedication of land and appurtenances for public purposes. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey_City 
that: 

‘ 

1. A portion of the land, improvements and appurtenances that are located within the Colgate 
Redevelopment area, more particularly described as follows: 

(a) A portion of Block 14504, Lot 1 consisting of approximately 0.084 acres shown on 
Exhibit A attached hereto and more accurately described in Exhibit B attached hereto 

be and the same is hereby accepted and dedicated as a public right-of—way. 

2. The acceptance of this dedication shall be subject to the following terms and conditions: 

Upon delivery of a deed to the City pursuant to terms hereofQ LT Realty shall provide 
the City with a one (1) yearmaintenance bond for the roadways and improvements. 
During the one (1) year period following the delivery of the deed, LT Realty shall 
promptly correct any deficiencies in workmanship and design which threaten the 
structural integrity of the roadways and improvements or create a risk to public 
safety, upon receiving written notice of such deficiencies from the Municipal 
Engineer. At the end of the one (1) year period, the City shall be responsible for the 
structural maintenance of the roadways and improvements which are the subject of 
this dedication 

-i
1 2



Continuation of City Ordinance 13;023 
, page 2 

_ 
3. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized:

4 

(a) subject to review and approval by the City’s Corporation Counsel of a title report 
provided by LT Realty, accept delivery of and record a deed from LT Realty 

_ 
conveying the dedicated lands and improvements; and 

(b) subject to review and approval by the Municipal Engineer, accept all easements 
described in paragraph 4 below; and 

(c) subject to review and approval by the Corporation Counsel, execute all documents 

necessary to accomplish the dedication of the aforementioned lands. 

4. This dedication shall be subject to all easements affecting the Property recorded in the Office 
ofthe Hudson County Register for the benefit of public or private entities for the purpose of 
operating and maintaining, inspecting, protecting, repairing, replacing or reconstructing any 
existing water, sewer or utility lines including cable television wires and poles, together with 
the right of ingress and egress at all times for such purposes and all other purposes in 
connection with or in any way relating to an entities use or operation of water, sewer or 
utility lines. 

A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth
j 

therein. The City shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies 
ofthe Jersey City Code. , 

C. This ordinance shall take effect in the manner as prescribed by law. 

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed 
to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the 
codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the 
existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing 
provisions. - » 

NOTE: All new material is underlined; words in 
{brackets] are omitted. For purposes of 

advertising only, new matter is indicated 
by boldface and repealed matter by italic. 

RR/cw 

2-5-]3 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALPQRM APPROVED; 

APi¤RovEo;
‘ 

Corporation Counsel · 

Business Administrator 

Certification Required U 
Not Required EI
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· 
` 

Description of Proposed Widening of Essex Street 
Lot 26, Block 34 

. 

City of Jersey City, Hudson County, New Jersey - 

Beginning at a point at the intersection ofthe northerly side line of Essex Street and the easterly
. 

side line of Green Street and running: 

1. North 08°l2’59" East along the easterly side line of Green Street a distance of l0.00’ to‘a point, thence
. 2. South 8l°47’0l" East a distance of 368.07’ to a point, thence

. 

- . 3. South 08°12’59" West a distance of l0.00’ to a point, thence 4. North 8l°47’Ol" West along the northerly side line of Essex Street a distance of 368.07’ to the point and place of beginning.
_ 

Containing: 3680.07 S.F. 

Robert F. Hogan
_ 

NJ License # 34860 
March 28, 2011

‘

`

· 

Q »
E



Jersey City Law Department 
Memorandum 

To: President and Members ofthe Municipal Council 

U 

From: Raymond Reddington, Supervisory Assistant Corporation Council - 

Subject: Ordinance accepting the dedication of a portion of Block 14504, Lot 1 on 

Essex Street between Greene Street and Hudson Street as public right of way 

Date: Februaiy 6, 2013 
A

_ 

LT Realty Company, LLC (LT Realty) is the owner of a 648 unit residential complex known 
as Liberty Towers, 33 Hudson Street, also known as Block 14504, Lot 1 (Property). The Property 
was developed in accordance with the requirements of the Colgate Redevelopment Plan which 

included the construction of a wider roadway, a sidewalk and utilities along the southerly lot line of 

Block 14504, Lot 1 adjoining Essex Street between Greene Street and Hudson Street. LT Realty 
desires to dedicate for use as a public right—of-way the land and improvements within the Colgate 

Redevelopment area that are described in Exhibits A and B of the ordinance. The ordinance 
authorizes the City of Jersey City to accept a Deed of Dedication subject to certain conditions A 

g 
including the review and acceptance of the improvements by the Municipal Engineer. 

cc: Chuck Lee, Municipal Engineer
A 

-
r

-
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yy OF [mom, ga 

]ERSEY CITY, N.]. 

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

A 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-024 
‘

l 

‘ 

TITLE: ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY TO EXECUTE 
A LEASE WITH IMPERIAL PARKING CORPORATION FOR PARKING 
SPACES LOCATED NEAR 1 JOURNAL SQUARE PLAZA 

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: 

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City (City) Police Department moved its headquarters from 8 Erie 
Street to office space at 1 Journal Square Plaza in July, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the City needs parking spaces for Police Department personnel working at 1 Journal 
Square Plaza; and r 

WHEREAS, Imperial Parking Corporation (Imperial) agrees to provide twenty (20) unreserved 
parking spaces at its facility located at 2854 Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey City for $120.00 per space 

per month for a total monthly cost of $2,400.00; and 

WHEREAS, the parking spaces rented by the City will be exempt from the City’s tax on parking 
c 

lot spaces pursuant to Section 304-1 g gm. ofthe City Code; and 

WHEREAS, the lease term shall be for twenty-eight (28) months effective as of September 1, 2012 
and ending on December 31, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the sum of $7,200.00 is available in Account No. 01-201-25-240-3 04; and · 

WHEREAS, the balance of the lease funds will be made available in the 2013 permanent budget 
and in the subsequent fiscal year budget. 

NOW, THEREFOR, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Counsel ofthe City of J ersey City that: 

1 . Subj ect to such modifications as deemed necessary and appropriate by Corporation Counsel, 

the Mayor or Business Administrator is authorized to execute the attached Lease Agreement 

with Imperial Parking Corporation for twenty (20) unreserved parking spaces at 2854 

Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey City. 

2. The term ofthe lease shall be twenty-eight (28) months and shall take effect as of September 

1, 2012 and shall end on December 31, 2014. 

3. Imperial Parking Corporation and the City of Jersey City shall have the right to terminate the 

lease without cause by providing (60) days’ notice prior to the effective date of termination. 

3. The monthly rent for twenty (20) unreserved parking spaces shall be $120.00 per space for 
a total monthly amount of $2,400,00. 

4. The parking spaces rented by the City shall be exempt from the parking tax authorized 
pursuant to Section 304-1 gt sg;. of the City Code.



Continuation of City Ordinance 
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5. Funds in the amount of $7,200.00 are available in Account No. Ol-201-25-240-304. The 
balance of the lease funds will be made available in the 2013 Fiscal Year permanent budget 

and in the subsequent fiscal year budget. 
p p 

A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth 
therein. The City shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies 
of the Jersey City Code. 

C. This ordinance shall take effect in the manner as prescribed by law. 

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed 
to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the 

codification of this ordinance reveals that there is ·a conflict between those numbers and the
` 

existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing 

provisions. 

I, , Dorma Mauer, Chief Financial Officer certify the funds in the 
amount of $7,200.00 are available in Account No. 01-201-25-240-304 in accordance with the Local 
Budget Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-il Q @1. . 

NOTE: All new material is underlined; words in {brackets] 
. 

_ are omitted. For purposes of advertising only, new 
matter is indicated by boldface and repealed matter 

by italic. 

RR/cw 
24-12 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED;

J 

. APPROVED; 
V 

Corporation Counsel 

Certification Required E1 

Not Required I]



AGREEMENT BETWEEN IMPERIAL PARKING CORPORATION, A NEW 
JERSEY CORPORATION HAVING AN OFFICE LOCATED AT 2854 
KENNEDY BOULEVARD, JERSEY CITY, NEW JERSEY 07306 AND THE 
CITY OF JERSEY CITY, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE 
OF NEW JERSEY HAVING AN OFFICE AT 280 GROVE STREET, JERSEY 
CITY, NEW JERSEY 07302 (CITY)

_ 

WHEREAS, Imperial Parking Corporation (Imperial) is the owner of a parking facility at 2854
“ 

Kennedy Boulevard in the City of Jersey City, New Jersey (Premises); and
A 

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City (City) is desirous of entering into an Agreement with Imperial 

for a period of twenty—eight (28) months effective as of September 1, 2012 and ending on December 

31, 2014 for monthly parking as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, Imperial is willing to enter into this Agreement with the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe promises and conditions herein contained, the parties 

agree as follows:

V 

1. Imperial shall provide the City with twenty (20) unreserved parking spaces at its facility 

located at 2854 Kemiedy Boulevard, Jersey City for a period of twenty-eight (28) months effective 

as of September 1, 2012 and ending on December 31, 2014. 

2. The City shall pay to Imperial the sum of $ 1 20.00 per parking space per month, without taxes 

· thereon for a total monthly payment of $2,400.00 for each and every month thereafter effective as 

of September 1, 2012 and ending on December 31, 2014. 

3. Payment shall be due on or before the 1“ day of each month during the term, in advance. 

4. The City shall be responsible for obtaining the tax exemption as provided herein. In the 

event that the City is unable to obtain the same, the City shall pay all applicable taxes in addition to 

the amount set forth herein. 

5. This Agreement shall be subject to the rulesand regulations of Imperial as posted on the 

premises. 

6. This Agreement is not assignable by the City. 

-1 -



7. During the term of this Agreement, Imperial and the City shall each have the right to 

terminate this Agreement without cause by providing sixty (60) days’ notice prior to the effective
I 

date of termination. 

8. Imperial shall continue to maintain its existing underlying and excess insurance coverage as 

set forth on the declaration page of Policy ____________ issued by 

, a copy of which is annexed hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement on the 

dates set forth above. . 

IMPERIAL PARKING CORP. ATTEST: 

President 

CITY OF JERSEY CITY ATTEST: 

J0HN KELLY 
A I 

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR 

-2-
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JERSEY CITY, N,]. 

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

` 

CIW ORDINANCE 13-935 

T|T|_E; ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY TO EXECUTE 
A LEASE WITH RAND PARKING, INC., FOR PARKING SPACES 
LOCATED NEAR 1 JOURNAL SQUARE PLAZA 

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: _ 

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City (City) Police Department moved its headquarters from 8 Erie 
Street to office space at 1 Journal Square Plaza in July, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the City needs parking spaces for Police Department personnel working at 1 Journal 
Square Plaza; and 

WHEREAS, Rand Parking, Inc. (Rand) agrees to provide twenty (20) unreserved parking spaces 
at its facility located adjacent to 1 J oumal Square Plaza for $149.50 per space per month for a total 
monthly cost of $2,990.00; and

A 

. WHEREAS, the parking spaces rented by the City will be exempt from the City’s tax on parking 
lot spaces pursuant to Section 304-1 g gg. ofthe City Code; and 

WHEREAS, the lease temr shall be for twenty-eight (28) months effective as of September 1, 2012 
and ending on December 31, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the sum of $8,970.00 is available in Account No. 01-201-25-240-304; and 

WHEREAS, the balance of the lease funds will be made available in the 2013 pennanent budget 
and in the subsequent fiscal year budget. 

NOW, THEREFOR, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Counsel ofthe City of Jersey City that: 

1 . Subj ect to such modifications as deemed necessary and appropriate by Corporation Counsel, 
the Mayor or Business Administrator is authorized to execute the attached Lease Agreement 
with Rand Parking, Inc., for twenty (20) urrreserved parking spaces in a street level parking 
lot located on a deck behind the building commonly known as 2 Journal Square Plaza on 
Kennedy Boulevard. 

2. The term ofthe lease shall be twenty-eight (28) months and shall take effect as of September 
1, 2012 and shall end on December 31, 2014. 

3. Rand Parking, Inc. and the City of Jersey City shall have the right to tenninate the lease 
without cause by providing sixty (60) days’ notice prior to the effective date of termination. 

3. The monthly rent for twenty (20) unreserved parking spaces shall be $149.50 per space for 
a total monthly amount of $2,990.00. 

4. The parking spaces rented by the City shall be exempt from the parking tax authorized 
pursuant to Section 304-1 g ggg. ofthe City Code.
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5. Funds in the amount of $8,970.00 are available in Account No. 01-201 -25-240-304. The 
balance of the lease funds will be made available in the 2013 Fiscal Year permanent budget 

_ P 
and in the subsequent fiscal year budget. 

p _ _ 

A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth 
therein. The City shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies 
ofthe Jersey City Code. 

C. This ordinance shall take effect in the mamier as prescribed by law.

I 

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed 
to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the 
codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the 
existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing 
provisions. 

I, , Donna Mauer, Chief Financial Officer certify the funds in the 
amount of $8,970.00 are available in Account No. 01-201-25-240-3 04 in accordance with the Local 
Budget Law, N.J.S.A. 4OA:4-l Q gg,. , 

NOTE: All new material is underlined; words in {brackets] 
are omitted. For purposes of advertising only, new 
matter is indicated by boldface and repealed matter 

by italic. 

RR/cwI 
01/31/13 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED; 

APPROVED; 
Corporation Counsel 

Certification Required EI 

Not Required Ei
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A 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN ‘ RAND PARKING, INC., A NEW- JERSEY 
h 

- 

"

l

` 

_ 

CORPORATION HAVING AN OFFICE LOCATED AT 87 CENTRAL 
· 

- AVENUE, EAST BRUNSVVICK, NEW JERSEY 08816 AND THE CITY OF - 

I JERSEY CITY, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF NEW 
. JERSEY HAVING AN OFFICE AT 280-GROVE STREET, JERSEY CITY,

g NEW JERSEY 07302 (CITY) · ‘ ‘ ` 

. .

_ 

WHEREAS, Rand Parking, Inc. (Rand) is the owner of a street level parking business located on
A 

the deck behind the building cornrnonly known as Journal Square Plaza 2 on Kennedy Boulevard 

A 

` 

in the City of Jersey City, New Jersey (Premises); and 
_

. 

`VVHEREAS, the City of Jersey City (City) is desirous of entering into an Agreement with Rand for 

a period of twenty—eight (28) months effective as of September 1, 2012 and ending on December 3.1, . - 

2014 for monthly parking as hereinafter provided; and 
U 

_

I 

WHEREAS, Rand is willing to enter into this Agreement with the City.
L

» 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe promises and conditions herein contained, theparties
h

I 

agree as follows: — 

l. Rand shall provide the City with twenty (20) unreserved parking spaces at its facility located
_

‘ 

.

I 

behind the building commonly known as Journal Square Plaza 2 on Kennedy Boulevard for a period
`

l 

of twenty-eight (28) months effective as of September 1, 2012 and ending on' December 31, 2014.
AA 

2. The City shall pay to Rand. the sum of $ 149.50 per parking space per month, without taxes 
' 

thereon for a total monthly payment of $2,990.00 for each and every month thereafter effective as 

A 

of September 1, 2012 and ending on December 31, 2014.
l

_ 

_ 
3. Payment shall be due on or before the 1“ day of each month- during the term, in advance. 

4. 
` 

The City shall be responsible for obtaining the tax exemption as provided herein. In the 

event that the City is unable to obtainthe same, the City shall pay all applicable taxes in addition to 
` " 

the amount set forth herein.

l 

I
I

~

A
I 

5.

I 

This Agreement shall be subject to the rules and regulations of Rand_as posted on the 
_

_ 

r 

premises. ‘ 

» 
·

‘ 

. 6. This Agreement is not assignable by the·City.-
_



A 

A 

7. 
Q 

During the term of this Agreement, Rand and the City shall each have the right to terminate 

this Agreement without cause by providingsixty (60) days’ notice prior to the effective date of 
J

‘

l 

- termination. ,_. y_· . - 
.

A 

8. Rand shall continue to maintain its existing underlying and excess insurance coverage as set 

- forth on the declaration page of Policy issued by A

i 

,

`
`

l 

a copy of which is annexed hereto.
,

_

A 

IN WITNESS VVHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executedthisiAgreement on the
I 

dates set forth above. 
A A

P 

RAND PARKING, INC. 
_ 

` 

S 

ATTEST:
i 

President » 

p 

t

A

S 

CITY OF JERSEY CITY
I 

ATTEST: ~ 

JOHN KELLY I
i 

V _

‘ 

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
.


